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Group 4 Securicor 1s the world's leading
international securtty solutions group,
operating in over 100 countries with

around 470,000 employees.

The group operates in two key sectors:

Security Services

£3,480.6m

Turnover

Cash Services

£873.0m

Turnover




Group at a Glance

Group 4 Securicor i1s the world’s leading
provider of security solutions, with
a presence in six regions.

North America

51,304

employees

Central / South America

40,439

employees

Countries of operation

Group 4 Securicor 1s a global
company operating In over
|00 countries across the world

Employes nombers as at 31 December 2006
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Europe

115,488

employees Middle East

22,230

employees

Asia

159,965

employees

Africa

82,079

employees

EUROPE { Austria / Belgium / Bulgana / Cyprus / Czech Republic / Denmark / Estorsa / Finland / France / Germany ! Greece / Guernsey { Hungary / Ireland / Isle of Man /
Jersey { Latwia / Lithuama / Luxembourg / Malta / Netherlands / Norway / Poland / Romania / Russia / Slovaksa ! Slovensa / Sweden / Turkey / Ukraine / United Kingdom /
NORTH AMERICA / Canada / United States / CENTRAL & SOUTH AMERICA / Argentina / Barbados / Bolivia / Chile / Colombia / Costa Riea / Dominican Republic /
Ecuador / Bl Salvador / Guatemaia / Honduras § Jamaica / Maaco f Nicaragua / Panama / Pacagisty f Peru / Puerto Rico / Tnnidad & Tobago / Uruguay / Venezuela /
AFRICA / Botswana / Camercon { Democranc Republic of Congo / Gambia / Ghana / lvary Coast [ Kenya / Lesotho / Matawi / Morocco / Mozambique / Namibia f
Nigeria / Sierra Leone / South Africa / Tanzania / Uganda / Zambia / MIDDLE EAST / Bahrain { Egypt / Iraq / Israel / Jordan / Kuwait / Lebanon / Oman / Qatar / Saudi
Arabia [ Syria / United Arab Emirates / Yemen { ASIA ! Azerbaljan / Bangladesh / Brunei / China / Guam / Hong Kong f India / Indonesia / Kazakhstan / Korea / Macau /
Malzysia / Nepal / North Marlanas / Pakistan f Philippines / Singapore / Tuwan { Thailand / Turkmenstan / Uzbekistan




Financial Performance for 2006

Continuing turnover

Cash
Services 20%

Secunty

Services 80%

Continuing PBITA®

Cash
Services 29%

Secunty
Services 7 1%

We remain focused on driving growth and improving margins across alf our

bustnesses around the world, with a view to continuously creating and

matntaining value for our shareholders

Group total

+ /.19 =

Group organic

Ls 3
O Group turnover of
._I_ continuing businesses
L] o to £4 35 billion

Group total
O
£4,353.6m £277.0m  64% 88% 12.2p
2006 Tumover 2006 PBITA 2006 Margin 2006 Cash 2006 Adyusted
generation earnings per share
£4,045.7m £255.0m 6.3% 79% 11.2p
2005 Turncver 2005 PBITA 2005 Margin 2005 Cash generauon 2005 Adjusted earnings
per share

*  PBTA = profit before interest, tvation amortisation of acquisiuon-related ntangible assets and exceptional Aems

**  at constant exchange rates
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5
Continuing turnover by geography Continuing PBITA by geography
Markets 18% arkets 22%
Er?\r;:ca 26% Europe 56% Rjr?\:r?ca 2% Europe 57%
New New
Markets | 6% Markets 20%
North North
Amenca 27% Europe 57% Amenca 23% Europe 57%
O = o Increase in
_I_ PBITA growth _I_ recommended
O to £2770m O total dividend
per share
Securtty Services 5 Cash Services
£3480.6m £2156m 6.2% £873.0m  £87.9m 10.1%
2006 Turnover 2006 PBITA 2006 Margin 2006 Turnover 2006 PBITA 2006 Margin
£3,247.8m  £201.4m 6.2% £797.9m £78.3m 9.8%
2005 Tumover 2005 PRITA 2005 Margin 2005 Turnover 2005 PBITA 2005 Margn
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Qur vision

THE GROUP HAS A CLEAR CORPORATE VISION AND
A STRONG SET OF VALUES WHICH ENSURE THAT
EVERYONE UNDERSTANDS THE STRATEGY OF THE
ORGANISATION AND THEIR ROLE IN ITS DELIVERY:

To be recognised as the

global leader i

providing securrty solutions

Recognised. our stakeholders know the organisation well and
respect its position as the leader in its field

Global Leader the largest securty company in the world, which

delivers the highest quality services in the fields of security services
and cash services, and achieves the best financal returns in the industry

Security Solutions we take time to get close to our customers

1o ensure that we understand their security needs — our skill 1s in
providing solutions to their needs which deliver business benefits
for them




Customer Focus

We have close, open relationships with
our customers that generate trust and
we work in partnership for the mutual
benefit of our organisations.




Expertise

We develop and demonstrate our
expertise through our innovative and
leading edge approach to creating
and delivering the right solution.




Performance

We challenge ourselves to improve
performance year-on-year and to
create long term sustainability.




Best People

We always take care to employ the

best people, develop their competence,

provide opportunity and inspire them
to live our values.




Integrity

We can always be trusted to do
the right thing.




Collaboration
& Teamwork

We collaborate for the benefit
of G4S as a whole.
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Our values

Customer Focus — we have dose, open relationships
with our customers that generate trust and we work in
partnership for the mutual benefit of our organisations

Expertise — we develop and demonstrate our expertise
through our innovative and leading edge approach to
creating and delivering the right solution.

Performance — we challenge ourselves to improve

performance year-on-year and to create long term
sustainability

Best People — we always take care to employ the best

people, develop their competence, provide opportunity
and inspire them to live our values

Integrity — we can always be trusted to do the
right thing

Collaboration & Teamwork — we collaborate for
the benefit of G45 as a whole




Chairman’s Statement

~ B

gl

Alf Duch-Pederson
Charman

| am proud that we have delivered on the promises we made to investors when we
created Group 4 Securicor in 2004 We have had a number of challenges along the

way, but our strong 2006 results demonstrate that we have the right strategy and

the commitment of our management and staff across the organisation This gives me
confidence for the future and | am excited about moving into our next phase of
accelerated growth and development

WE BELIEVE

WE ARE WELL
POSITIONED
TO DELIVER ON
OUR STRATEGY

WE LOOK
FORWARD TO
THE REST OF
2007 WITH
CONFIDENCE

Results

The strong performance of the company in 2006 continues to demonstrate the benefits of the merger in 2004
between Secuncar angd the security businesses of Group 4 Falck We intend to build on this strong foundation
to explort further the group's potental for development in the future

In 2006 profit before interest, taxation, amortisaton and exceptional items increased by 10%* to £2770m
whilst tumover grew 8 4%* to £4,353 6m Of that total profit figure £215 ém was attnbutable to security
services (which now incorporates our manned secunty, justice services and secunty systems businesses) and
£87 9m to cash services, less head office costs of £26.5m Our margin has increased to 64%, orgamc growth
was strong and improved at 7 |% and adjusted earmings per share increased by 9% to [22p

* ot constant exchange rles

Dividend

The directors recommend a final dadend of 2.52p or DKK 0277 per share payable on 8 June 2007 which
with the intenm drdend of | 69p or DKK 0 186 per share pad on |15 December 2006 makes a total dwdend
of 421 p or DKK 0463 per share for the year ended 3| December 2006 This represents an increase of (9%
over the total dwidend for 2005 and reflects the board's aim as stated last year of reducing the companys
target dvidend cover 1o two and a half imes over the medium term
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“WE NOW HAVE SOME 470,000 EMPLOYEES INTHE GROUP
WORKING TO PROVIDE EXCELLENT SERVICE TO QUR CUSTOMERS

kt 15 the collective effort of those employees, who often work in very
challenging arcumstances, which enables us to maintan our position as
a global industry leader”

Qur Board

| assumed the role of chairman on the retirement from the board of Jergen Philip-Serensen at the end of June
2006, as announced last year Mr Philip-Serensen’s contnbution aver 50 vears to this company and before that
to Group 4 and Group 4 Falck, has been immense and it 1s a privilege to have the opportunity now to pay
tribute to my predecessor for what he has done for our industry and parucularly for bus part in the merger
process which resulted in the formation of Group 4 Secuncor

Waldernar Schmidt also retired from the board at the end of June and | would like to express my gratitude for
his contnbution to our board.

Duning the year we have added to the breadth of expenence on the board, with Mark Selgman joining at the
beginning of the year and Mark Ellott being appointed in September Mark Seligman's capital markets
knowledge 15 invaluable, whilst Mark Ellictt brings with him experence of running a large, international services
business and of the North Amencan market.

| must also mention the retrement at the end of the year of our company secretary, Nigel Gnfiiths. His
involement with the group spanred four decades, induding |3 years as an executive director of Secuncor ple
His support and counsel has been greatly valued by the board and we wish him well in his retrement.

Cur Staff

We now have some 470,000 employees in the group working to provide excellent service to our customers.
It s the collecirve effort of those employees, who often work in very challenging eircumstances, which enables
us 10 maitain our positon as a global ndustry leader We place great value on the commitment these employees
demonstrate every day Mobiising the talents of all these peaple across such a large, complex crganisation 1s a
challenge we relish and we are proud that the positive expenence of our customers starts with the indmdual
efforts of every single member of staff

Our Future

At a time when security IS seen as ever more ymportant, we continue to devote our efforts to providing
secunty solutions to our customers. The G45 brand has now been rolled out across the world and we hope to
obtain support from investors to complete the final part of the brand implementation this year by changing the
companys name to G45 plc

We still have many challenges to face but we belleve we are well postioned to deliver on our strategy and we
look forward to the rest of 2007 with confidence

January 2006
G4S brand 1denuty launches
In Hong Kong

March 2006

GA4S Security Services (UK)
completes licensing project
and achieves Approved
Contractor Status ahead
of schedule

June 2006

NASA awards Wackenhut
Services, Inc fire protectton
and emergency response
contract at Ames Research
Centre

July 2006

(45 wins Human Resources
Excellence award for “Best
Executive Development
Programme”

August 2006
GA4S India recruits its
100,000th employee

September 2006
Lord Condon appointed
deputy chairman

November 2006

G45 acquires Servicios
Generales tn Chile and
Defence Systems Africa
in Democrauc Republic
of Congo



Operating and Financial Review

Nick Buckles

& Chief Executive Officer

N N

We achieved a strong set of results across the group in 2006, with excellent growth
In New Markets and strong margin progression in Cash Services

Chief Executive's Review

ORGANIC GROWTH 2006 Performance

INCREASED TO 2006 was the final year of merger consolidation bt was a perod dunng which we bedded down the integration
of aur vanous businesses and made the final strategic changes to the management structure and processes

7_ I % which will enable us to move Into a new phase of enhanced growth and development in 2007

It was also a penod dunng which we implemented the new corporate brand dentity across the world —
no mean feat across 100 countnes and a workforce approachung half a million

MARGIN At th the by d rfc fy and th f th hich had
t the same time the businesses continued to perform strongly and those parts of the group which ha
IMPROVED TO
under-performed in the previcus year began to show signs of positive development.
%
6.4 (o] When we presented our full year results we were pleased to report that

Adjusted earnings per share increased 9% to 12.2p
We were recommending a |3% increase in the final dwdend to 252 pence (DKK 0277) per share

> 'We had strong organic turnover growth of 7 1%

> Group turnover was up 84%* to £4,353 6 millon
AD] USTED EARNINGS > PBITA was up 10%* to £2770 million

> The group margin had improved from 6 3% to 6 4%
PER SHARE > Cash flow generation increased to £241 | milkon, BE% of PBITA from 79% in 2005
INCREASED BY >

>

* at constant exct ange rates

I would like to pay a perscnal tnbute to everyone across the orgamisation who contnbuted to the business
performance Focusing on business performance dunng a tme of incredible change can be exiremely
challenging and | am proud of the fact that we have the quality of people and a positive attitude which enables
us to deliver on our promises.
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“"WE HAVE CREATED A MARKET FACING ORGANISATICN
WHICH 1S FOCUSED ON KEY SECTORS AND ON FURTHER
DEVELOPING ATHOROUGH UNDERSTANDING OF OUR
CUSTOMERS' NEEDS™

Historical Performance Analysis

As the group has now been estabhshed since 2004 and has a performarnice history we are able to analyse our
performance in terms of histoncal trends.*

The
|

rationale for creating Group 4 Secuncor focused on five key areas:
Creaung a global leader in secunty services

2 Strong foundation for developing secunty solutions modet

3 Enhanced platform across developing markets

4 Leveraging expertse and operational flexability in cash services

5 Cost synerges

We are proud of the fact that we have achieved the goals that we set out some three years ago

I Creating the global leader in security soluuons

By bringing together the vanous aspects of the two Revenues have increased from £37 bilien in 2003
organisations we committed to becoming the global to over £4 3 billlon in 2006 and organic growth has
leader in providing secunty solutions. ncreased to 7 6% from 6 2% in just two years **

Revenue & Organic Growth Development*

£m
4500
4300
4100
3900
3760
3500

We are now the largest employer listed on the
London Stock Exchange

%
76 3 Average employee numbers from 2003-2006*
70
> 7 000
el IS
62 - 450
2 5 360
3] | ‘ z| |&
} - % é §
2 80 -
2003 2004 005 2006 %0
—— Organic Growth  [_] Revenue 0

2003 W04 005 2006

For the purposes of companson, we also show figures for 2003 and 2004 on o proforma basis, e based on the combined figures

for Secuncor plc and the secunty businesses of the former Group 4 Faldk AJS

Growth rotes have been adjusted 1o remove the effect of temporary hurmcane reloted revenues in 2004 ang 2065

e}
We are proud of
the fact that we
have achieved the
goals that we set
out some three

years ago

O

We are now the
largest employer
listed on the
London Stock
Exchange



Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Chief Executive's Review (continued)

2 Strong foundauon for developing security soluuons model
We also saw the merger as a strong foundation for developing a secunty solutions model where customer

relationships were driven by nsk management and the atility to pull together a range of specialist securty
services to manage risk, secunty and safety

In 2006 we combined our expertise In manned securtty and secunty systems under a single organisational
structure providing one secunty solutions approach to the customer By combining this approach wath our
unique geographic reach we have achieved a distinct competitve advantage

3 Enhanced platform across developing markets
Developing markets, which we define as New Markets, are playing an increasingly significant part in the groups
development They continue to grow strongly and make a substantial contnbution to the groups performance

New Markets PBITA Development*

£ %

70 4 30

0 7 - 2% In 2003 our New Markets businesses generated

50 - 8 [ ] 2 £34 milhan in profits representing |7% of the group’s
40 A 5 total In 2006 this has increased to £66 millen or

® X 0 24% of the groups total PBITA.

20

1o 5 We expect the contnbution from our New Markets
0 2003 2004 005 1006 e businesses tc accelerate in the coming years

—— PBITA % GroupTotal [ PBITA

4 Leveraging expertise and operanonal flexability in cash services
2006 was a very strong year for the performance of the cash services division This has been achieved by
spreading best practice and expertise across the group

Cash Services PRITA Development*

£m %
100 012
w0 98 __~—= 5 In 2003 the cash services business contnbuted
756 77 = 8 £56 milion 1o the groups PBITA representing a
@ s PBITA margn of 7 6%. This year, these businesses
0 4 have contnbuted almost £90 million and a PBITA
Lo} 3 margin of over 0%
0 o
2003 2004 2005 2006

—— PRITAMargn% [ PBITA

5 Cost Synergies
The final area of focus was the delivery of the synergy targets that we promised at the tme of the merger

We are very pleased that the integration of the businesses was extremely successfu! and that we achieved our
synergy targets ahead of the planned timetable

Alongside this and a strang business performance in 2006 we have focused on making sure the structures and
strategies are in place for the next phase of the groups development.

-

For the purposes of companson, we also show figures for 2003 and 2004 on o proforma bass, 1e based on the combined
figures for Secuncor plc and the security businesses of the former Group 4 Falck A/S




Group 4 Securicor | Annual Report & Accounts 2006 |3

Future Development
\We knew that there would be addwonal strategic benefits to the creation of the group over and above the
initial merger rationale

We have created a market facing orgamisation which 1s focused on key secters and on further developing

a thorough understanding of aur customers needs. With a strong underlying performance unique market
positions, excellent customer relationships and an international highly skilled senior management team we are
confident that we can take advantage of these additional strategic benefits and are optimistic about the future
of the group.

We have excellent relationships with governments in many of the countnes in which we operate — the US and
UK governments are particularty key to our future development We expect governments around the world to
become increasingly important to our organisation — both as a customer and reguiator — and we will continue

to build on cur expertise In the sector

Another key element of our future strategy will be to evaluate new service opportunties which meet the growing
needs of our customers. Secunty expertise is one of our core values and this will remain at the heart of cur
service offenng, but we intend to broaden our horizans on service development in the coming months and years

Group Targets

In 2004 we set ourseives an overali arganic growth target of 6% per year In 2006 we have exceeded that
target and delivered organic grawth of over 7% We are confident that we can continue to grow at this level
into the future and are INcreasing our minimum organic growth target to 7% for the group

]
We continue to target a PBITA margin of 7% which we believe 15 achievable within the next two to three years Security expertise 1s
one of our core values
We have had very strong cash generation in the year We are increasing our cash generation target to 85% and this will remain at
from the current 80% target. the heart of our
service offering
We announced last year our intention to increase dwvidends over tme and wall am to reduce our diwadend
cover to around 2.5 times — our target 15 to achieve this level of cover within the next two years.
Acquisitions
In 2006 we made a number of acquistions in many different countries, with a particular focus on New Markets
including Chile, Hong Kong, Guatemala, Mozambique Democratic Republic of Congo, Indonesia, Saudi Arabia
and Unrted Arab Emirates
We have already made several acquisiions i 2007 in a vanety of countres including the UK, Saudi Arabia, the
Netherlands, South Africa and the Czech Republic
Alongside our strategies for organic growth developmeant, we will continue to invest In relevant acquisitions —0

We are confident
about the future

and are therefore
targeung accelerated
growth and higher
cash generation

We expect to invest over £100 million per year in acquisiions across all service areas which prowide addrticnal
scale or expertise to our businesses or assist In consohdating fragmented markets We will also

> il appropnate geographic gaps in the secunity services businesses
> Increase our presence i new markets
> make targeted acquisitions in cash services

Summary & Cudook
We have achieved a strong set of results acress the group in 2006, with excellent growth continuing in New
Markets and strong margin progression in cash services.

We have delivered on the synerges and strategic objectves outhined at the time of the merger and are now
moving into a phase of enhanced growth and development.

We are confident about the future and are therefore targeting accelerated growth and higher cash generation
We are expecting to make good progress towards these targets in 2007 and we are excrted about the future
development of the group



Operating and Financial Review (continued)

.

Security Services

N

The security services business now comprises manned security,
security systems and justice services

(e

In Europe, we
produced organic
growth of 5 0%, with
margins of 5 8%

In the UK & ireland,
margins improved to
8 2%, mainly as a result
of good cost control

o]

The Netherlands had
another excepuonal
year, supported by a
recovering economic
environment.

WE PROVIDE SECURITY SOLUTICONS
TO AWIDE RANGE OF MARKETS,
SECTORS AND CUSTOMERS THE
SERVICES WE PROVIDE INCLUDE
MANNED SECURITY, ELECTRONIC
SECURITY, SECURITY CONSULTANCY,
ELECTRONIC MONITORING AND
SURVEILLANCE, EVENT SECURITY
AND TRANSIT SECURITY

Qur secunty services mode! 1s bult on our broad
range of specialist services, which enables us to
manage nsk, securty and safety for our customers
This combined securty solutions coffering, under one
organisational structure and In tandem with our
diverse geographic reach allows us to prowde
customers with a unique approach

in 2006 secunty services achieved organic growth of
69% and margins were maintaned at 6 2%, despite
tough comparatives in 2005 and some pressure in
Europe in the first half of the year

In Europe, we produced organic growth of 5 0%,
with margins of 5 8%, compared to 59% in 2005

There was modest organic growth in the UK &
Ireland dunng the year with negative growth at the
half year but growth in the last quarter of 2006 at

over 6%, Margins improved to 8 2% mainly as a result
of good cost cantrol We saw strong demand in
Justice services relating to increased volumes in cur
electraruc montonng cartract and at HMP Parc

In addiion we won several contracts for higher
margin project work dunng the fourth quarter which
15 evidence of our high levels of customer service

The management structures of UK secunty services
and justice services were merged at the end of the
year to create a market facing, customer focused
business, Growth in the UK will be achieved by
targeting specfic market segments and customers.
These target segments nclude retail, faciities
management, events, aviation and ral & marttime

We will also use the public sector expertise of the
Justice serwices business as a platform for moving nte
the provision of servces to new areas of government,
for example defence nuclear the Foreign Cffice the
courts the Department for International Developrent
and UK embassies around the world

The Netherlands had ancther excepional year
supported by a recovenng econcmic environment,
despite the renegotiation of our justice services
contract in the pnor year The business achieved
double-digrt organic growth and improved margins
and won several important contracts with mutt-
national organisations including a mayor international
ol & gas company The business was also successful
in winning significant project work, ncludng some
training actvty for the prison system and the
transportation network.
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Turnover PBITA Margins Organic
* At constant £m £m Growth
exchange rates 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006
Europe * 17921 16957 1045 1005 58% 59% 50%
North Amenca * 1,0499 9932 627 592 60% 60% 54%
New Markets * 6386 5351 484 384 76% 73% 16 1%
Total Securtty Services * 34806 32180 2156 1981 62% 52% 69%
Exchange diffierences - 298 - 33
At actual exchange rates 34806 132478 2156 2014

Belgium continued to perform well and the business
was successful in increasing the scope and actvities of
several important exisung contracts, in particular for
some high profite poliical organisations Denmark
achieved good organic growth and margins,
supported by ancther strong performance from its
market-leading systems business which implemented
the cauntrys largest ever systems project dunng the
year Sweden was impacted by some contract losses,
but these were partially offset by several good
contract wins dunng the year A new management
team is In place and we are well positoned to take
advantage of our unique capability of offenng
customers combined securtty solutions The Balues
had another strong year wath double-digt organic
growth and high margins, driven by some large
contract \wing with Finrush retailers and our wide
range of services in the region

France defivered good organic growth, but a
restructuring programme and on-going wage
pressures had some mpact on margins Nevertheless,
with a naw management team in place a high qualty
customer base and a strong product offering, there 1s
much potential for margin progression in the future
We are currently prepanng for a national ficensing
programme, which we expect to be implemented

at the end of 2007

Greece won several important contracts dunng the
secand half partally offsetting some matenal contract
reductions earlier in the year one of which had a
sizeable associated termination cost. We saw an
increase in labour costs during the year as a result

of new social secunty laws but a new collective
bargaining agreement has been signed and 15
expected to benefit the industry going forward

—0

Belgium continued to
perform well and the
business was successful
in increasing the scope
and acuviues of several
existing contracts

Q
The Baltics had
another strong year
with double-digit
organic growth and
high margins



Operating and Financial Review (continued)

(continued)

Securtty Services

e,
In the United States
we won some large
contracts In the
commercial sector
together with additional
business from existing
customers

O

Canada had a good
year, supported by
project work and
some large national
contract wins

o

In New Markets,
organic growth
continued to be strong
at 16 1%, with margins
increasing to 7 6%

Despite a challenging sooo-political environment

in Israel last year, good progress 1s being made 1
finalimng a new collective bargaining agreement.

In addition our electronic monitorng contract
continued to grow Our systems business had an
excellent year as we maintained our position as the
sole suppher of integrated securtty solutions, In 2007,
sigrificant combined secunty services and cash services
contracts have been won in Turkey and Romana,
the latter for a key pubkc sector institunon

North America delivered another year of good
argare growth and margins n 2006 Excluding
turnover related to tugh levels of short term
response work after Hurncane Katnna duning 2005
and early 2006 undertnng organic growth was
around B% for the year as a whole, and particulary
strong in the fourth quarter of 2006 at 0%,
measured on the same basis. Margins were
mantaned at 6.0%, despite the tough comparable
numbers in 2005

In the United States whilst the market continued to
be very competitive we won some large contracts
dunng the second half in the commercial sactor
together with additional business from exsting
customers. We also achieved increased manming
levels at a number of nudear power plants. In the
government sector, we won a contract 1o provde
secunty and transit services at the Mesacan border
Marpns were maintained compared to the previous
year despite stronger pressure on lzbour rescurces

resulting in higher levels of un-billed overtime for
much of 2006 Good management of risk, cams,
inadent losses and healthcare programmes mitigated
these overtime cost Increases.

Canada had a good year supported by project
work won dunng the year and some large national
contract wins in the fourth quarter including with
a maor car manufacturer and a mult-aational [T
services orgamisation

We have had a presence in many developing markets
for nearly 50 years ensuning that, as well as being a
glabal organisation we have an expertise sutted to
local markets and an understanding of local cuttural
and sooal ssues. In these countnes, where customers
generally tend to buy an array of products and
services, we are well placed to offer thern a full range
of security solutions to meet ther requirements.

In New Markets, organic growth continued to be
strong at | 6.1%, with margins increasing to 7 6%.

The Middle East achieved 21% organic growth with
margins of nearly 9%, as our market-leading positon
in the region continued to have a positive Impact.
On-going nvestment in countnes ke the UAE and
Saudi Arabia continues {0 benefit the group, as a
growing number of companies rely on us as a key
suppher of a range of secunty and cash services,
Qur contract in Iraq continued to perform in line
with our expectations.
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Laun America saw 20% organic growth with margins
mproving to 5%. There was excellent organic growth
in Argenuna dnven by several important contract
wins, Including a large systems installation and solid
margin progression supported by an on-going focus
on cantract eficency Guatemala generated double-
digt organic growth and margins, partly as a result of
an acquisition which was completed and integrated
during the year Colombia had a good year due to a
strong performance from its toll service business and
as a result of increased cerporate investment in the
local economy by both domestic and international
comparies The Carnbbean region performed
strongly as it contnued to offer its services across

an expanding geographic base

Africa produced good organic growth of 9%, with
margins of 8% South Africa, our largest business

in the region had a challenging year due to a
restructuring of the business, completed at the start
of the year, and the indirect impact of industry-wide
strke action, which was settled during the first half
A long term union agreement Is now In place ang
the business 15 extremely well placed going forward
Kenya, Botswana and Namibia produced excellent
arganic growth with solid margin improvements
due to the businesses unique offenng of combined
secunty solutions. Nigena also had a strong year
drven by our actvities in the thriving local

energy sector

Asia achieved exceptional organic growth of |7%
and good margin progression to 8% Our market-
leading posmtion and prominent reputation, as well
as our wide range of service offenngs continued
to have a benefical impact in India, where strong,
double-digit growth and good margin iImprovements
were achieved in Hong Kong we continued to
win a number of small to medium-sized contracts,
ensunng the business 1s on a firm platform going
forward Macau performed extremely well as we
continued to see the benefits of the country’s
burgeoning tounst industry

Q
Latin America
saw 20% organic
growth with margins
improving to 5%

Q
Asia achieved
exceptional organic
growth of 17%
and good margin
progression to 8%
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Cash Services

G_

The UK & lreland
saw continued good
growth and further
margin development,
supported by several
significant contract
wins

Good margins were
maintained in the
Netherlands and the
business achieved
some important
contract renewals

O

There were strong
performances in
Sweden, Belgium, the
Baltics and Hungary

WE ARE ONE OF THE LEADING
GLOBAL PROVIDERS OF A RANGE
OF CASH SERVICES SOLUTIONS,
INCLUDING THE TRANSPORTATION
AND MANAGEMENT OF CASH,
ATM MANAGEMENT, ENGINEERING
AND REPLENISHMENT AND FULLY
QUTSOURCED CASH CENTRE
MANAGEMENT

Investment in technology 1s a key pnorty for us,

as It enables us to enhance our secunty procedures,
improve our eficency and dnve product
development. all of which berefit our customers.

We can utilise our lezding-edge technology our wealth
of expenence and our industry knowledge to support
our customers anound the world, as different markets
progress through the vanous phases of development
i cash serwices. This enables s to provide customers
with Innovative cash solutions including the
management of ATM networks, ATM engineenng
services and fully outsourced cash processing

In 2006, cash services produced strong organic
growth of 7 6%, compared to 6.2% in the prior year
whilst margins increased to 10 1% from 9 8%,

Overall organic growth in Europe increased to 6 7%,
from 5 8% in the pror year, with margins increasing
to 10 4%, from 9 7% in 2005 The UK & lretand

saw contnued good growth and further margin
development, supported by several significant
contract wins with major retatlers and banks

ATM and cash processing performed particularty
well, and we contnued to offer new services such as
helpdesk monitanng and cash forecasting to existing
customers. Whilst attack levels increased on the prigr
year, good progress 15 being made n reducing attacks
In certain regions and we continue to develop new
technologies to reduce attack losses We have
commenced the pilot of our retal cash management
solution ane of several significant growth
opportunities going forward

Good margns were mantaned n the Netherlands
and the business achieved some important contract
renewals, winning 100% of all tendered exisung
contracts. Duning the year we also supported two
maor exsing customers with end-to-end ATM
salutions, dunng an intensive roll-out of their ATM
networks In Sweden we saw a decline in attacks,
due to an increased nvestment in secunty with alt
vehides now using intelligert systems. Cur business
delivered further margn progression and we won

a number of contracts dunng the year the most
significant being a major Swedish financial instrtution
which commenced in 2007 There were strong
performances elsewhere in Europe duning the year —
n particufar Belgium, the Balucs and Hungary saw
robust organic growth with good margin
improvements

Dunng December 2006, we reached agreement

to dwvest our cash services business in Germarry
The market had become increasingly challenging and
the situation had developed into a distracton for
drsional managernent, Given the disadvantageous
impact the business was having on our divisional
results, we Delieve disposal was the most
appropnate option
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Turnover PBITA Margins Organic )

* At constant £m £m Growth

exchange rates 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006
Europe * 6617 6194 687 599 10 4% 7% 67%
North Amenca * 851 805 18 30 1% 37% | 7%
New Markets * 1260 921 17 4 154 138% [55% 18 5%
Total Cash Services * 8730 7990 879 783 101%  98% 76%
Exchange differences - ()] - 0o
At actual exchange rates 8730 7979 B79 783

In North America, there was organic growth of 2%
in Canada, compared to negatve growth of 5% in the
prior year, with margins decreasing to 2% from 37%
in 2005 The market continued to be challenging due
to aggressive pricing from some of our competitors
and profitability was impacted by increased operating
costs following a major robbery in 2005 Nevertheless
we were awarded some important contract renewals
from major Canadian banks and we are optimistic
about the medium term outiook.

New Markets delvered strong orgaruc growth of
18 5%, compared to 19 8% in the pror year, with
margns of |4%, compared to 15% in 2005 Asia
saw good organic growth and margin progression
Qur businesses continued to be successiul in prowding
customers with enhanced product offenngs as the
market dynarmics in vanous countnes, snctuding
Malaysia and Indonesia, become further advanced
In Hong Kong, whilst the market 1s less developed
we continue to benefit from being the only major
provider of a full range of cash services.

The Middle East delivered ancther outstanding
performance The regon expenenced double-digit
organic growth and margins as a result of our market-
leading postion and the on-going favourable economic
conditions in the regon. In particular UAE, Saudh
Arabla and Qatar delvered exceptional resulis.

Africa achieved another excellent year of organic
growth, buoyed by a particularly strong performance
n Kenya, Marocco had a challenging year, partly as

a result of new legslation surrounding the cash
management market resuting in an asset witte-down
In February 2007, we announced the acquistion of a
majonty stake in Fidelity Cash Management Services
{PTY) Ltd Thrs acquisitan provides the group with

a cash services presence in South Africa for the

first tme, as well as growing our exposure Lo other
markets, nduding Botswana, Namibia and Lesotho
thereby increasing the potential for cross-sellng
apportunities N these markets

Asia saw good
organic growth and
margin progression

The Middle East
delivered an
outstanding

performance, while
Africa achieved
another excellent year
of organic growth
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Trevor Dighton
Chief Financal Officer

P -.{-}J/)T_

Financial Review

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are presented i accordance
with applicable law and Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards, as adopted by the £ ( IFRS ")
The group’s significant accounting policies are detaled
In note 3 on pages 54 to &1 and those that are most
criucal andfor require the greatest level of judgement
are discussed in note 4 on page 62

Operaung results

The overall results are commented upen by the
chairman in his statement and operational trading 15
discussed In the operating review on pages 10 to |9
Profit from operations before amortsation of
acquismon-related intangble assets and exceptional
terms (PBITA} amounted to £2770m, an increase of
B 6% on the £255 0m in 2005 and an increase of
100% at constant exchange rates

Associates

Included within PBITA 15 £2.8m {2005 £53m) in
respect of the groups share of profit from associates,
principally from the business of Space Gateway n the
LS which prowides safety seraces to NASA Cash
flow from assccates was £2.7m in 2006, compared
to £123m in 2005

Acquisitions and acquisiion-related intangble assets
Investment in acquisttons in the year amounted to
£98 4m, of which £95 7m was a cash outflow ang
£27m 15 deferred consideration This investment
generated goodwil of £680m and other acquistion-
related intangible assets (customer-related) of £222m
Larger acquisiuons included the purchase of controling
interests in the manned security services provider
Servicios Generales in Chile and the securty servces
and cash services business of Al Maal Securtty Serwices
i Saudi Arabia, and an increase n the groups interest
in United Arab Emirates. £21 Om of the acquistbon

spend was on the reduction of minority interest shares
n businesses that were already fully-consolidated

The contnbution made by acquisiions 1o the results
of the group dunng the year s shown in note 17 on
page 72 The charge for the year for the amortisation
of acguisiuon-related ntangible assets other than
goodwill amounted to £36 0m Goodwall 15 not
amortised Acquistion-related ntangibie assets included
in the balance sheet at 3| Decermber 2006 amounted
to £1,170%9m goodwill and £2206m other

Exceptional items

There were no exceptional tems in the year An
expense of £18 2m was incurred in 2005 In respect
of restructunng costs consequential upon acquistions.

Financing 1tems

Finance income was £81 2m and finance costs
£1222m giving a net finance cost of £4) Om Net
interest payable on net debt was £42 0m This 1s an
ncrease of 23% over the 2005 cost of £34 2m due
principally to the nsing costs of borrowing and the
increase in the group's average gross debt. The
group s average cost of gross borrowings in 2006 was
4 6% compared to 42% in 2005 The cost based on
prevaling nterest rates at 31 December 2006 was
52% Also included within finanaing 1s a net iIncome
of £10m (2005 cost of £49m) in respect of
mavements in the groups net pension obligatons

Taxation

The taxaton charge of £67 5m prowided on profit
from operations before exceptional tems and
amortisation of acquisition-related intangble assets
represents a tax rate of 28 6%, compared to 31 2%
n 2005 We believe that an effective tax rate of
28-29% 15 sustainable going forward The amorusation
of acquisition-related intangible assets gives nse

to the release of an equivalent proporticn of

the deferred tax liabirty established when the
assets are acquired, amounting to £108m
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In addition a tax charge of £1 3m has been included
within the results from discontinued operations.
Potential tax assets i respect of losses amounting
to £86 3m have not been recogrised as their
utihsation 15 uncertain,

Disposals and discontinued operanons

On 22 December 2006 the group agreed the terms
for the drestment of G45 Geld-und Wertdenste
GmbH 1ts cash services business In Germany On

18 December 2006 the group disposed of its US
transportation business, being the remaining business
of Cogrusa. The loss from discontinued operations
of £33 4m compnses £19 4m in respect of post-tax
trading losses of discontinued businesses and £19 2m
in respect of disposal losses offset by a £52m
adjustment in respect of pror year disposals.

Businesses disposed of in 2005 included the manned
security business of Falck Nederland, the Secuncor
operations in Luxembourg, a cash services business
in Scctland and the secunty seraces operations of
Cogrisa. The disposal of all but the last named of
these businesses was required by the European
Commissicn as a condition for thewr approval of the
combination in 2004 between Group 4 Falck and
Secuncor During the disposal process the group had
only restrcted control over these operations and
their results were therefore not consolidated The
loss from discontinued operations in 2005 of £13 Im
compnses £6.2m i respect of trading losses of both
the 2005 and the 2006 disposals and £69m In
respect of disposal losses

The cash proceeds from business disposals in 2006
were £99m, compnising £6 7m in respect of the
Cogrisa transportation business and £3 2m in
respect of prior year disposals, The contnbution to
the turnaver and operating profit of the group from
discontinued operations is shown in note 6 on pages

63 to 66 and their contnbution to net profit and cash

florws 5 detaded in note 7 on page 67

Profit for the period

Profit for the year was £109 9m, compared to
£90 7rm in 2005 The pnincipal reasons for the
ncrease in profit were the £22.0m increase in
operating profit in 2006 ard the exceptional costs
of £18.2m incurred in 2005, offset by the £20 3m
higher loss from discontinued operations in 2006

Minority interests

Profit attnbutable to munonty interests was £134m
in 2006 compared to £99m in 2005, the increase
reflecting minonty partner shares in the groups
organic and acquisitive growth

Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share from continuing and
discontinued operations was 7 6p for 2006 compared
to 64p for 2005 These earmings are unchanged when
calculated on a fully diuted basis, which allows for the
potental impact of outstanding share options

Adjusted earnings, as analysed in note |6 on page 71,
excludes amartisation of acquistion-related intangble
assets, exceptional tems, penston finanaing rtems and
far value adjustments to financtal instruments, all net
of tax, and better allows the assessment of operational
performance the analysis of trends over tme the
companson of different businesses and the projaction
of future performance Adjusted earrungs per share
was | 2.2p for 2006, an increase of 89% over |1 2p
for 2005

Dividends

The directors recommend a final dmdend of 2.52p
{DKK 0 2766) per share This represents an increase
of 125% on the final dwidend for the year to

3| December 2005 of 2 24p (DKK 02435) per
share The intenm dwidend was | 6%p (DKK 0 1863)
per share and the total dwdend if approved, will

be 421p (DKK 04629) per share, representing an
increase of 189% over the 3 54p (DKK 0 3865)

per share total dwdend for 2005

In proposing this final dadend the board considered
both the appropnate level of dvdend cover and the
future sirategy and prospective earnings of the group
Dmdend cover in the current year 1s 2.9 times, based
on adyusted profit We reaffirm our intention to
increase dnadends so as to reduce dmidend cover

to around 2.5 times with a target of attairing this
level wathin two years.
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Q
Basic earnings per
share from continuing
and discontinued
operations was 7 6p
for 2006 compared to
6 4p for 2005

O

We reaffirm our
Intenton to ncrease
dividends so as to
reduce dividend cover
to around 2 5 times,
with a target of
attaining this level
within two years
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Financial Review (continued)

Cash flow

The pnmary cash generation focus of group management

15 on the percentage of operating profit converted nta cash,
The group target over the last 3 years has been an 80%
conversion rate Operating cash flow for 2006 as defined for
management purposes, was as follows.

2006 2005
£m fm

PBITA 770 1550
Less share of profit from associates (28) (53)
PBITA before share of profit from
assoviates (group PBITA) 2742 1497
Deprecation and amortisation
of ntangible assets other than
acquision-related intangble assets 1 Bl4
Increase in working caprtal and
provisions before exceptional tems {417) {433)
Net cash flow from capital expenditure {82 5) (898)
Operating cash flow 21411 1980
Operating cash flow as a percentage
of group PBITA 88% 79%

Workng capital increased in both 2006 and 2005 due
pnncipally ta the growth in tumover Capital expenditure
was tightly controlled at 9% of depreciation {2005 109%)
Overali operating cash generation for the year was good asa
result of improving financial discipline across the organisavon

The group has increased its ongoing target for operating
cash generation from 80% to 85% and believes that this
allows for the investment necessary to support the groups

growth targets.

The management operating cash flow caledlabion 1s reconciled
to the net cash from operating activities as disdosed in
accordance with LAS7 Cash Flow Statements as follows.

2004 2005
£m £m

Cash flow from aperating actmues
{IAS7 defirvtion) 197 1 1745
Net cash flow from capital expenditure (82 5) (898)
Add-back cash fiow from exceptional
tems and discontinued operations 320 97
Add-back additional pension
contnbutions 242 150
Other tems - 56
Add-back tax pad 703 530
Operating cash flow (G45 defimton) 241 ) 1980

Operating and Financial Review (continued)

The group's free cash flow; as defined by management 15
analysed as follows.

2006 2005

£m fm

Operating cash flow 241 | 1580
Net anterest pad (47 8) {38 1)
Tax pad (70:3) {530
New finance leases (19 6) {207)
Cther tems - 58
Free cash flow 103 4 806

Free cash flow 15 reconciled to the total movement in net
debt as follows.

2006 2005
£m m

Free cash flow 103 4 B0 6
Cash flow from exceptional tems
and discontinued operations {320) (357
Additonal pension contrbutions {24 2) (150)
Net cash outflow on acquisitions {95 7} (680)
Net cash inflow from disposals 99 421
Net cash flow from associates 27 123
Divdends paid to mingnty nterests (30} (51)
Share issues less share purchases 60 (107)
Dinndends pad to equity holders of
the parent (49 8) (399)
Net cash flow from hedging financial
nstruments e -
Mavement in net debt in the year (70 9) {434}
Foreign exchange translation
adjustments to net debt 554 (27 5)
Net debt at | January (657 3) (5864)
Net debt at 31 December (672 8) (657 3)

Net debt represents the groups total borrowings less cash,
cash equwalents and liquid investments. The components of
net debt are detaled in note 37 on page 93

Financing and treasury actvities

The group’s treasury function 1s respongible for ensunng the
avalability of cost-effectve finance and for managing the group’s
fnancial nsk ansing from currency and interest rate volatity
and counterparty credit. Treasury 1$ not a profit centre and is
not permitted to speculate in fnancal instruments The treasury
department’s poliies are set by the board Treasury is subject
to the controls appropnate to the risks it manages. These risks
are discussed i note 31 on pages 82 to 83
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Financing

The groups pnmary source of finance 15 a £1bn
mutticurrency revolng credit facilty prowded by a
consortium of lending banks at a margn of 0225%
over Libor Dunng 2006, the lending barks exercised
their options 10 extend the term of this faolity to
28 June 2011 A further option process is exercisable
in the period 90 days prior tc 28 June 2007 and if
the options are exercised the facility wall mature on
28 June 2012. On 1 February 2007 an addtional
bank added a further £87m to the revohang credit
facility on the same terms.

The group has other available facikties of £3%3 5m

On | March 2007 to further dversify its saurces
of funding and lengthen the maturity of its debt,
the group completed a $550m private placement
of unsecured senuor loan notes, wath matunty and
nterest as follows.

Interest
Value rate Maturity
tm * date
Sernes A 100 577 March 2014
Senes B” 200 586 March 2017
Senies 'C 145 596 March 2019
Seres' D 105 6.06 March 2022

The proceeds of the issue were used to reduce
drawings against the revolng credit bank facility

At the time of receipt the group had, in accordance
with treasury policy, converted 55% of ts US Dollar
nterest exposure from floating rates inte fixed rates
through interest rate swaps. Therefore, the fixed
nterest rates payable on the notes were swapped
nto floating rates, at an average margn of ¢ 60%
over Libor, so that the proporton of group debt
held under fixed interest rates remained at 55%.
The groups net debt at 31 December 2006 of
£672.8m represented a geanng of 69%. The group
has sufficent borrowing capacity to finance growth

Interest raves

The group s Investments and barrowangs at

31 December 2006 were at vanable rates of interest
linked to Libor and Eunbor, with the groups exposure
being predominantly to interest rate nsk in US Dollar
and Euro The loan notes 1ssued in March 2007 bear
interest at fixed rate The groups interest nsk policy
requires treasury to fix a proportion of net debt on
a shding scale with a maxarnum of 80% short term
debt held at fixed rates, reducing to a maxamum

of 20% of medwrn term debt held at fixed rates,
utihsing interest rate swaps, The matunty of interest
rate swaps at 31 December 2006 was limited to

five years. The market value of swaps outstanding

at 31 Decernber 2006 was £] 9m.

Foreign turrency

The group has many overseas subsidianes and
assogates denominated in vanous different
currences. Treasury policy 1s to manage sigmficant
translation risks In respect of net operating assets
and income denominated in foreign currencies
The methods adopted are to use borrowings
dencminated 1n foreign currency supplemented
by forward foreign exchange contracts.

The main currency movement dunng 2006 was
the declne in the US Dollar from $1 72 = £1 at
31 December 2005 to $!196=£1 at 31 December
2006, impacting not only the groups doflar-
denominated assets but also assets denominated

in New Market currencies which follow the doltar
Exchange differences on the trarslation of foreign
operations included 10 the statement of recognised
income and expense amount to a loss of £31 (m
(2005 gan of £303m) These differences include a
£55 4m gain (2005 £275 loss) on the retranslaticn
of net debt, an £11 8m cash inflow (2005 nl) from
forward exchange contracts and an £11 6m gan
(2005 £6.2m loss) on the market valuation of
outstanding forward contracts. The market value of
forward contracts outstanding at 31 December 2006
was £54m

Cash management

To increase the efficent management of the groups
interest costs and sts short term deposts, overdrafts
and revoiving credit faclity drawangs, the group
completed implementation of a ghobal cash
management system during 2006 At 3| December
2006, 65 group companies partcpated in the posl
with the number continuing to grow Credd balances
of £783m and debit balances of £75 2m were held
within the cash pool IFRS does not permnt the
netung off of these balances, which are therefore
disclosed gross within current assets and habiliues,
To obtain additional cash managemeant benefits,
particularly within New Markets, further cash pools
will be established dunng 2007

Pensions

The group's pnmary funded defined benefit pension
schemes are those operated in the UK, but it also
operates such schemes in the Netherlands, Ireland
and Canada The latest full actuanal assessmenits of
the UK schemes were camed out at 31 March 2004
n respect of the Group 4 scheme (approamately

8,000 members) and at 5 Apni 2006 In respect of the

Secuncor scheme (approsimately 20,000 members)
These assessments and those of the group's other
schemes have been updated to 31 December 2006
induding the review of longevity assumptions.
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On | March 2007,
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its sources of funding,

the group completed
a $550m private
placement of
unsecured senior
loan notes

0
To increase the
efficient management
of the group’s interest
costs and its short
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overdrafts and
revolving credit facility
drawings, the
group completed
implementation
of a global cash
management system




Financial Review (continued)

The group's funding shortfall on the valuation basis speafied
in |AS19 Employee Benefits was £226m before tax aor £158m
after tax (2005 £217m and £152m respectvety)

The value of the assets in the funds increased by £120m
dunng 2006, continuing the trend of 2005 However this

was counteracted by a reducuon in the bond rates used to
discount habiities for IAS(9 purposes, and by an increase in
inflation assumptions. We believe that, over the very long term
n which pension labilbes become payable investment returns
should elirminate the defiat in the schemes in respect of past
service labilies. However in recognition of the regulatory
obligation upon pension fund trustees to address currently
reported deficits, additional cash contnbutions into the two
man UK schernes of around £24m are being made in 2007
Such addibonal contnbutions wall be reviewed annually and
reassessed formally at the next actuanal valuation dates,
which are 5 Apnl 2009 in respect of the Secuncor scheme
and 3| March 2007 in respect of the Group 4 scheme,

Corporate governance

The group's polices regarding nsk management and corporate
governance are set out in the Corporate Governance
Statement on pages 36 to 38

Golng toncern

The directors are confident that, after making enquines and on
the basis of current financial projections and available facilities,
they have a reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to continue In operational existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements.

Resks

All businesses are subject to nsk and many individual nsks
are macro-economic or social and commaon across many
businesses. Many nisks are to a greater or lesser degree
controllable, but some are not controllable, Through s
internal nsk management process, the group identfies
business-specific nsks It classifies the key nsks as thase which
could matenally damage the groups strategy reputation
business, profitability or assets and these nsks are listed below
This hist 15 10 no partcular order and 15 not an exhaustve

hst of all potentiat nsks. Some nsks may be unknown and it
may transpire that others, currently considered immatenal,
become matenal

Operating and Financial Review (contnued)

| Price competiuon

The security ndustry comprises a number of very competitive
markets In particular manned security markets can be
fragmented with relatvely low economic barrers to eniry
and the group competes with a wide vanety of operators of
varying sizes. Actions taken by the group s competitors may
place pressure upon its pncng margins and profitability

2 Major changes in market dynamics

Such changes in dynamics could include new technologies,
government legistation or customer consohdation and could
particuladly f rapid or unpredictable wnpact the groups
revenues and profitabiity

3 In-sourcing by customers

Qutsourting actties carmed out by the group include cash
processing and cash management functions on behalf of
financial instriutions, manned securtty on behalf of a range

of different customers and justice serices on behalf of
government instututions If the trend towards such outsourcing
were for any reason to be reversed, the group’s revenue and
profitabiity may be adversely affected

4 |nappropnate investment decisions

Were the group to make acquisitions or caprtal expenditures
that were inapproprate to its strategy or over-priced, or take
on excessively onercus contractual obligations the groups
profitability and returns on capital may be adversely affected

5 Cash losses

The group 1s responsible for much of the cach held on behalf
of its customers Increases in the value of cash lost through
criminal attack may increase the costs of the groups
insurance Were there 1o be failures in the contro! and
reconcihation processes in respect to customer cash these
could also adversely affect the groups profitability

6 IT systems

The group makes widespread use of [T systems both for
operational management, including tasks such as scheduling
and route-planning, and for financial management, including
calculating employee wages and billing customers. Falture

in these systerns, along with the failure of business continuity
procedures in the event of physical damage to or inaccessibility
of day-to-day operating systems, could result in reputational
damage and the loss of revenue and profitability
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7 Deteriorauon in labour relations

The groups most significant asset 15 its farge and
committed work force Were the current good
relationships between the group and s employees to
become strained the group's operational performance
and reputation may be adversely affected

8 Defined benefit pension schemes

A prolonged penod of poor asset returns and/or
unexpected increases In longewity could require
increases in the current levels of addtional cash
contributions to defined benefit pension schemes,
which may constrain the group's ability to take
advantage of growth opportunities

9 Terrorist attacks

The group cperates in an industry which 1s
sometmes involved In seeking to protect its
customers against acts of termonsm Were terrorist
inadents in the future to involve premises or events
for which the group I1s contracted to provide security
they could resutt in brand and reputational damage
and so affect earrings and profitabibty

10 Regulatory requirements

Securty can be a high-profile industry There 15 a wide
and ever-changing varmety of regulations applicable

to our businesses across the world Changes in such
regulations may adversely affect the groups revenues
and profitability

Risk management

The group has a robust nsk assessment and control
process in place to dentfy and mitigate the
controllable nsks faced by the organisation Mrtigation
measures include

| The group’s diversity

The group operates around |50 businesses across
over 100 countres and across a range of product
areas. Most of the nisks detalled above are market-
specific and therefore, any particular issue could onlty
impact part of the group’s operations.

2 Management structure

The group cperates a management structure that 1
appropnate to the scale and breacth of its actties
Buginess performance and strategies are reviewed
continuously by regional dasional and group
management. Potential 1ssues requinng management
attention are therefore identified and there 15 a
wide range of expertise available thraughout the
orgamisation which s utilised as necessary to address
these 1s5ues

3 Authorsauon procedures

The group has clear authorsation limits and
procedures which are cascaded throughout the
organisation For example all acquistion proposals
have to be submitted for approval to the group
capex committee, assessed against the group's return
requirements, evaluated for nsk and subject to
approprate due diligence

4 Group standards

Each of the group's businesses applies the systems
and procedures appropnate 1o its size and
complexity However the group requires that these
conform to group standards n respect of matters
such as operational and financial controls financial
reporung, business continurty planning and project
management techniques Further standards,
particularly i respect of [T systems, are apphed

on a divisional or regional basis

5 Internal audit
The Internal Audit department operates under a
wide remit, which includes ensuring adherence to

group authonsation procedures and conitrol standarnds.

6 Market engagement

Most of the nsks to which the group s exposed
are market nsks. So as to better understand and
influence the market, the group I1s committed to

a policy of proactive engagement across its geographic

range with customers, industry asscciations,

government regulators and employee representatives.
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The group has a
robust risk assessment
and control process
in place to identify
and mitigate the
controlfable risks
faced by the
organisation

o]
The group 15
committed to a
policy of proactive
engagement with
customers, industry
associations,
government regulators
and employee
representatives
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Our People

OUR PEOPLE ARETHE KEY
BUILDING BLOCK FOR
OUR FUTURE SUCCESS

e

The strength and depth
of the leadership team
in ‘G45 underpins our
success as a global
industry leader

<

We believe it 15
possible to nurture
many of our future
leaders from within
the orgamisation

e,

We believe that long-
term partnerships with
employees and thetr
representatives can
help us raise standards
wherever we operate

Leadership culure

The strength and depth of the leadership team n
(45 underping our success as a global industry
leader and enables us to delver first class
performance year after year QOur position in the
market helps us attract dnven talented indrduals,
allowang us to be very selective about who joins our
organisation We invest heavily (n making the nght
seror appantments because once these people join
us, we find they want to stay and a good long-term
match is therefore essental to both parties In returm
for accepting the challenge of working in such a
dynamic ambstious group we provide these business
leaders with highly competitive reward packages
which reflect their personal performance as well

as the business results they deliver Moreover as
indanduals, they enjoy the geruine satisfaction of
delivening the mght solutiens for qur customers and
find real prde n workang for our organisation

While we are proactive in recruiting the best people
externally, we believe it 1s possible and nght, to
nurture many of our future leaders from within the
organisation To help our peaple buld long-term
careers across national and cultural boundanes,

our group-wide Leadership Programme was
launched in 2004 and now pravides a growing
stream of committed experts and managers.

This programme combines the acadermic content of
the Executve MBA from Manchester Business School
with the expertise of G45 in bulding customer-led

secunty solutions and delivenng sustainable business
results. As well as winrung awards in the wader
busness and MR communiies, the success of the
programme has been demonstrated dlearly on an
indmdual level wn the career progression of many
participants, and on an organisational level where the
growing capability and confidence of the participants
adds real value to our business. The dversity and
international reach of these future leaders - who
come from Afnica, the Amencas, Europe, Asia and the
Middle East — alsa helps us to collaborate across the
orgarsation to conbinually drive up standards » our
business, the wider industry and even the countnes
in which we cperate

Employee engagement

GA45 15 the largest employer isted on the London
Stock Exchange and ensunng our front-line teams
are attuned to our customers needs and our own
values 15 therefore essential to our future success
Qur relations with cur employees and their
representatives are extremely Important 1o us

Throughout our ocperattons we have established
global minimum standards for employee relatons,
which set out our commitment to principles

such as the ILO Core Labour Standards and

the UN Unwversal Declaraton of Human Rights,

As a business, we are fundamentally committed to
constructive socal didlogue and believe that long-term
partnerships with employees and their representatives,
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induding trade unions, can help us raise standards
wherever we operate Thus:

> We have over 70 formal union recognition
agreements around the world

> Owver half our global workforee 1s ¢covered by the
terms of a urion collective agreement

> In the US we are the most unionised company
1 the sector ~ over 30% of our employees are
trade umion members, compared to an industry
average of 13%

> In Europe we have union representation levels
of 55%, compared to an industry average of 46%

> In the UK our relationship with the GMB, ane
of the UKs largest unrons, has continued for more
than 40 years.

We are also proud of our role as an industry leader
in New Markets, where our presence supports
sustanable development as we give back to the
communites in which we operate Qur socially
respensible emplayment practices of inclusion and
drersity help posiion us as the employer of choice
n many countries, 2nd are demonstrated by
examples such as.

> South Afnca, where our commitment to Black
Economic Empowerment was demanstrated by
the creation of an employee trust which owns
13% of our business In South Afnca

> Hong Kong, where we particpate in a wide
range of programmes to prowide assistance to
people wath disabilities and to unskilled and
unemplayed workers

> Kenya where fifty employees with children are
selected each year to receve special financial
asaistance for ther chilkdrens education

> Zambia, where we run a programme of actruies
1o help relieve hardship and educate the local
communities about the affect of HIV/AIDS

With ngerous pre-employment screening and
selection techniques for our front-line stafl we are
canfident that we employ the best people in our
industry whose natural talents and drive enable them
to make a difference from the start of ther
employment. Once in the business, we am to further
develop our employees’ skills and competences,
provide them with opportunities to buld long-term
careers in the group, and inspire them to reach their
full potential The resulung growth in indmvdual and
organisationat capabiity together with markedly
higher levels of commitment from our people

have a clear; positive iImpact on general business
performance and, in particular on customer service

In New Markets,
our presence
supports sustainable
development as we
give back to the
communities 1n
which we operate

With rigorous
pre-employment
screening and
selection techmiques
for our staff, we

are confident that
we employ the

best people

We aim to develop
our employees’ skills
and competences,
provide them with
opportunities to build
long-term careers In
the group, and inspire
them to reach their
full potenual



Corporate Citizenship

(GA45 RECOGNISES ITS ETHICAL RESPONSIBILITY TO EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS, INVESTORS AND LOCAL COMMUNITIES THE GROQUP OPERATES

IN AWIDE RANGE OF COUNTRIES AROUND THE WORLD, WHERE SITUATIONS
AND ENVIRONMENTS ARE CONSTANTLY CHANGING WE ARE THEREFORE
CONTINUALLY DEVELOPING OUR CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP POLICIES,

PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

Corporate auzenship code

545 has introduced a corporate atizenship code
which seeks to establish best practice guidelnes for
all the vanous businesses within the organisation
covering a number of important ethical areas
including human nghts, health and safety employee
relabions and equal opportunities & drersity

The code reviewed every year has been distnbuted
1o dl business units within the organisation with the
obyective of setting a standard to whuch all business
units should adhere Compliance with the code

15 monrtored regularly atthough there 15 some
allowance made for geographical and cultural
differences as a result of local regulations and
business practices.

The foundation of our corporate ctizenship cade
hes with our employees. We are well aware that the
organisations future success s being drven by the
performance of our employees. Opportunities for
development within the organisation are based only
on personal performance abiity and aptitude In
additon, when selecting, recruting and developing
our employees, we am to ensure that all employees
receive the same treatment, regardless of gender
ethnicity colour age, culture mantal status religon,
sexual onentation or disability We recogrise that
diversity and cultural differences are becoming an
important strength in our orgarusation

Respect for human nghts 15 another comerstone

of our corporate citizenship code G45 1s committed
to and supportive of the United Nations Universal
Dedaration of Human Rughts and the International
Labour Orgarusation’s Core Labour Standards. We
treat our employees in accardance with recognised
intermatonal human nghts corventians and
regulations and aim to ensure that our employees
activities do not compromuse these conmvertions.

Employee trust fund

The group has established an employee trust fund
which offers monetary support, at the discretion of
the fund's trustees, to those employees and former
emplayees n need of urgent financial assistance
Dunng 2006, the fund was utilsed throughout our
orgamisation in countnes as diverse as Indonesia, the
UK, Canada and the Democratic Republic of Congo.

Investing in the communizy

G45 15 currently implementing an extensive “Investing
i the Community programme, which aims to
support a range of health welfare and community
inrtiatives around the wortd and particularty in New
Market regions The foundations of this programme
are but on our culture of gmng back to the
communities in which we operate and encouraging
our employees to do the same, examples of

which are.

> In many Afrnican countries, G4S 1s working o
provide better futures for our employees, their
families and their local communities, including

> Prowding fnancial support for schools n
countres ike Mozambique and Uganda

> Supparting and assisting a community
programme in Kenya which 2ims to prowde
regular meals for around 80O children from
deprived areas

> Supplying financial and bulding maintenance
support to a children's home in Zambia
which specalises in supporting arphans whao
have lost therr parents to AIDS

> “Above and Beyond" Award, which was awarded
to The Wackenhut Corporation by an agency of
the Departrment of Defence for extraordinary
support of employees who serve in the National
Guard and Reserve
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>  The G45 Sponsorship Matching programme,
which matches funds raised directly by
employees for local community projects. This
programme effectively doubles the financial
contnbution tawards local community intiatves

> Howard League for Penal Reform "Community
Programme Award * and Natonal Mentonng and
Befnending Foundation Approved Prowider
Standard, were won by G45 Justice Sarwces for
its work in Wales, supporting short sentence
prisoners and engaging with their communities.

In conjunction with cur on-going encouragement
to indmduals and business units 1o becorne Invohved
with community projects on an ad hec basis our

' Irvesting in the Community  programme 15 key to
our corporate strategy — we feel that cur presence
helps to raise standards. In addition we believe that
this programme will conbinue to help to ¢reate
sustanable wealth for local communities around
the world

The enviranment

The man business of the group 15 involved In the
provision of security solutions personnel to our
custormers and therefore the organisation does not
have a significant direct impact on the ermvronment.
However there are a number of areas in which
the group focuses on further reducing its
ervironmental impact.

Energy usage —We aim to maximise energy
canservation through the adopbon of best practices.
‘Where practicable, computensed heating highting
and ventlation controls are wstalled in builldings.

Recyding & waste management ~We are committed
to recyching of matenals where possible and where
the means to recyde materals exast. This includes
the recycling of cash bags, undorms, wner cartndges,
paper and paper-based products.

The group has an intemational fleet of cash carrying
vehicles which are equipped with a vanety of unique
security measures, making them difficult to reuse in
other areas once ther life cycle has been completed
However, G4S Cash Services (UK) donates expired
vehicles 1o an organisation which make use of any
spare parts and then recydes the remaning shell

of the vehicle for future ndustnal use

Use of emaronmentally frendly products - The group
complies wath the relevant standards on vefude
emissions and encourages business units 1o use diesel
or unleaded petrol to fuel vehicles. Fuel conservation
15 achieved through enhanced vehicle design and
regular maintenance 1o ensure appropnate levels

of health and safety and to minimise any impact on
the emaronment through inefficent fuel management
and emissions.

Paper products — Where possible, the group makes
use of emaronmentally frendly products and services.
At the group level any major pnnting projects such
as the annual report and accounts, intenm reports
and customer magazines are printed on paper

which 15 praduced in accordance wath ISO 1400
environmenttal certfication and 1s elementary chlonne
free Business units throughout the organisation are
encouraged to use environmentally frendly products
where possible

(o

The group I1s currently
implementing an
extensive “Investing In
the Community™
programme, which aims
to support a range of
health, welfare and
COMMUNITY INItIatives
around the world

The group has
established an
employee trust fund
which offers monetary
support to those
employees and former
employees in need

of urgent financial
assistance
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Board of Directors

™

All Duch-Pedersen (60)

Chairman

He was appointed to the board of the company

n July 2004 on completion of the merger batwsen
Securcor and Group 4 FakK's securty businesses.
having been a member of the board of Group 4 Falck
AJSS from 2000 He joined the board of Falck A/S in
1992 and was tts chaimman when it merged with
Group 4 A5 in 2000 He 15 charman of the boand of
Danske Bank Akuieseiskab, a member of the beard of
the Techrucal University of Denmark, chairman of the
Brtish Import Union and a member of the general
counal of the Confederation of Danish Industnes.
He: became chairman of the board and of the
Nomination Committee in july 2006

.

Nick Buckles (46)

Chief Executive

He joined Secuncor in 1985 as a projects accountant.
In 1996 he was appoirted managing director of
Securicor Cash Serwices {UK) and he became chief
executve of the securty dmsion of Secuncorin 1999
HMe was appointed to the board of Secuncor plc in
2000 and became ts chief executve in January 2002,
He was apponted deputy chief executive and chief
operating officer of the company on complebon of
the merger between Secuncor and Group 4 Fakids
secunty businesses in July 2004 becorming chief
executve in July 2005 He 15 a non-executve director
of Armva ple

Grahame Gibson (54)

Executive director

and chief operaung officer

He was appainted to the board 1n Aprit 2005

He joined Group 4 in {983 starting as finance
director (UK) and followed by a number of senior
roles, ndluding deputy managng director (UK) wice
presxdem (corporate strategy) wce presdent (finance
and admunsstration) vice president operabions (Central
& South Eastern Europe and UK) and chef operating
officer of Group 4 Falde Following the merger
between Secuncor and Group 4 Faldes securty
businessas in July 2004 he becarme dmsional president
for Amnencas & New Markets. He was appointed chief
operating officer in Juty 2005

Trevor Dighton (57)

Cheef Financial Officer

An accountant. he joined Secuncor In 1995 after

a previous career which induded posts i both the
accountancy profession and in industry including five
years in Papua New Guinea, three years in Zamba
and seven years with BET plec He was apponted
finance director of the securty dvisicn of Secunicor
n 1997 and deputy group finance director 1n 2001
Me was appointed to the board of Secuncor plc
as group finance director in June 2002 and as chief
financial officer of the company on completian of
the merger between Secuncar and Group 4 Faldk's
securtty businesses in July 2004

Lord Condon (60}

Deputy Chairman

He was appainted 1o the board on completion

of the merger between Secuncor and Group 4 Falek’s
securtty businesses, having been a member of the
board of Secuncor plc from 2000 He joined the
Metropoitan Police n 1967 and after holding vancus
serior appointments n the: police force, including

a penod as Cheef Constable of Kent, served as
Corwrussioner of the Metropalitan Police between
1993 and 2000 Me was created a Iife peer in 2001
He became deputy charman of the board in
September 2006 and 15 charman of the Remuneration
Commuttee and a member of the Nomination
Cormmittes
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Thorleif Krarup (54)

Non-executive director

He was appointed to the board on completion of the
merger between Securcor and Group 4 Faldks securtty
businesses, having been a member of the baard

of Group 4 Faldc A/S from 2003 He 5 chairman

of Darigaard Telecom A/S deputy chairman of
Lundbedck A/S the Lundbeck Foundation LR A/S and
ALK-Abells ASS and a divector of Bang & Oiufsen AS,
1 undbeddonden and Scion DTU A/S He 15 a former
chairman of TDC (Tele Danmark Corporation) and
former group chief executive of Nykrednt ASS,
Unibank A/$ and Nardea AB. He is chairman of the
Audit Cormmittee

Bo Lererius (60)

Non-executive director

He was appointed to the board on completion

of the merger between Secuncor and Group 4 Fakk's
security businesses having been a member of the
board of Securicor plc from Apnl 2004 After a dverse
early business career; he served as chief executve

of Ermnstromgruppen a Swedish bullding matenals
operation between 1985 and 1992 when he joined
Stena Line where he was chief executive and wee
charman In 1999 he became group chief executve
of Associated Britssh Ports Holdings ple. He 15 a
non-executive director of Land Securies Group plc
and 15 deputy charman of the Swedish Chamber of
Commerce far the Unrted Kingdom. He 15 a member
of the Audit and Remuneration Commitiees

Maleolm Willamson (68)

Semor independent director

He was appointed to the board on completion of the
merger between Secuncor and Group 4 Falcks securtty
businesses having been a member of the board of
Secuncor plc from April 2004 After a 28-year career
with Barclays Bank, he became managing director of
Girobank and a member of the Post Office board in
1985 In 1989 he joined Standard Chartered ple being
group chief executve from 1993 to 1998 Between
1998 and 2004 he was president and CEQ of Visa
Internaticnal, Inc based in San Francsce He
chairman of Sigret Group ple CDC Group pic and
Natonal Australia Group Europe Limited deputy
charrman of Resolution plc and a non-executive
director of JP Morgan Cazercove Haldings and
MNaticnal Austrata Bank Limited He 15 the senior
ndependent director and a mernber of the Audtt

and Nomination Committees.

Mark Seligman (51)

Non-executive director

He was appointed to the board in January 2006.

An accountant, be spent 12 years with 5G Warburg
before jomng BZW i 1995 and then follovang the
takzover of BZW becoming head of UK Investrment
Banking at CSFB and subsequently deputy charman
of CSFB Europe in 2003 he became charman of UK
Investment Banking for CSFB stepping down in 2005
to become a senior adviser to the bank. He 15 an
alternate member of the Panel on Takeovers and
Mergers and 1s 2 director of the industnal
Development Advisory Board He 1s 2 member

of the Audt and Remuneration Committees

Mark Ellott (57)

Non-executive director

He was appointed to the board in September 2006,
He 1s General Manager Global Sohations for 1BM
Based in the USA, he joined 1BM in 1972 and has
cecupred a number of senior management positions in
that company including General Manager {BM Europe
Middle East and Africa where he was responsible for
that company’s operatkons in over |20 countnes.

He 15 a non-exscutve director of Reed-Hlsevier PLC
He 1s a member of the Remuneration Committee
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Nick Buckles

Chlef Executive

Nick has worked in the secunty industry for 22 years,
focusing throughout this time on the commercal and
strategic aspects of all areas of securtty services.

After a vanety of commercil roles throughout the
group, he was responsible for driang significant profit
mprovements i many Secuncor businesses
throughout the 19905 as a business unit managing
director and dmsional chief executive of the securtty
dvision He was also instrumental in the development
of Secuncor's securtty sector focus and in binging
together Group 4 Falck and Securicor to create the
new combined group, Nk becarme chief executve
of Group 4 Secuncor in July 2005

MNick 15 president of ESTA, the European cash
services association. He 15 also chairman of the

Ligue Intemationale des Socetes de Survellance, the
intemational association of leading secunty companies

Grahame Gibson

COO & Divisional President

— Security Services

Graharme has been involved in the securtty industry
for 24 years, having jomed Graup 4s UK operating
company In 1983 as finance director Since that trme:
Grahame has held a number of operational
management and board pastions wn the UK, Denmark,
the Netherlands and Austna. His broad expenence of
the secunty industry and management of businesses
across a dverse range of cultures has been invaluabie
to the group throughout s development. Grahame
jowed the board of Group 4 Secuncor in Apnl 2005

Grahame s a board member of the Ligue
Internationale des Societes de Survetlance

Seren Lundsberg-Nielsen

Group General Counsel

Seren began his career as a lawyer in Denmark and
since 1984 he has had a wide range of legal
expenence as general counsel for intemationat groups
n Denmark, Belaum and the LIS before joining Group
4 Faick in 2001 as general counsel Saren has been
imvolved In 3 wide range of successful mergers and
acquisibons duning his career induding the acquiskion
of Wackenhut and the merger of Group 4 Fald and
Securicor Saren now has overall respansibilrty for al
internal and external fegal services for Group 4
Securicor as well as the group's insurance programme

Seren ts a member of the Darush Bar and Law Socety
a board member of the Danish Blood Donation
Socety and author of the book ' Executive
Management Contracts  published in Dermark.

Trevor Dighton

Chlef Financial Officer

Trevor has worked in the securtty ndustry for 21
years. After several years n both the accountancy
profession 2nd commerce working i the firmance
function and general management, he joined BET
n 1985 as finance director of thewr Securty and
Comwmunicabons Drasion.

Trevor joined Secuncor in 1995 and, following

a number of years as finance director of the

secunty dvision he was appointed to the board of
Secuncar plc in june 2002 as group finance director
He became chaef financal officer of Group 4 Secuncor
n July 2004

Trevor ts a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants.

Ken Niven

Divisional President — Cash Services

Ken has |1 years expenence w the security ndustry
having joned Secuncor in 1996 as operations director
of the LK cash services business where he was later
promoted (0 managing director and was instrumental
n the development of new product areas, nduding
cash centre outsourang and establishing Securicor’s
independent ATM network.

Ken was appointed to his current role in Juty 2004
and )5 responsible for the cash services dvision which
ncludes all of the major cash services business unis,
and for shanng cash services best practice throughout
the entire organisation Ken joined the secunty
ndustry following a successful career wathin the
logrstcs management industry where he held senior
roles at Express Foods, Excel Logistics and Coca Cola.

Ken 15 a member of the Chartered Institute of
Logistics and Transport.

Irene Cowden

Group HR Director

Irene has spent her career in HR management,
speculising in employee relations, organisational
development, talent managemert and compensation
ssues. She has been iInvolved in major change projects
including the cuktural and ntegration aspects of
mergers and acquisiions as well as large scale
organisational change invehing worldorce restructunng
working i partrership with major trade unions.

trene has worked in the securtty Industry for over 26
years and has held director level posions at business
unit, dvisional and corporate level

Irene 15 a member of the Chartered Institute of
Personnel and Development (MCIPD)




Report of the Directors

For the year ended 3| December 2004

The directors have pleasure in presenting thewr Annual Repart together with the audited financial staterments of Croup 4 Secuncor plc and the
consolidated financial staternents of that company and its subsidianes, associated undertakings and joint ventures ( ‘the group ) for the year ended
31 December 2006

Group 4 Secuncor plc has its pnmary listing on the London Stock Exchange and a secondary listing on the Copenhagen Stock Exchange

Principal activities of the group
Group 4 Secuncor plc s a parent company with subsidianes, associated undertakings and joint ventures.

The pnncipal actviies of the group compnse the prowision of securtty services (including the provision of manned secunty services, justice services
and securtty systerns) and the management and transportation of cash and valuables

Group results
The consolidated result for the year and the appropration thereof are shown In the consolidated income staternent an page 50

Detalls of major business actvities during the year future developments prinapal msks and uncertanties and prospects of the group are contained
in the Operatng and Financial Review on pages 10 to 27

Dividends
The directors propase the following net dvidend for the year

> Intenm dividend of | 69p (DKK 0 1863) per share paid on 15 December 2006
> Fina! divdend of 252p {DKK 02766) per share payable on 8 june 2007

Shareholders on the Darush VP register will receive therr dvdends in Danish Kroner Shareholders who hold thewr shares through CREST or in
certificated form will receve therr dividends in sterling unless they prefer te receive Danish Kroner, in which case they should apply n wrting to the

Registrars by no later than 9 May 2007

Significant business acquisitions, disposals and developments
In January 2006 an option to acquire 49% of Group 4 Nesma For Secunity and Safety Ltd in Saudi Arabia was purchased

In Apnl 2006 a further 26% of Group 4 Secuntas Emirates LLC in the United Arab Ermirates was acquired

In July 2006 a further 10% of AS Falck Baltics in Estoria was acquired

In August 2006 50% of Alfa-Seguranca in Mozambique was acquired

In Septemnber 2006 the cash management assets and contracts of PT Transnational Solutions in Indonesia were acquired

In Novernber 2006 75% of (345 Chile Holding, SA was acquired

In November 2006 Defence Systems Africa was acquired in D R Congo

In November 2006 Secunity Systems (Far East) Ltd was acquired iIn Hong Kong

In Becember 2006 the transportation business and related assets of Cogrvsa Securtty Inc, in the USA were disposed of

In December 2006 agreement was reached for the disposal of G4S Geld-und Wertdienste GmbH, the German cash services business

In March 2007 50 1% of Fidelity Cash Management Services (Pty) Ltd in South Africa was acquired
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Report of the Directors (contnued)

For the year ended 31 December 2004

§ Capital
The authonsed and 1ssued share capital of Group 4 Secuncor plc at 31 December 2006 1s set out on page 91 (note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements)

Resolutron B set out in the Notice of Meeung on page 7 15 an ordinary resolution granting the directors power to enable them to allot shares
up to an aggregate nomsnal value of £105 500000 representing approsamately 33% of the issued share capital The company does not hold any
treasury shares as such However, the 6,022,967 shares held within the employee benefit trust and referred to on page 91 (note 35 1o the
consahdated financial statements) are accounted for as treasury shares. The intention of the directors 1s to allot shares upon the exercse of options
granted gver Secuncor ple shares and rolled over into options over the companys shares. The drectors do not have any other present intention
of exercising this authortty

Resolution 9 15 a specal resolution granting the directors power to enable them to allot shares for cash (a) in connection with a nghts or similar
issue or (b) other than 1o esasting shareholders, in the latter case such allotment being limited to an aggregate nominal value of £15995 000
representing approxamately 5% of the issued share capital

Resolution 1015 a special resclution seeking authonty to make market purchases of the companys shares, The maxamum number of shares which
could be purchased under this authonity 15 128 000000 being a Iittle less than 10% of the number of shares currently in issue The directors have
no present intention of utlising this authonty but believe it appropnate to obtain this flexibifity In accordance with common business pract:ce

Information concerning the company's shares held under option 1s set out on page 91 {note 35 to the consolidated financial statements)

6 Research and development expenditure
Research in connection with the development of new services and products and the improvement of those currently prowided by the group
15 carned out continuously Research and development written off to profit and lass during the year amounted to £1 4m (2005 £1 4m)

7 Payment of suppliers

It 13 the company s and the group's policy to pay suppiiers in accordance with the payment terms negotiated with them Thus prompt payment
15 norrnally made to those suppliers meeting their obligations. The company and the group do not follow any formal code or standard on
payment practice

At 31 December 2006 the trade creditors of the company represented |13 days (2005 30 days) of annual purchases
At 31 December 2006 the consolidated trade credrtors of the group represented 40 days {2005 46 days) of annual purchases

8 Employee involvement
Employee imalvement and consultation 1s managed in a vanety of ways. These include keeping employees informed about current activities,
progress and general matters of interest through the group intranet, staff meetings, newsletters, bulletins and simdar tems produced by vanots
indnidual companies as well as seeking thesr views through questtannaires and consultation with urmon representatives when appropnate

The groups policy and practice 1s to encourage the recrutment and subsequent traning, career development and promotion of disabled persons
according 1o their aptitudes and abdibes, and the retenton and retraining of employees who become disabled

9 Political and charitable contributions
Chantable contnbutions by the group dunng the year amounted to £94,000 2005 £300000)

There were no palitical contnbutions requinng disclosure under the Companies Act.

10 Substantial holdings
The directors have been notified of the following substantial shareholdings at 30 March 2007 in the ordinary capital of Group 4 Secunicor plc

Skagen Alpha Limited 171939961* (13 43%)
Deutsche Bank AG 52939386 (4 14%)
Legal and General Group Plc 44,633 547 (348%)

* Jergen Philip-Sarensen is nterested in these shares for the purposes of section 324 of the Companies Act.




Report of the Directors (contnued)

For the year ended 3t December 2006

Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Pic, chartered accountants, as auditor to the company and for their remuneration to be fixed by the
directors will be submrtted to the Annual General Meetng,

Directors
The directors, biographucal detads of whom are contained on pages 30 and 31 held office throughout the year, with the exception of Mark Elhott
who was appointed on | September 2006,

Jargen Philip-Serensen and Waldernar Schrudt retired from the board on 30 June 2006

The directors retinng by rotation are Nick Buddes, Lord Condon and Alf Duch-Pedersen who being eligble, offer themsetves for re-election
The board beleves that they possess expenence and expertise relevant to the company’s operations, that they continue to be effective, that
they are commytted to the success of the company and that they should be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting

Mr Elhott retires in accordance with the Artices of Association and, being eligible offers himself for election. The board believes that Mr Bhott's
considerzble knowledge and expenence of rynning an international services business employing large numbers of people 1s a most valuable
addition and therefore recommends that he be elected at the Annual General Meeting.

Of those directors proposed [lor election or re-election Lord Condon and Messrs Duch-Pedersen and Eliott do not have contracts of serwce and
Mr Buckles contract of service has no unexpired term since «t 1s not for a fixed term.

The contracts of service of the executive directors are terminable at |2 months notice None of the non-executive directors has a contract of
service The company has executed deeds of ndemnity far the benefit of each of the directors whose brograptucal details appear on pages 30 and
31 in respect of labukties which may attach to them in thewr capacrty as directors of the company These deeds are qualifng third party indemnity
provisions as defined by section 309 B of the Companies Act [985 and have been in effect since 3 November 2006 A copy of the form of
indemnity 1s available on the company s website

Details of directors' interests in the share capital of Group 4 Secunicor plc and of the directors remuneration are set out on pages 39 to 47
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the company's audrtor 15 unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a diretor to make

himself aware of any relevant audt information and to establish that the company's audrtor 15 aware of that infermation

MNane of the directors had a matenal interest in any contract significant to the business of the group dunng the financial year

By order of the board

Peter Dawnd The Mancr
Secretary - Manar Royal
30 March 2007 Crawtey

West Sussex RHIO SUN
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Corporate Governance Statement

The boards statement on the company’s corporate governance performance 1s based on the Combined Code on Corporate Governance published in
Juty 2003 ( ‘the Combined Code )

The Combined Code requires comparnies to disclose how they apply the codes prnciples and to confirm that they comply with the codes provisions
or where they do not comply, to provde an explanation

a) Application of Combined Code principles
The board compnses the non-exacutive charman (Alf Duch-Pedersen), a non-executve deputy charman (Lord Condon) five other non-executive
directors, the chief executve (Nick Buckles) the chief financial officer {Trevor Dighton) and the chief operating officer (Grahame Gibsen) The
board considers all the non-executive directors to be independent. The semior independent director 1s Malcolm Willamson

All continuing directors are subject to elecion by shareholders at the next Annual Genera) Meetng following their appontment and will submr
themselves for re-election at least every three years.

Membership of the three board committees s as follows.

Audit Committee
Thorleif Krarup (chairman)

Bo Lerenus {joined March 2006)
Mark Sefigman

Malcolm Willamson

Remuneration Committee
Lord Condon {chairman)

Mark Eliott (joned March 2007)
Bo Lerenius

Mark Seligman (joined March 2006)

Nomination Committee

Alf Duch-Pedersen (chairman)

Lord Condon

Malcolm Wilkamson (joined June 2006)

Lord Condon became chairman of the Rermuneration Committee on | July 2006 when Mr Duch-Pedersen left the committee upon becaming
chairman of the board Waldemar Schridt left the Remuneration Committee on his retrement from the board on 30 June 2006 Mr Duch-Pedersen
became charman of the Nomination Committee following the retirement of argen Phiip-Sevensen also on 30 June 2006 Mr Seligman 1s the
mermber of the Audit Committee with recent and relevant financial expenence

The terms of reference of each of the above committees are availzble on the company s website
ft 15 intended that the charmen of the three committees will be avadable to answer questons at the Annual General Meeting,

The directors met on ten occasions dunng the year ended 31 December 2006. There were ten board meetings, one of which was an extended
two-day board and strategy session at which presentations on some of the group s key businesses were made 1o the board by senior executives
and at which the group’s business plan, legal financial and HR strategies were discussed Waidemar Schridt, Malcolm Willamsen, Mark Bllott and
Bo Lerenius were each absent for one board meeting, At each meeting, the board receives reports from the chief executrve, the chief financial
officer and the company secretary an HR report and an investor refations report which indude summarnes of developments on HR matters and
comments recerved from major shareholders since the previous board meeting, In addition the board recenves monthly maragement accounts,

There are ten boarg meetings scheduled for the current year together with a two-day strategy session.

There 15 a detaled schedule of matters reserved to the board which are set out under five separate categanes. (1) Board and management;

(2) Operations; (3) Finance, (4) Business controk and (5) Secretanal By way of example board approval 1s required for () acquistions, disposals,
Investments and caprial projects exceeding £4m (b) any changes to the group’s business strategy and (c) the annual trading, capital expenditure and
cash flow budgets.




Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

a)

b)

Apphecation of Combined Code principles (continued)

In the year under review the Audit Committee met four imes the Remuneration Committee six tmes and the Nomination Committee twice

All members attended each of the meetings except for Malcolm Wilkamson who was absent from two meetings of the Audit Committee,
Waldemar Schmidt and Bo Lerenius who were each absent from one meeting of the Remuneration Committee (and Alf Duch-Pedersen did not
attend the meeting of the Rermuneration Commuttee at which his fees as future chairman of the board were discussed) and Jergen Philip-Serensen
was absent from one meeting of the Nomination Commuttee

The performance of the board and s committees has been evaluated in a number of ways Having conducted a questionnare-based self-
assessment of the performance of the board as a whole in the previous year the findings have been considered during the year under review
and, based on this feedback, steps have been taken duning the year to increase the interaction between non-executive directors and the senior
executves of the group s businesses. In additbon the chairman has conducted indmvdual evaluations of the performance of each of the directors
and his findings have been discussed by the board

Both the Audit and Remuneration Committees have evaluated their performance by queshionnaire-based self-assessment, completed, in the case
of the Audit Commuttee, by both the committee's members and by the other regular attendees of its meetings The results of the assessments
were reviewed by the committees concerned and some areas for improvement were identified As a result, addtional meetings have been
scheduled to give the committees more time to both carry out their duties and address some of their development and assessment needs.

The chief executive and the chief financial officer hold regular meetings with indmdual institutional shareholders to discuss the groups strategy and
finanoal performance although price sensitive information s never divulged at these meetings. It 15 intended that all the directors will attend the
Annual General Meeting and will be avallable to answer questions from shareholders (other than Mr Seligman whose unavallability at this time was
made known at the tme of his appointment)

The Nomination Committee 1s responsible for making recommendabions on board appeintments and on maintaining a balance of skills and
expenence on the board Alf Duch-Pedersen succeeded jergen Philip-Serensen as chairman of the board when the latter retired in June 2006
The Nemination Committee had considered a number of possible candidates but concluded that Mr Duch-Pedersens knowledge of the securtty
industry and his retirement from executive duties with Darmisco made him an ideal candidate The committee did not therefore believe that
external advertising or the use of an external search consuttancy would be beneficial The intended succession of Mr Duch-Pedersen was reported
in the comparry s annual report for 2005 Mark Elliott was appointed as a non-executive director with effect from | September 2006 on the adwice
of the Nomination Committee which had receved recommendations on a number of potential candidates from an external search consultancy

Audit Committee meetings are also attended by representatives of the group auditor; the chief financial officer the head of nternal audit and the
company secretary The cammittee considers the group's annual and intenm financial statements and any questions raised by the auditor on the
financial statements and financial systems. It alsc reviews, amongst other matters whistle blowing arrangements, nsk management procedures and
internal contrals.

The Audit Committee has established a policy on the provision by the extermal auditor of non-audit services so as to ensure that the
independence of the audit 1s not compromised Besides the formal audit function, the auditor 1s permitted to provide consultation and due diligence
services refated to mergers and acquisions, audits of employee benefit plans, reviews of iInternal accounting and control policies, general advice on
financal reporting standards and corporate tax services. The auditor 15 prohibited from providing other services without specific permission from
the Audrt Committee The value of non-audit services provided by the auditor must not exceed the fees charged for the statutory audit, save In
the event of a major transformation deal The auditor has written to the Audt Committee corfirming that, in s opinion 1t 1s independent.

Compliance with provisions of Combined Code
Save as set out below, the company complied throughout the year under review with the provisions set out in secuion | of the Combined Code

Non-compliance with Combined Code

Provisions ALl 3 and A6 | of the Combined Code prowvide that the non-executive directors led by the senior independent director, should meet
without the chairman present at least annually to appraise the charmans performance In view of the retirement of Jergen Philip-Serensen at the
end of June 2006, t was thought to be unnecessary to review the out-going chairman’s performance and too soon to conduct a mearingful revew
of the performance cf his successor, Alf Duch-Pedersen before the yearend Such an appraisal wilf be carned out during the current year
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

<) Risk management and internal control
The directors acknowledge ther respansibility for the group's system of internal control and for reviewing tts effectiveness The system 15 designed
to manage rather than elrminate the nsk of falure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against materal misstaternent or loss

The nisks associated with the group’s activites are reviewed regularty by the board which considers major nsks and evaluates their impact on the
group Policies and procedures, which are reviewed and monitored by the head of internal audit, are in place to deal with any matters which may
be considered by the board to present significant exposure

The key features of the group's nsk management process are.

> A common nsk management framework 15 used to prowide a profile of those risks which may have an Impact on the achievernent of business
objectives.

> Each significant nsk 15 documented, showing an overview of the nsk, how the nsk 15 managed, and any improvement actions The nisk profiles

ensure that intemal audit reviews of the adequacy, application and effectiveness of nsk management and internal controls are targated on the
key nsks

> Risk managerment committees have been established at regonal dwisional and group level The regonal committees meet twice a year and the
dmsional and group commyttees meet quarterly A standard agenda covenng nsk and control issues 1s considered at each meeting and risk
profiles are reviewed and updated at each meeting

> Risk and control self-evaluation exercises are undertaken for each operating compary at least twice a year and updated nsk profiles are
prepared Similar exercises are undertaken as part of the ntegration process for all major acquistions The resuits of the company nsk
evaluations are assessed by the regional and divisional risk management committees

The process, which 15 reviewed regularly by the board in accordance with the internal control guidance for directors in the Combined Cade
15 carned out under the overall supervision of the group rsk management committee This committee which reports to the Audit Committee,
includes both the chief executive and the chief financial officer

The Audit Comnittee undertakes a high level review of nsk management and intermal control Both the dmsional misk management committees
and the group nsk management committee receive internal audrt reports and regular reports on nsks They monitor the actions taken to
manage nsks.

The internal control system includes clearly defined reporting lines and authorisation procedures, a comprehensive budgeting and monithly
reporting system, and written pohcies and procedures In addrtion to a wide range of internal audrt reports senior management akso receve
assurance from other sources including secunty inspections third party reviews company finanaial control reviews, external audit reports,
summanes of whistle Blowing activity and sk and controf self-evaluations

The board has reviewed the group's nsk management and internal control system for the year to 3| December 2006 by considenng reports from
the Audit Committee and has taken account of events since 3| December 2006

Peter David (‘P‘Vt’ b - /i
Secretary

30 March 2007
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

At 3| December 2006

This report provides details of the remuneration of each of the directors and sets out the comparny s remuneration pohces for the current

finanoial year and, subject to ongoing review, for subsequent financal years. The report will be put to the Annual General Meeting for approval
by the sharehclders.

The Rermuneration Committee met six times duning the period under review The members of the committee all of whom are considered to be
ndependent, are Lord Condan (charman), Mark Eliott, Bo Lerenius and Mark Seligman {AJf Duch-Pedersen left the committee when he became
charrman of the board on | July 2006, at whach time Lard Condon became chairman of the committee Waldemar Schrmudt also left the committee
when he retired from the board on 30 June 2006 Mark Elliott joined the committee on | March 2007 ) The commitiee s responsible for setting all
aspects of the remuneration of the charman the executive directors, the three ather members of the group executive committee and the company
secretary ht is also responsible for the operation of the company's share plans. Its terms of reference are avalable on the companys website

Advice was provided to the committee by New Bndge Street Consultants LLP compensation consuttants, who were appointed by the committee
untl 6 October 2006 when Towers, Pernn Forster & Crosby, Inc' ( Towers Pernin) were appointed by the committee in place of New Bridge Street
Consultants The terms of appointment of both firms are avalable on the company’s website New Bndge Street Consultants did not prowde any
other services to the company duning the penod under review, but Towers Pernn also provided benchmarking services in respect of a small number
of the company’s servor executives.

Nick Buckles, chief executive, prowded guidance to the committee on remuneration packages for senior executives within the group. Further

guidance was recerved from the group's HR director Irene Cowden Neither Mr Buckles nor Mrs Cowden paruapated in discussions regarding
thewr own pay

Remuneration policy
The policy for the remuneration of the executive directors and the executve management team ams to achieve

> the ability to attract, retain and motwvate high calibre executives;

> a strong hnk between executive reward and the group’s performance;

> akgnrnent of the interests of the executives and the shareholders; and

> provision of incentive arrangements which focus on both annual and longer-term performance

A significant proportion of total remuneration is related to performance through partiapation in both short-term and long-term incentrve schemes.
For base target performance, the performance-related element amounts to around 40% of the total package For stretch target performance, the

performance-related element amounts to around 60% of the total package The committee believes that the current balance 1s appropnate afthough
it 15 kept under review

Bonus payments do not form part of salary for pension purposes.
Elements of remuneration

a) Base salary and benefits
The salanes of the executive directors are rewewed with effect from | January each year Intenm salary revews may be carned out follewang
significant changes in responsibility The salanes take account of a benchrariang exercise based on similarly sized companies with a significant part
of their business overseas and also reflect responsibiity ndmdual performance, internal relatvibes and salary and other market informatien suppled
by the compensation consultants appointed by the Remuneration Committee The overall objectve 15 to achieve salary levels which prowde a
market tompetitive base salary, with the opportunity to earn above market norms, on the delivery of supenor performance, through the companys

incentive schemes. Benefits iInclude pension arrangements and the provision of a company car (or a cash allowance in keu of a car), health tnsurance
and life assurance

! Towers, Pernn forster & Crosby Inc has given and not withdrawn, its wnitten consent to the issue of this document with the inclusion of the

reference to 1ts name n the form and content in which it appears. A copy of the consent letter 15 avallable for inspection at the company's
regisiered office
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

At 31 December 2006

Elements of remuneration {(continued)

b) Performance-related bonus scheme

<)

For the year under review, the executive directors partiapated in an annual performance related bonus scheme payments under which were
dependent on the attanment of defined PBTA (profit before tax and amortisation) targets of the group, adjusted for the effect of any exceptional
ttems and discontinued operations and using constant exchange rates The committee believes that PETA best reflects the vanous key drivers

of business success within the group. For achievement of the budgeted tarpet, a bonus payment of 50% of base salary was due, increasing on a
straight-ine basis up to a bonus payment of 100% of salary for achievement of a stretch profit target. Ary such bonus up to the value of 50% of
the executive director's salary was payable in cash with any excess balance being awarded in the form of deferred shares. Any deferred shares will
normally only be transferred to the executive director if he remains in employment {atherwise than where he leaves in certain specfied
arcumstances) for 2 penod of three years from the date of the award of the shares

The PBTA budgeted targets used far the above scheme are the same as the company's budgeted PBTA for the corresponding penod (assurming
constant exchange rates)

2006 was a strong year for the company with PBTA performance exceeding the budgeted target. The Remuneration Committee agreed that the
bonus payment for such performance should be at the 76% ievel This was above the 50% level which woutd have been payable for achievement
of budgeted PBTA, but below the 100% level which was the maxmum payable under the scheme for achievement of the full stretch profit target.

Performance Share Plan (long-term incentive plan)
The Performance Share Plan was introduced in July 2004 Under the plan the executive directors and certan other senior executives recenve
condivonal allocations of the company's shares which are refeased to them only on the achievement of demanding performance targets.

The maximum annual award of shares under the plan 15 currently one times base salary, save that, in exceptional arcumstances the Remuneration
Committee may determune that an award of up 10 one and a half umes salary may be made The extent to which allocations of shares under the
plan vest have been determined, as to half of the award by the companys normalised earmings per share growth relative to the RPI over a single
three-year penod and as to the second half of the award by the companys ranking by reference to TSR (total shareholder return being share prce
growth plus dwdends paid) using the FTSE- 100 constrituent comparies as at the date of the award as a comparator group, agan over a single
three-year penod There 15 no provisicn for retesting,

The followang targets apply to the first half of awards granted in the year under review with the three-year EPS {eamings per share) penod ending
on 31 December 2008

Average annual growth in EPS Proporton of allocadon vesting
Less than RPi + 6% per annum Nl
RP1 + 6% per annum (1B% over three years) 25%
RPI + &-1 1% per annum Pro rata between 25% and 100%
RPl + |1% per annum (33% over three years) 100%

The following targets apply to the second half of each such award

Ranking of the company against the FTSE- 100

tonstituent companies by reference to TSR Proportion of allocation vesting
Below median Nl
Median 25%
Between median and upper quartle Pro rata between 25% and |00%
Upper quartile 100%

In addition there will only be a transfer of shares under the second half if () the growth in EPS of the company has exceeded the growth in RP|
by 10% over a performance penod of three financial years and (b) the Remuneration Commuttee 1s satisfied that the company's TSR performance
15 reflective of the cormpany’s undertying performance




Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnued)

At 31 Decemnber 2006

Elements of remuneration {(continued)

<) Performance Share Plan (long-term incentive plan) {continued)
The Remuneraton Committee believes that a combination of earmings per share growth and total shareholder return targets 1s the most
appropniate performance measure for the performance share plan as «t provides a transparent method of assessing the cormpany s performance,
both in terms of undertyng financial performance and retuns to shareholders. The comparny calculates whether the EPS performance targets have
been achieved by reference to the companys audited accounts which provide an accessible and objective measure of the company's earmings
per share whilst TSR comparative data will be supplied by Towers Pernn The commuttee wall also ensure that the EPS targets are measured on a
consistent basis and are not artfinally impacted, erther to the benefit or to the detnment of participants, by the change in accounting standards
to International Finanaal Reporting Standards.

Awards will not normally vest where an employee ceases to be employed within the group unless cessation of employment is due to death, injury
disability, redundancy, retirement or fellowing a change of control of, or sale outside the group of, his or her employing company In these stuations
vesting will accur 1n the normal course and the performance targets will need to be satisfied pro rata to the time the allocation has been held
However, only a proporton of the award based on the time which has elapsed from the award date to the end of the last complete month in
which the employee was employed, may vest in these circumstances.

The comparty s current pohcy s to use market purchased shares o satisfy performance share plan awards.

The Remuneration Committee beheves that continued shareholding by executve directors will strengthen the alignment of their interests with
shareholders’ interests. Accordingly, executive directors of the company will be expected to retain shzres to the value of 30% of the aftertax gans
made on the vesting of performance share plan awards until they have built up a shareholding equivalent to one tmes base salary

Remuneration strategy review

The companys executrve remuneration strategy aims 1o provide market competiive levels of total remuneraton in return for achievement of stretching
short and long-term performance targets In particular, the companys short-term incentive plan 1s focused on rewanding the achievement of tough
annual profit growth targets while the Performance Share Plan (the PSP} 1s intended to reward the achievement of sustained earnings growth and
supenor returns to shareholders over time

During 2006 assisted by Towers Pernn (independent executve remuneration adwiser to the Remurerauon Committee and the company), the
Remuneration Committee conducted a revew of the company s executive incentsve arrangements to ensure that they prowide a strong alignment with
the delivery of value to shareholders while enabling the company to continue to attract, retain and motivate high-calibre executives

The results of this review were that.

> Base salary levels are dose to mid-market competitive norms against a basket of similarly sized and international companies and so the
Remuneration Committee proposes not to make any changes to therr approach in setting salanes.

> Maximum annual bonus levels are behind market norms The Remunerauon Commidtee 1s comfortable with the level of bonus opportunity but has
made certain structural changes as descrbed below in order that bonuses are also linked to the successful delivery of key business objectives and
miestanes other than profit,

> Owerall total compensation levels in respect of the three Executive Directors have faflen behind mid-market norms, largely as a result of below
market long-term incentive levels, Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee feels that the current TSR peer group in the PSP 1s no longer
appropnate and instead, wishes to move to a group of more directly comparable companies in the company s sector

> Finally the Remuneration Committee feels that the addivonal EPS underpin applying to the TSR portion of the PSP was unnecessary

As a result of this review, changes have been made to the annual performance-related bonus scheme sa that in the event of achievement of a threshold
level of profits which s shightly below the budgeted profit target, a bonus paymmient of 25% of base salary would be due and the amount of bonus
payable 15 hnked to achievement of key business obiectives as well as PBTA. Thus, in the current year, 40% of base salary will be payable on achievement
of budgeted PBTA, increasing on a straight-kne basis up to a bonus of 80% of salary for achievement of a stretch profit target, with a further 20% on
achievement of pre-defined key business objectives approved by the Remuneration Committee These objectives will vary for each indwidual according
to their responsibidities and will support longer-term business development.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

At 31 December 2006

In addition, the Remuneration Comnmuttee also proposes the following changes to the PSP for which the company ts seeking shareholder approval at the

|
Remuneraticn strategy review (continued) I
2007 Anrwual General Meeting !

> The FTSE-H0 comparator group will be replaced with the following bespoke global group of 16 support serwices companies. The current vesting
schedule will be retained Relatrve TSR, will be measured on a common currency basis.

Atlans WS Capita Group Hays Rexam

Brambles Industres Compass Group MITIE Group Secuntas AB
Bnrks Garda Prosegur Serco Group
Bunzl Group 4 Secuncor Rentokil Izl Sodexho Allance

> The annual Iimit within the PSP will be raised to 250% of salary However, it 15 the Remuneration Committee's intention that awards will nhally be
no higher than 150% of salary per year {(or 100% of salary for senior executives below board level) If in the future the committee wished to grant at
levels greater than {50%, either in exceptional circumstances or because, for example, the market had nsen, major shareholders would be consulted
pror to any change in this policy Going forward the Rernuneration Committee also wishes to place greater emphasis on the EPS poruion of the PSP
therefore two thirds of future awards will be Iinked to exsting EPS performance tarpets and the remaining one third will be linked to TSR
performance relative to the new comparator group

> The current explicit £PS underpin to the TSR target will be replaced with a commitment by the Remuneration Commitiee to ensure that the
underiying financial performance of the company 1s satisfactory prior to permitting the vesting of any award n respect of the TSR portion of the plan
Given the emphass on EPS growth within the PSP the committee feels that the current underpin 1s unnecessary The Remuneraton Committee
believes that EPS has a greater motivational impact for executives as 1t comes under their accountability and control However t 15 acknowledged
that TSR aligns the interests of shareholders and executives over the longer term and the revised TSR peer group provides a mare relevant market
perspecirve

> In line with current best practice partcpants n the PSP will recerve a further share award with a value equmvalent to the drvidends which would
have been pad in respect of future PSP awards vesting at the end of the performance period

> The PSP rutes will be amended to comply with age discnmination legislation by remaoving the prowision relating to ineligibility wathin 2 years of
retirement.

> Where a partraipant leaves employment, or there is a corporate transaction affecting the company, awards under the PSP currently vest subject to
hawng achreved performance conditions and subject to prorating of the award for the tme since award The Remuneration Committee considers
this approach to be consistent with best practice, but wishes to retain the ability to allow for a greater proporticn of the award to vest (f it considers
it 1o be approprate in exceptional crcumstances, and 50 an amendment allowing such discretion 1s propased in this respect

The Remuneration Committee believes that these proposals are impartant in prowiding a more performance-related remuneration package that will '
more effectively attract, retan and motivate executives, bring total pay packages closer to mid-market norms and introduce greater alignment with
business objectives. Shareholders are asked to confirm their approval of the above changes at the company's Annual General Meeting

fees, service contracts and letters of appointment

The chairman’s annual fee 15 £225000 The annual fee for the non-executive directors, which is set by the charman and the executrve directors, 1s
£48 600, wath a further £40000 for the role of deputy chairman £15000 for the charmanship of each of the Audit and Remuneration Committees
and £15000 for the role of semor independent director No other fees are paid for membership of the board committees. These fees are subject

to pernoadic review which takes into account comparative fee levels in other groups of a similar size and the anticpated ime commement for the
non-executve directors.

The serwvice contracts of those who served as executive directors dunng the peried are dated as follows.

Nick Buckles 2 June 2004
Trevor Dighton 2 June 2004
Grzharne Gibson & Decernber 2006
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At 3| December 2006

Remuneration strategy review (continued)

The contracts of Messrs Buckles Dighton and Gibson are terminable by the company on |2 months' notice The contracts are terminable by the
executive directors on 12 months notice There are no liquidated damages prowsions for compensation payable upon early termination, but the
company reserves the nght to pay salary in leu of notice 1t 1s the company's policy that it should be able to terminate service contracts of executve
directors on no more than |2 months notice and that payments for termination of contract are restncted to the value of salary and other contractual
enttlements for the notice penod As part of the wider remuneration rewew referred to above, the Remuneration Committee undertook a
comprehensive review of all the prowvisions relating to termination n these directors' contracts and 13 satisfied that the current arrangements are
appropnate and in lne with best practice

The charman and the other non-executve directors do nat have serwice contracts but letters of appointment which provde for inmial three-year
terms which began on 19 May 2004 other than in the cases of Mr Seligman, whose term began on | January 2006, and Mr Eliott, whose term began
an | September 2006 All directors are required to stand for re-election by the shareholders at least once every three years

[t 15 the companys policy that executive directors may each hold not mare than one external non-executive apposntment and may retan any associated
fees. Mr Buckles 15 a non-executive director of Armiva ple for which he recewved fees of £35 500 in the year ended 3| December 2006 Neither of the
ather executrve directors currently holds an external non-executive appointment.

Performance graph

The performance graph below shows the total cumulative shareholder return of the company from s érst day of ksung, 20 fuly 2004, umtl 31 December
2006, based on a hypothetical shareholding worth £100, compared with the return achieved by the FTSE-100 consttuent compames over the same
pernod The directors believe this to be an appropnate form of broad equity market index aganst whuch to base a companson given the size and
geographic coverage of the company The FTSE 100 index has also been used for comparatve total shareholder retun purposes in the companys
performance share plan For future performance graphs, consideration will given to using the bespoke global group of ié support services comparnes
which 1t 15 propased should be used as the comparator group for the company s performance share plan going forward

Total Shareholder Return
Source: Datastream
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This graph shows the volue at 31 December 2004 of £100 rvested i Group 4 Secuncor pic on 20 July 2004 compared with the value
of £100 inested at the same time m the FTSE 100 Index The cther ponts plotied show the vefue al the ntervening financial yer endds



Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnued)
At 3| December 2006
THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION HAS BEEN AUDITED

Base salaries and bonuses
Performance

Salary related 2006 2005
and fees Benefics banus Towl Toral
i £ £ £ €
Chairman
(non-executive}
Jargen Philp-Sorensen
(reured 30 June 2006) 90000 - - 90,000 170000
Alf Duch Pedersen 161250 - - 161 250 93750
Executive directors
Nick Buckles
{see note | below) 660000 21,390 501,600 1,182,990 1534625
Trevor Dighton
(see note | below) 400,000 20,763 3G4000 724763 894,386
Grahame Gibson
(appointed | Apnl 2005)
(see notes | & 2 belaw) 449691 33,191 346112 828,994 844,954
Other non-executive directors
Lord Condon
(see note 3 below) 67633 - - 67,633 42,500
Mark Elliott
{apponted | September 2006) 16200 - - 16,200 -
Thorhef Krarup 60550 - - 60,550 42,500
Bo Lerenius 46800 - - 46 800 42,500
Waldemar Schridt
(retired 30 June 2006) 22500 - - 22,500 42500
Mark Seligman
(apponted | January 2006) 46800 - - 46 800 -
Lord Sharman
(retred 31 December 2005) - - - - 106250
Malcolm Williamson 61800 - - 61,800 42,500
Total 2083224 75344 1I5H712 3,310,280 3856465
MNotes.

| The performance-related bonuses derved from the company’s bonus scherne were paid as 50% of basic salary in cash and 26% of basic salary
through the award of deferred Group 4 Secunicor shares based on a share price of 192 75p, being the average middie market closing price of the
company’s ordinary shares over the three days mmediately foliowing the date of the company s preliminary results anncuncement |3 March 2007
The awards were

Nick Buckles 89,027 shares
Trevor Dighton 53,956 shares
Grahame Gibson 61,993 shares

2 Grahame Gibson was rembursed £23,635 for expenses assocated with his relocation from the West Midlands to Surrey This sum 1s subject to
UK income tax. The company also pad ar fares amounting to £13,360 for flights between the UK and the USA for Mr Gibson's wife and infant
children This sum 1s taxable in the USA,

3 Lord Condon was paid an addmonal £10000 in the penod for his duties as a director of GAS Globa) Risks Limited a subsidiary of the company




Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnued)

At 31 December 2006

Base salaries and bonuses (continued)

The annual base salanes of the executrve directors and the annual fees of the non-executve directors at 3|1 December 2006 were.

45

Executive directors £

MNick Buckles 660000

Trevor Dighton 400000

Grahame Gibson 449 691

Non-executive directors [

Alf Duch-Pedersen (charman) 225000

Lord Condon 103,600

Mark Elliott 48600

Thoref Krarup 63600

Bc Lerenius 48 600

Mark Seligman 48600

Malcolm Willamsen 63,600
Directors’ share options

Granted Oursranding Opuon

Qpucn Ar 311208 during 2006 at 311206 price {p}

Nick Buckles A 72501 - 72901 10798

B 95,000 - 95,000 16400

C 75,000 - 75,000 13375

D 55000 - 55000 15300

E 700 000 - 700000 10800

F 14,453 - 0 6400

Trevor Dnghton B 55000 - 55000 16400

C 40000 - 40000 13375

D 30000 - 30,000 15300

E 350000 - 350,000 10800

F 14453 - o] 6400

Option A = 1996 Secuncor Executive Share Option Scheme, exercisable untl June 2008
Option B = Secuncor Executve Share Option Scheme exerasable untl December 2009

Option C = Secuncor Executive Share Option Scheme exercisable until june 2010

Option D = Secuncor Executive Share Option Scheme exercisable untid December 2010
Cption E = Secuncor Executrve Share Option Scheme, exercisable until December 201 |

Option F = Secuncor Sharesave Scheme, exercisable between October 2006 and March 2007

The above options, which bad been granted over Secuncor plc shares, were rolled over into options over Group 4 Secunicar shares Ne further grants

of optiens under these schemes will be made

Bath of the abeve directors exercised all their options under Option F above The market pnce of the shares on the day on which the directors

exerased these options was |68 25p. Nerther of the above directors exenased opions under any other of the above schemes, duning the year

As a resutt of mplementation of the Scheme of Arrangement of Secuncaor plc in July 2004 the performance conditions for the executwve share options
referred to above ceased to apply This would not occur under the current Performance Share Plan

The market pnce of the ordinary shares at 31 December 2005 was |6tp At 31 December 2006 ¢ was 188p

The highest and lowest market pnces of an ordinary share dunng the year to 31 December 2006 were 19375p and 158p respectively
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

At 31 December 2006

Directors’ interests in Performance Share Plan

Shares
awarded
conditionally Market price at
Ac 311205 during year  Date of award  date of award Vesung date A3l 1206
Nick Buckles 720990 341085 170306 19275p 170309 1 062,075
Trevor Dighton 539780 206720 170306 19275p 170303 746500
Grahame Gibson 493510 241 600 170306 192.75p 170303 735,110

The conditions subject to which allocations of shares vest under this plan are descnbed under (c) Performance Share Plan on pages 40 to 42

Directors’ interests in shares of Group 4 Securicor plc (unaudited)

{including awards of deferred shares but excluding shares under option and shares awarded condiionally under the performance share plan both as
shown above)

Ar31 1206 A 31205

Nick Buckles 975043 871563
Lord Condon 2,000 2,000
Trevor Dighten 650,964 582,555
Alf Duch-Pedersen 128,560 56560
Mark Elliott - -
Grahame Gibson 397,834 335,841
Thorleif Krarup 3206 3,206
Bo Lerenius 16 30C 16000
Mark Seligman 50,000 -
Mazlealm Willamson 2,000 2000

All interests shown above are beneficial
No changes in these holdings have taken place since 3¢ December 2006

Each of Nick Buckles, Trevor Dighton and Grahame Gibson also has a deemed nterest in 6,022 967 ordinary shares held in the Group 4 Secuncor
Ernployee Benefit Trust.

Directors’ pension entitlements

For the penod under review the executive directors participated in non-contributory categones of the groups defined benefit pension schemes with

a normal retirement age of 60 Trevor Dighton accrued pension at a rate of 1/30ths of the statutory eamings cap untit 5 April 2006 when the cap was
Ufted Nick Buckles accrued pension at a rate of 1/52ths of his final pensionable salary Grahame Gibson accrued pension at a rate of |/52ths of his final
pensionable salary unt! 5 Apnl 2006 when he opted for enhanced protection and ceased further accrual An actuaral reduction 1s applied to pensions
payable before normal retirement age and an increase 15 applied where retrement 1s deferred beyond normal retirement age

For death before retirement a capital sum equal ta four times pensionable salary 1s payable together with a spouse s pension of 50% of the member's
prospective pension at the age of 60 plus a return of any contributions paid pror to the admission to the non-contributery category

For death in retirement, a spouse:s pension of 50% of the member’s pre-commutation pensian 15 payable

Post retirement pensions ncrease i hne with the increase i the Retal Prices Index subject to a maximum of 5% per annum
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (contnued)

At 31 December 2006

Directors’ pension entitlements (continued)
Pension entilements and correspanding transfer values increased as follows dunng the 12 months ended 3| December 2006 (2l figures are in £000s)

Increasa Total Value of Toral  Transfer value  Transfer value

Gross in accrued accrued net increase change in of aterued of accrued

Increase tn pension net pension in acerual  transfer value pension pension

accrued pension of infladan at I/ 206 over pericd  during period at /12106 a 111205

M @ &) “ %) (¢} U]

Nick Buckles 37 29 263 328 336 3,129 2793
Trevor Dighton 1 10 45 169 150 766 576
Grahame Gibson 20 13 206 178 48| 2,368 1887

Motes

() Pension accruals shown are the amounts which would be paid annually on retirement based on serwice to the end of the year with the exception
of Mr Gibson whose accrual ended on 5 April 2006

(i} Transfer values have been calculated 10 accordance with version B | of gwdance note GNI | issued by the actuanal profession

(i) The value of net increase (4) represents the incremental value to the director of bus serice duning the year, calculated on the assumption that
service terminated at the year-end It 1s based on the increase in accrued pension (2) wath the exception of Mr Gibson whose accrual ended on
5 Aprd 2006.

(v) The change in transfer value (5) includes the effect of fuctuations in such value due to factors beyond the control of the company and the
directors such as stock market movermnenits

(v) Between 6 Apnil 2002 and 5 April 2003 Mr Dighton receved a salary supplement of 30% of base salary in excess of the earnings cap in heu
of pension prowsion i respect of his base salary in excess of the cap. Following the Governments announcement of proposed changes to the
tax rules for pensions, these payments were suspended with effect from 6 Apnl 2003 pending a review of Mr Dightons pension arrangement.
In September 2005 1t was agreed that Mr Cighton should be granted an Unfunded Lump Sum Retirement Benefit {ULSRB} to be calculated as
the acrumulation of notienal contributions of 30% of hus base salary in excess of the earnings cap deemed to be invested in the FTSE All Share
Total Return Index. The ULSRB (s money-purchase in nature and was consohidated with Mr Dighton's benefits from the Secuncor Group Pension
Scheme under the transtional arrangements following 6 Apnl 2006, A sum of £239 568 was paid 1o the Secuncor Group Pensicn Scheme in
respect of Mr Dightons ULSRB in Apnl 2006

(v} Mr Gibson receives a salary supplement in leu of pension of 40% of his basic salary with effect from 6 Apnl 2006

b_1e..4

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
30 March 2007
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
annual report and the financial statements

The directors are responsibie for prepanng the Annual Repart and the group and parent company financial statements, in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each finanaal year Undler that law they are required
to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent
company finangal staterments in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounung Practice)

The group financial statements are required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present farly the financal position and the performance of the
group the Companes Act 1985 prowdes in relation to such fnanodl statements that references in the refevant part of that Act to financial statements
gmng a true and far view are references to ther achieving a fair presentabon

The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and far wiew of the state of affairs of the parent company
In prepanng each of the group and parent company financial statements, the directers are required 1o

select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the ELF

for the parent company financial staternents, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned in the parent company finangial statements, and

> prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 mappropnate to presume that the group and the parent company will
conbinue In business.

AR )

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial postion of the
parent company and enable them to ensure that its fnancial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and ather wregulartes

Under applicable law ang regulations, the directors are also responsible for prepanng a Report of the Directors, Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Corporate Governance Statement which comply wath that law and those regulations.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Group 4 Securicor plc

We have audied the group and parent company financial statemenits { the financial statements’) of Group 4 Secunicor pic for the year ended

31 December 2006 which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consoldated Cash
Aow Staternent, the Consolidated Staternent of Racogrused Income and Expense and the related notes, These financial statements have been prepared under
the accounting policies set out therein. We have alsc audited the information in the Directors Remuneration Report that is descnbed as having been audited

This report s made solely to the company s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audd work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the companys members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the companys
members as a body for our audit work, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibilibies for prepaning the Annual Report and the Consoldated Financial Staterments in accordance with applicable law and
International Finangial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and for prepanng the Parent Company financal statements and the Directors’
Rermuneration Report in accordance with apphcable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibiliies on page 48.

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audted in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and far vew and whether the financial statements and the part of the

Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985 and as regards the group |
financal statements, Artide 4 of the 1AS Regulaton. We also report to you if In our opinion, the Directars Report 15 not consstent with the financial |
statements. This informaticn given in the Report of the Chirectors indudes that speafic information presented in the Operating and Financial Review that

15 cross referred from the group results section of the Report of the Directors. In addiion we report to you if, in our opirion, the company has not kept

proper accounting records, if we have not recerved all the informaton and explanations we require for our audrt, or if information speafied by law regarding

directors’ remuneration and other transactions s not disdosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the companys compliance with the nine provisions of the Combined Code specified |
for aur review by the Lisung Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report if it does not, We are not required to consider whether the i
board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opirvon on the effectveness of the group's corporate governance |
procedures or 1ts nsk and control procedures. |

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 15 consistent with the audited financial statements We consider |
the implications for our repart if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our ‘
responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audrt in accordance wath Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK 2nd Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audtt includes
examinaton, on a test bass, of ewdence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the fnanaal statements and the part of the Directors' Rermuneration
Report to be audited. 1t also includes an assessment of the sigrificant estimates and judgrments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting pokaes are appropriate to the groups and company's arcumstanices, consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient ewdence to give reasonable assurance that the financal statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report o be audited are fee
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other iregulanty or error In forming cur opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion
In our opinion.
> the group financial statements give a true and far view, in accordance with IFRSs 2s adopted by the EU of the state of the group's affairs at
31 December 2006 and of its profit for the year then ended,
> the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the LAS Regulation,
> the parent company finanaal statements grve a true and far view 1n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice of the state
of the parent company’s affars at 3| December 2006,
> the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directars Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
> the information gven in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the financal statements.

KPMG Audit Plc

Chartered Accountants k WG %M,é p / C B Salisbury Square
Registered Auditor Londen
30 March 2007 EC4Y BBB

20 Moct. Wo7
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 3t December 2006

2006 2005
Notes £n £m
Conunuing operations
Revenue 56 43536 40457
Profit from operations before amorusation of acquistion-related intangible assets,
exceptional tems and share of profit from associates 2742 2497
Share of profit from associates 28 53
Profit from operauons before amorusation of acquisiuon-related intangible assets
and excepuonal items (PBITA) 6 2770 2550
Amortisation of acquistion-related intangible assets (36 0) (338)
Exceptional items. Restructuning costs consequential upon acquistions - (182)
Profit from operauons before interest and maxation (PBIT) 64 2410 2030
Finance income 12 812 726
Finance costs 13 {1222) (1122)
Profit from operauons befare taxanon (PBT) 2000 1634
Taxation
- Before amortisation of acquistion-related intangible assets and exceptionat tems (67 5) (673)
- On amortisation of acquisthon-related intangible assets 108 100
— On exception] itemns - 23
4 (567 (59 6)
Profit from continuing operations after coation 143 3 1038
Loss from discontinued operations 7 (334) (31
Profit for the year 1099 907
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 965 808
Minonty interests 134 99
Profit for the year 1099 907
Earmings per share attnbutable to ordinary equity shareholders of the parent 16
For prefit from continuing operations
Basic 102p 74p
Diluted i02p 74p
For profit frorm continuing and discontinued operations.
Basic T ép 64p
Oiluted 7ép 64p




Consolidated balance sheet

Al 3| December 2006

2006 2005
Notes im £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwall 19 11709 11763
Other acquistion-related intangble assets 19 2206 241 4
COther intangble assets 19 222 273
Property, plant and equipment 20 3550 3546
Investment in associates 22 73 39
Trade and other recervables 25 499 503
Deferred tax assets 34 1157 1129
1,941 6 19667
Current assets
Inventones 23 499 353
Trading ivvestments 2] 737 él4
Trade and other recenvables 25 7989 8298
Cash and cash equivalents 27 3075 2638
1,2300 1,1903
Total assets L1716 31570
LIABILITIES
Current liabiliues
Bank overdrafts 27 28 (97 5) (587
Bank loans 28 (70 1) (877
Obligations under finance leases 29 {135) (210
Trade and other payables 36 {707 6) (758 4)
Current tax habdities (26 3) (17 6)
Retrement benefit obligations 32 (422) {(300)
Prowvisions 13 (403) (445)
(997 6) (10190
Nan-current habilities
Bank loans 28 (8303) {790 1)
Obhgations under finance leases 29 (425) (339
Trade and other payables 30 (o (1o
Retirement benefit obligations 32 (208 3) (2110
Prowvisians 33 {387) (473)
Deferred tax liabilties 34 817 (848)
(1,2025) (1,168 1)
Towrl habidres (2,200 1) {2,187 1)
Net assets 9715 969 %
EQUITY
Share capital 35 3200 3172
Share premium and reserves 36 6152 6250
Equity attmbutable to equity holders of the parent 9352 9422
Minonty interests 363 277
Towl equity 9715 9699

The consolidated financal statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for issue on 30 March 2007

They were signed on its behalf by

Nick Buckles Trevor Dighton
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes £m £m
Profit from continuing operations before taxanon 2000 1634
Trading loss from discontinued operations before taxanon (181} 78
Adjustments lor
Finance income (812) (728)
Finance costs 1222 122
Finance costs attnbutable to discontinued operations 09 09
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment 828 754
Amortisation of acquistion-related intangible assets 0 338
Amortsation of other intangible assets 74 68
Imparment of other intangible assets 25 -
(Proft)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquistion-related (16) 28
Share of profit from associates (28) 53
Equity-settled transactions.
- Performance share plan and deferred share awards 36 I2
— Share options | 4 15
Operatng cash flow before movements in working capital 3531 3125
Increase in inventones {69 63)
Increase n recervables (177 679)
{Decrease)/increase in payables {135) (¢}
Decrease in provisions {47 6) {109)
Cash generated by operations 267 4 2275
Tax pad {70 3) (530
Net cash flow from operating acuvities 1971 1745
Invesung acuviues
Interest receved IS 98
Cash flow from associates 27 123
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-related (932) {1080)
Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquission-related 107 182
Acquisition of subsidiames and separately acquired custorner-related intangble assets (967 (6927}
Net cash balances acquired 35 30
Disposal of subsidiaries 99 421
(Purchase)/disposal of trading investments (218} 48
Own shares purchased (31 (61)
Acquisition of rrenonity shareholders of the former Group 4 Falck A/S - 93
Net cash used in investing activities (176 5) {103 1)
Financing actvities
Share issues 921 49
Dmdends pad to minonty interests {30) sn
Dmdends pad to equity shareholders of the parent (49 8) (399)
Net increase in borrowings 951 473
Iterest paid (59 3) 479
Net cash inflow from hedging financal instruments 118 -
Repayment of obhgations under finance leases &84 (7 6)
Net cash flow from financing acuvities (45) (483
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 37 161 231
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 205 1 1777
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (112) 43
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 27 2100 2051




Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2006

2006 2005
£m £m
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (42 6) 365
Actuanal losses on defined retrement benefit schemes {(334) (226)
Change in far value of cash flow hedgng financial instruments 11 04
Change in far value of net wvestment hedgng financial instruments 1é 62)
Tax on tems taken directly to equity ()] i23
Net (expense)/income recognised directly in equity {(647) 204
Profit for the year 1099 907
Total recognised income 452 1t
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 38 1012
Minonty interests 134 99
Toual recognised income 452 IHe
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 General information
Group 4 Secuncor ple 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Azt 1985 The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the comparny and entities (its subsidiames) controlled by the company {collectively compnsing the group)
and the group's interest n assotiates and jontly controlied entiies made up to 31 December each year The nature of the group s operations and
its prncipal actvities are set out 10 note 6 and in the operating and financial review on pages |0 to 27 The group operates throughout the world
and in a wade range of funcbonal currences the most significant being the euro the US dollar and sterting The group's financial statements are
presented in stering, as the group’s pnmary listing 15 in the UK. Foreign operations are included i accordance with the policies set out in note 3
The address of the registered office 1s gven on page 109

2 Statement of comphance
The consclidated financal statements of the group have been prepared n accordance with Internatignal Financial Reporting Standards adopted for

use in the European Union (EU) The company has elected to prepare s parent company financizl statements in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) These are presented on pages 98 te 105

3 Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The consohdated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the going concern basis and using the hstoncal cost basis,
except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets and finanaal instruments. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below
Judgements made by the directors in the application of these accounting policies which have a significant effect on the financial statements, and
estimates with a significant nsk of matenal adjustment, are discussed in note 4

The comparative ;ncome statement for the year ended 31 December 2005 has been re-presented for operations discontinued dunng the
currert year Turnover from continuing operations has been reduced by £84 2m and profit from operations before taxation (PBT) has been
wcreased by £59m i respect of these operations. Further details of dscontinued operations are presented within note 7 In addition, the
comparative balance sheet at 31 December 2005 has been restated to reflect the completion dunng 2006 of the intial accounting 1n respect
of acquistions made dunng 2005 Adjustments made to the provisional caloutation of the far values of assets and habiliies acquired amount to

£3 6m, with an equivalent increase in the reported value of goodwill The impact of these adjustments on the net assets acquired 15 presented
in note 17

(b) Basis of consalidation

Subsldiaries

Subsidianes are entries controlled by the group. Controt 1s achieved where the group has the power to gavern the financial and operating
policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its actvities, determined erther by the groups ownership percentage, or by the
terms of any shareholder agreement.

On acquistion the assets and habiltes and contingent habiliies of the acquired business are measured at ther far values at the date of
acquisibon Any excess of the cost of acquistion over the farr values of the identfiable net assets acquired 15 recogrised as gooadwall Any
deficency in the cost of acquisition below the farr values of the dentfiable net assets acquired (e discount on acquisition) 1s credited to the
Income statement in the year of acquisition The interest of minonty shareholders 15 stated at the minonty s proportion of the far values of
the assets and liabiliies recognised Subsequently any losses applicable to the minanty interest in excess of the carrying value of the minorty
interest are allocated against the interest of the parent, except to the extent that the minorty has both a binding obligation and the ability
to make an addonal iInvestment to cover the losses,

The results of subadianes acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of cantro! or up to the effectrve date of disposal as appropnate

Joint ventures

A joint venture 1§ a contractual arrangerment whereby two or more parties undertake an economic actmty that 1s subject to joint control,
in that strategic financial and operating decisions require the unanimous consent of the parties.

The group’s interest n joint ventures 15 accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method whereby the group s share of the results
and assets and labilities of a jontly-controlled entity s combined ine by line with smilar tems n the groups consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Associates

An assocate 15 an entity over which the group 15 1n a posiion to exercse significant influence, but not control or joint control, through part:apation
in the financial and operating policy deasions of the investee

The results and assets and habiliies of associates are incorporated in the group's consclidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting except when classfied as held for sale (see nate 3(t)) lvestments in associates are carmed In the balance sheet at cost as
adjusted by post-acquisiton changes in the groups share of the net assets of the assocates less any impairment in the value of indmdual
investments. Losses of the associates in excess of the group's interest In those associates are not recogrused

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consohidation. Where a group company transacts wath a joint
venture of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group's Interest in the relevant joint venture

(<) Foreign currencies
The financial statements of each of the groups businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business Transactions
n currencies other than the funcional currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevaling on the dates of the transachons. At each
balance sheet date, monetary assets and labilives which are denominated in other curencies are retranslated at the rates prevating on that
date Non-monetary assets and labilities camed at far value which are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevaling
at the date when the far value was determined Non-monetary items measured at histoncal cost denominated in other currencies are not
retranslated Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are included in the income staternent for the pencd

On consolidation the assets and habilibies of the groups overseas operations, including goodwill and farr value adjustments arsing on their
acquisiion, are transtated into sterling at exchange rates prevaling on the balance sheet date Income and expenses are trarslated into sterling
at the average exchange rates for the penod (unless ths s not a reasonable appraxamation of the cumulative effect of the rate prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions) Exchange differences ansing are
recognised In equity together with exchange differences ansing on monetary items that are in substance a part of the groups net investment
in foreign operations and on borrowings and other curmency instruments designated as hedges of such investments where and to the extent
that the hedges are deemed to be effective All such translation differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in which the
operation 1s disposed of

In order to hedge its translaton expasure 1o certan foreign currenaies in which mare than 1% of the groups consolidated net operating
assets are denominated, the group utilises dervative financial instruments (see note 3(d) for Getalls of the groups accounting polices in respect
of such nstruments)

The financial statements of foreign subsidianes, associates and jointly controlled entities which report in the currency of a hypennflationary

economy are restated in terms of the measuring unrt (the hypennflationary aurmency) current at the balance sheet date before they are translated
nto steriing,

(d) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
In accordance with its treasury policy, the group only holds or issues dervative financial instruments to manage the group's exposure to
financial nsk, not for trading purposes, Such financial msk includes the interest nsk on the groupss vanable-rate borrowings and foreign exchange
nsk on transactions, on the translabion of the group s results and on the translation of the groups net assets measured in foreign currencies,
to the extent that these are not matched by foregn currency bormrowings. The group manages these nsks through a range of dervatve
financial instruments including interest rate swaps, fixed rate agreements, forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps.

Dernatve financial mstruments are recognised in the balance sheet as finanaal assets or labiites at far value The gan or loss on re-measurerment
to far value 1s recognised smmediately in the income statement. However where derwatives qualify for hedge accounting, recogniton of any
resuftant gan or loss depends on the nature of the tem being hedged as descnbed below

Falr value hedge

The change in the far value of both the hedging iInstrument and the related portion of the hedged item s recognised immediately in the
ncome statement
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedge

The change in the far value of the portion of the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge s recogrised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged cash flow impacts the income statement The ineffectve portion of the far
value of the hedging instrument 1s recognised immediately in the income statement.

Net investment hedge

The change in the far value of the portion of the hedging instrument that 15 determined to be an effecuve hedge 15 recogrused in equity and
subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged net investment impacts the income statement. The ineffective portion of the
far value of the hedging instrurment 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

(e) Intangible assets

Gaoodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by the applcation of the purthase method. Goodwill anang on consolidation represents the excess

of the cost of acquision aver the group's interest in the far value of the identifiable assets and labilities and contingent habiiues of a subsidiary,
assocate or jaintly-controlled entrity at the date of acquistion Goodwill 1s stated at cost, less any accumulated impairment losses, and 15 tested
arvwally for impairment. In respect of associates, the carmying amount of gocdwill 1s induded withen the net Investment tn assoaates. On dsposal of a
subsidiary, assonate or jointty controlled entity the attnbutable amount of goodwill 15 Included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on acquistions before transition te RS on | January 2004 has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts, subject to
being tested for imparment at that date Goodwill wnitten off to reserves under UK GAAP pnor to 1998 has not been rewnstated and 15 not
included i determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Acquisition-related Intangible assets

Intangible assets on acquisitons that are esther separable or ansing from contractual nghts are recogrused at far value at the date of
acquisiton Such acquistion-related intangible assets include trademarks, technalogy customer contracts and customer relationships. The far
value of acquisiion-related intangible assets 1s deterrined by reference to market prices of similar assets, where such information 15 avalable
or by the use of appropnate valuation techmques, induding the royalty relief method and the excess earnings method

Acquisiticn-related intangible assets are amortised by equal annual instalments over their expected economic Iife The directors review
acquishon-related intangble assets on an ongoing basis and, where appropnate prowde for any impairment n value

The estimated useful hves are as follows.

Trademarks up to a maximum of five years
Customer contracts and customer relauonships up to a maximum to ten years
Technology up to a maxamumn of five years

Other Intangible assets — development expenditure

Development expendrture represents expenditure incurred in establishing new services and products of the group Such expenditure 15
recognised as an intangible asset only if the following can be demonstrated the expenditure creates an identfiable asset, its cost can be
measured reliably it 15 probable that it will generate future econamic benefits, it 15 technically and tommercially feasible and the group has
sufiicent resources to complete development. In all other instances, the cost of such expenditure i taken directly to the income statermnent.

Caprtalised development expenditure 1s amortised over the penod dunng which the expenditure 1s expected to be revenue-praduang, up to

a maamum of ten years. The directors revew the capitalised development expenditure on an ongoing basis and, where appropriate prowide
for any imparment in value

Research expenditure 15 wntten ofl in the year in which 1t 15 incurred

Other Intangible assets — software

Computer software 1s captalised as an intangible asset f such expenditure (both generated nternaly and purchased externally) creates an
idenbifiable asset, f ris cost can be measured relably and f t 15 probable that it will generate future economic benefits. Capitalised computer
software is stated a1 cost, net of depreaation and any provision for imparrment. Amortsation 1s charged on software so as to wiite off the cost of
the assets to their esmated residual values by equal annual instaiments over thesr expected usefut economsc Ives up ta a maamum of five years,
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, net of deprecaton and any provsion for impairment. Deprecation 15 prowided on all property,
plant and equipment other than freehcld land Depreciation 15 calculated se as to wnte off the cost of the assets 1o their estimated residual
values by equal annual instalments over their expected useful ecanomic lives as follows:

Freehold and long leasehold buldings up to 2%
Short leasehold buildings (under 50 years) over the life of the lease
Equipment and motor vehicles 0% - 333%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful econome Ives on the same basis as owned assets or where
shorter over the term of the relevant lease

Where significant, the residual values and the useful economic iives of property plant and equipment are re-assessed annually The directors
review the carrying value of property. plant and equipment on an ongoing basis 2nd, where appropriate prowde for any imparment in value

{g) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recogmsed when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Trade receivables
Trade recenvables do not carry interest and are stated at their far value

PFl assets

Under the terms of a Private Finance [ntiative: (PFI) or similar project, where the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset remain largely
with the purchaser of the assocated services, the group s interest in the asset is classified as a financial asset and induded at tts discounted
value within trade and other recevables.

Current asset investments
Current asset investments compnse investments in secunties, which are classified as held for trading. They are iiually recogmised at cost,

indluding transaction ¢osts, and subsequently measured at fair value Gains and losses ansing from changes in farr value are recogrised in the
Income statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-beaning bank loans and overdrafts are recogrused at the value of proceeds receved, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including

premiums payable on settlement or redemptron and direct tssue costs are recogmsed i the Income statement on an accrual basis using the
effectve interest method

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at fair value

Equity instruments
Equity instruments i1ssued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds receved net of direct issue costs

(h) Inventores

0]

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents expenditure incurred in the ordinary course of business
w bringing inveritones to their present condition and locatien and includes appropnate overheads. Cost i calculated usng either the weighted
average or the first-n-first-out method Net realisable value 1s based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to be incurred to
completion and disposal Provision 15 made for obsolete slow-mowng or defective tems where appropnate

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an tegral part
of the groups cash management are induded as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash fiow statement.
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3 Significant accounting policies {(continued)

) Impairment

The carrying value of the group's assets, apart from inventones and deferred tax assets, s reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication
of mpareent. and if any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amount 1s estmated An imparment loss 1s recogrised in the income
staternent whenever the carrying value of an asset or s cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable armount,

The recoverable amount of an asset 15 the greater of its net sefling pnce and 1ts value In use, where value in use 15 assessed as the estmated
future cash flows derming from the asset discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market
assessments of the trme value of money and the rsks speafic to the asset, For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash flows,
the recoverable amount 1s determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset attaches

The recoverable amount of goodwill 15 tested annually through assessing the carrying values of the cash generating units to which the goodwall
attaches. An imparment loss recognised in respect of a cash-generating unit 15 allocated first so as to reduce the carrying value of any goodwil
allocated to the cash-generating unt and then to reduce the carrying value of the other assets in the unrt on a pro-rata basis.

An rapairment loss i respect of goodwll 1s not reversed In respect of any other asset. an imparment loss 15 reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine its recaverable amount. The amount of the reversal s imited such that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed that which would have been determined (after depreciation and amortisation) If no impairment loss had been recogmised

(k) Repurchase of share capital

o

‘When share caprtal recogrused as equity 1s repurchased the amount of the consideration pad mduding directly attnibutable costs, 1s recogmised

as a change n equity Where repurchased shares are held by an employee benefit trust, they are classified as treasury shares and presented
as a deduction from equity

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contnbution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit

schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contnbution schemes where the group's ebligations under the schemes are equivalent to those
ansing 1n a defined contnbutron retirement benefits scheme

For defired benefit schemes the cost of provding benefits s determined using the projected unit credit method wath actuanal valuztions being
carmed out at each balance sheet date The discount rate used is the yeld at the balance sheet date on AA ¢redit rated corporate bonds that
have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the group's obligations. The expected finance income on assets and the finance cost on
habiities are recognised in the income statement as components of finance income and finance cost respectively Actuanal gains and losses

are recognised 1n full in the penod in which they occur and presented outside the income statement in the statement of recogrused ncome
and expense

Past service cost 1s recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested Ctherwise t 15 amortised on a straghtdine basis
over the average penod until the benefits vest

The retrement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit cbligaton as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost, reduced by the far value of scheme assets. Any asset resutting from this caleulation 1s imited to unrecogrised
past service cost plus the present value of avalable refunds and reductions in future contnbutons to the scheme

Long-term service benefits

The group’s net obhigation in respect of long-term service benefits other than retirement benefits represents the present value of the future
benefit that employees have earned at the balance sheet date less the fair value of scheme assets aut of which the obligauons are to be
settled directly
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(1) Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payments
The group has appled the optional transitianal exemptions in IFRS 2 Share-based Payment and implemented its requirements for grants
of equity instruments made after 7 November 2002 which had not vested by | January 2005

The group 1ssues equity-settied share-based payments to certain employees. The far value of share-based payments 15 determined at the date
of grant and expensed, with a corresponding increase in equity on a straight-line basis over the vesting pernod based on the group's estimate
of the shares that will eventually vest. The amount expensed 1s adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estimate of the number

af shares that will eventualty vest, save for changes resufting from any market-related performance conditions

The farr value of share-based payments granted in the form of options 1s measured by the use of the Black-Scholes valuation technique
adjusted for future dmvdend receipts and for any market-related performance conditions.

(m) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obligation exists for a future lability in respect of a past event and where the
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably ltems within provisions include clams against the group's captive Insurance businesses, costs
of meeting lease requirements on unoccupied properties and restructunng provisions for the costs of @ business rearganisation where the
plans are suffivently detaled and where the appropnate communication to those affected has been undertaken at the batance sheet date

Where the time value of money 15 matenal prowisions are stated at the present value of the expected expenditure using an approprate
discount rate

{n) Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business and 1s measured at the far value

of the consideration receved or receivable net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes. Revenue for manned securty and cash services
products and for recurmnng services in secunty systems products s recogrised over the penod in which the service 1s provided Revenue on
secunty systems installations 15 recogrused erther on completion in respect of product sales, or in accordance with the percentage of
completion method in respect of construction contracts.

Construction contracts

Certain secunity system installabons are accounted for as construction contracts. Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated relably revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract actrity at the balance sheet date
This 1s normally measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work to date bear to the esumated total contract costs, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of completion Vanations in contract werk, clams and incentive payments are included to
the extent that it 15 Lkely that they will be agreed with the customer

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estmated rehably contract revenue 15 recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are deemed ikely to be recoverable Contract costs are recogrused as expenses as they are incurred. Where 1t s hikely that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue the expected loss 15 recognised immediately as an expense

Construcbion contracts are recognised on the balance sheet at cost plus profit recognised to date, fess provision for foresseable losses and less
progress tallings. Balances are not offset

Government grants
Government grants In respect of ttems expensed in the income statement are recognised as deductions from the associated expendrture

Government grants in respect of property, plant and equipmernt are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over
the Iives of the related assets,

Interest
Interest ncome 18 accrued on a tme basis by reference to the prinaipal outstanding and at the effactve interest rate apphicable This s the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected Iife of the financial asset to that assets net carrying amount.

Dividends
Omadend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders' nghts to recerve payment have been estabhshed
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3 Significant accounting policies {(continued)

(o) Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recogrised in the income statement.

(p) Profit from operations
Profit from operations is stated after the share of results of associates but before finance income and finance costs. Exceptional items
of particular significance including restructunng costs, are included within profit from operations but are disclosed separatety

{q) Income taxes
Tax 15 recogrused in the income staterment except to the extent that it relates to tems recogrised in equrty In which case 1t 1s recognised
In equity The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on taxable proft for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because

t excdudes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes tems that are never taxable

or deductible The group s hiabality for current tax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carryng amounts of assets and liabilies in the
consclidated finanaal statements and the comresponding tax bases used in the computaton of taxable proft, and 1§ accounted for using the
balance sheet hability method Deferred tax iabiities are generally recogmised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probabie that taxable profits will be avalable aganst which deductible temporary differences can be utilised
Such assets and liabilibes are not recogrsed «f the temporary difference anses from the intial recognrion of goodwall In a business combination
or from the inbal recognion {other than 1n a business combinauon) of other assets and liabilities 1n a transaction that affects nerther the tax
profit nor the 2ccounting profit.

Deferred tax labilmes are recogmised for taxable temparary differences arsing on investments in subsidianes and interests in joint ventures,
except where the group 15 able 1o control the reversal of the temporary difference and 15 probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date ana reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avalable 10 allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the perod when the lhability is settled or the asset 15 realsed Deferred
tax 1 charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity in which case the
deferred tax 1s also dealt with In equity

(r) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantally 2!l of the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other Jeases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the inception of the lease at their far value or if lower, at the present value of the mwumum
lease payments The corresponding hability 10 the lessor 1s included i the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recorded as recevables at the amount of the groups net investment in the leases Lease payments made or
recerved are apportioned between finance charges or income and the reduction of the lease liabiity or asset so as to produce a constant rate
of interest on the outstanding batance of the lability or asset.

Rentals payable or recervable under operating leases are charged or credited to ncome on a straight-line basis over the lease term as are
incentives to enter into opemtlng leases

{s) Segment reporting
A segment & a significant cormpanent of the group which 1s subject to nsks and rewards distinguishable from those of other segmients either by
the nature of the servces provided (business segment) or by the econamic ervronment in which 1t transacts business (geographical segment)
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of cammying amount and far value less costs to seli

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use This condrtion 15 regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset {or disposal group)
s avallable for immediate sale in 1ts present condrtion The group must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualfy for
recognihon as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

A discontinued operation 1s a compenent of the group's business that represenits a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations or is @ subsidary acquired excdusively with a view 1o resale that has been disposed of, has been abandoned or that meets the
critena to be classified as held for sale

{u) Dvidends
Dridends are recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the penod in which they are declared Diwvidends proposed but not dedlared are
not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consclidated financial statements

{v) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards and interpretations
In the year ended 31 December 2006, the group has adopted all of the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (the IFRIC) of the
IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual reporting perods beginning on | January 2006 The adoption of these rew
and revised standards and interpretations has not resulted in changes to the group s accounting policies and has not had a matenal impact
on amounts reported for the current or pricr years

At the year end, the followang standard was in 1ssue and endorsed but not yet effective

> IFRS 7 Finanaal Instruments: Chsclosures was issued in August 2005 and wall apply to the group from | January 2007 This standard supersedes
1AS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation and requires further quanistative and qualitative disclosures 1n respect of finarcial nstruments,

Other recent developments n issue and endorsed but not yet effective incude the following

> Amendment to IAS | Presentation of Financial Staternents — Caprtal Disclosures effecove from | January 2007,

> IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under A5 29 Financial Reporting n Hypennflationary Economies effective for annual penods
beginning on or after | March 2006,

> |FRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 effectve for annual perods beginning on or after | May 2006, and

> IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives effective for annual penods beginming an or after | june 2006

The directors anticipate that the adopticn of these standards and interpretations in future penods wall have no matenal financial impact on the
financial statements of the group
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4 Accounting estimates

The preparation of financal statements in conforrmaty with IFRS requires management to make judgements, eshmates and assumptions that affect
the application of the groups accounting policies, which are descnbed in note 3 with respect to the carrying amounts of assets and habilites at the
date of the financial statements, the disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financia!l statements and the reported amounts
of iIncome and expenses dunng the reporting peniod These estimates and associated assurnpbons are based an histonical expenence and various
other factors that are believed 1o be reasonable under the arcumstances, including current and expected economic conditions, and in some cases,
actuanal techmiques. Although these estmates are based on management s best knowledge of current events and arcumstances, the actual resufts
may differ from the estimates.

Estirmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estrnates are recognised in the penod in which
the estmate 15 rewised and in any future penods affected

The judgements estimates and assumptions which are of most significance to the group are detalled below

Valuation of acquired businesses

The inhal accounting for an acquisition invotves identifying and determining the far values to be assigned to identifable assets, Yabilives and
contingent liabilities as well as the acquisiton cost In some instances this imtial accounting can only be determined provisionally by the end of the
penod in which the acquastion 15 effected because ether the far values andior the cast 1s not known wath full certanty In such an event, the inrtial
accounting can be completed using provisional values with any adiustments to those provisional values being completed within 12 months of the
acquisition date  Addrionally, in determining the far value of acquistion-related intangible assets, in the absence of market prces for similar assets,
valuation techniques are applied These techniques use a vanety of estmates mcluding projected future results and expected future cash flows
discounted using the weighted average cost of capital Full detals of the fair values of assets and labilties of acquired businesses are presented in
note {7

Assessment of the recoverable amounts in respect of assets tested for impairment

The group tests tangble and intangible assets, including goodwall for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indications that
amounts may be impared The impairment analysis for such assets 1s pnncipally based upon discounted estimated future cash flows from the use
and eventual disposal of the assets. Such an analysis includes an estmation of the future anticipated resufts ang cash flows, annual growth rates and
the appropnate discount rates. The full methedology and results of the group's impairment testing 1s presented in note 19

Valuation of retirement benefit obligations

The valuation of defined retirement benefit schemes 1s armved at using the advice of qualified independent actuanes who use the projected unit
credit method for determining the groups obhigations. This methodology requires the use of a vanety of assumptions and estimates, including the
appropnate discount rate the expected return on scheme assets, mortality assumptions, future service and earnings increases of employees and
inflation Full details of the groups retrement benefit abligations, including an analysis of the sensitvity of the calculabons to the key assumptions are
presented in note 32.

Revenue
An analysis of the groups revenue 15 as follows:

2006 2005
Notes im £m
Conunuing operations
Sale of goods 100 8 1438
Rendenng of services 4,184 | 38617
Revenue from construciion contracts 687 402
Revenue from continuing operat:ons as presented n the consclidated income statement 4 43536 40457
Discontinued operations
Rendenng of serces 76 4 1240
Revenue from discontinued operations 67 76 4 1240
Crther operatng income
interest recervable 140 18
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 672 &08

Total ather operating income 812 716
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6 Business and geographical segments
The group operates in two core product areas: securtty services (combirung manned secunty justice services and security systems) and cash
services. The group operates on a worldwide basis and derves a substantial proportion of its revenue and profit from operations before interest
and taxation (PBIT) from each of the following geographic regions Europe (comprising the United Kingdom and Ireland and Centmental Europe)
North Amenca, and New Markets (compnsing the Middle East and Gulf States, Latn Amenca and the Canbbean Afnca, and Asia Pacific)

The current management structure of the group 15 a combination of product area ardd geography, within which the larger businesses generalty
report by product area The groups pnmary segmentation 15 therefore by business segment and its secondary segmentation 1s by geography
Commentary on the segments 1s prowded within the Operating and Financial Review on pages 10 to |9

In 2005 the group reported three product segments. manned security (Including justice services), securtty systems and cash services Dunng 2006
the group integrated sts manned securtty and security systems businesses within Europe into a secunty services country reporting-ne structure,
similar to the structure that was already in place within New Markets. Therefore the group 1s managed by and thus reports two product segments:
secuntty services and cash servces. For this year only, the secunty services segment 1s further analysed between manned secunty and secunty
systems but this will not be the case going forward for the fully integrated secunty services product segment

Segment information 1s presented below

Segment revenue

Revenue by business segment Contring  Disconunied Contrung  Discontinued
operations operations Total operatiens operations Total
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
£m £m im £m £m £m
Security Services
UK and Ireland 5397 - 5397 5349 - 5149
Continental Europe 1,252 4 35 1,2559 1.1680 75 11755
Europe 1,792 | 35 1,795 6 17029 75 17104
Naorth Amenca 1,049 9 132 1,063 1 10056 480 10536
Middle East and Gulf States [255 - 1255 898 - 898 1
Latin Amenca and the Canbbean 1245 - 1248 1009 04 10 3
Afnca 1526 - 1526 142t - 1421
Asia Pacific 2360 - 2360 2065 - 2065
New Markets 6386 - 6386 5393 04 5397
Total Securty Sernces 34806 167 34973 32478 559 33037
Manned Security 30645 167 30812 28582 33% 29141
Securtty Systems 4161 - 416} 3896 - 3896
Total Secunty Services 34806 167 349713 3,2478 559 33037
Cash Serwices
Europe 6617 597 T2l 4 6207 679 688 &
MNorth Amenca 853 - 853 769 - 769
New Markets 126 0 - 1260 1003 02 1005
Total Cash Services 8730 597 9327 7979 681 8660
Total revenue 43536 76 4 44300 40457 1240 41697
Revenue by geographic market Total Total
2006 2005
fm €m
UK and Ireland 9289 9029
Continental Eurcpe 1,588 1 1,496 |
Europe 25170 23990
North Amenca 1,148 4 1 1305
Middle East and Gulf States 147 1 974
Laun Amenca and the Canbbean 1629 1370
Afnca 168 | 1545
Asia Pacific 2865 2513
New Markets 764 6 6402

Totaf revenue 44300 4,169 7
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& Business and geographical segments (continued)

Segment revenue (continued)

Revenue from internal and external customers Total gross Inter- Total gross Inter
by business segment 1egrnent segment External segment sagrment Extermal
revenye revenue revenue revenue revenue revenuoe
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
fm fm im £m £m £m
Secunty Services 35011 (38) 34973 33093 (56) 33037
Cash Services 9335 08 9327 8682 (22) B660
Total revenue 4434 6 (4 6) 44300 41775 (78) 41697
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.
Segment resulc
PBITA by business segment Corminulng ~ Discontinued Contnuing Discontinued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
2006 1005 2006 2005 2005 2005
Em £m im £m £m £m
Secunty Services
[ UK and Ireland 441 - 441 425 - 425
Continental Europe 604 (23) S8 | 583 07 576
Europe 1045 (2.3) 1022 1008 o7 1001
North Amenica 627 07 634 610 (04) 06
Middle East and Guif States 109 - 109 78 - 78
Latin Amenca and the Canbbean 65 - 65 33 - 33
Afnca 12.5 - 125 133 - 133
Asia Pacific 185 - 185 152 - 152
New Markets 484 - 484 396 - 396
Total Securtty Services 2156 (16) 2140 2014 (n 2003
Manned Secunty 1809 (1 6 179 3 169 3 () 1682
Securtty Systems 347 - 347 321 - 321
Total Securtty Services 2156 (I &) 2140 201 4 {(n 003
Cash Services
Eurcpe 687 {156) 531 &00 (18) 584
North Amenca 18 - 18 28 - 28
Mew Markets 174 - 17 4 155 - 1535
Total Cash Servces 879 (156) 723 783 {16) 767
Total PRITA before head office costs 3035 (172) 2863 2797 7 2770
Head office costs {26 5} - (26 5) (247) - (247)
Total PBITA 2770 (172 2598 25590 27 2523
PBITA by geographic market
Europe 1732 (179) 1553 1608 (23) 1585
North America 645 07 652 638 o4 634
New Markets 658 - 658 551 - 551
Total PBITA before head office costs 3035 {172) 2863 2797 27 2770
Head office costs (26 5) - (26 5) (247 - (47}
Total PBITA 2770 (172) 2598 2550 Q7 2523
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é Business and geographica! segments (continued)

Segment result (continued)

Result by business segment Condruing  Discontinued Contnuing  Discontinued

operations operations Total operations operatons Total

2006 2006 2006 205 2005 2005

£m im im £m m £m

Total PBITA 2770 {172} 2598 2550 2n 2523
Amortsatien of acquismien-related intangible assets (360) - {36 0) (338) - (338)
Exceptional tems - - - {183 (40) (222)
Total PRIT 2410 {172} 2238 2030 6N 1963
Secunty Services 1995 {16) 1979 1730 {n 1719
Cash Services 680 (156) 524 561 (56) 505
Head office costs (26 5) - (26 5) {261 - (281
Total PBIT 2410 (172 2238 2030 (67) 1963

The profit from continuing operations before interest and taxation stated above 1s equal to the profit from operations before nterest and taxation
disddosed in the income statement. The loss from discontinued operauons before interest and taxation stated above 1s equal to the loss before
nterest and tax from discontinued operations as analysed in nate 7 which provides a reconcliation to the net loss from discontinued operations

Segment assets and liabilities
The following information 1s analysed by business segment and by the geographicat zrea in which the assets are lacated

Total assets 2006 2005
Em fm
By business segment
Securtty Services 1,802 1 18046
Cash Services 8430 8631
Head office 8l 4 548
Inter-segment trading balances (518) (36)
Total segment operating assets 26747 27189
By geographical segment
UK and ireland B6B 9 8619
Continental Europe 7736 7931
Europe 1,642 5 1,6550
North Amenca 5867 6737
Middle East and GUif States 625 299
Latin Amenca and the Canbbean 8l 2 624
Afnca 751 659

Asia Pacific 1780 1772
New Markets 3%8 3354
Head office 8l 4 548
Inter-segment trading balances (327) -
Total segment operating assets 26747 27189
Non-operating assets 496 9 438 |
Total assets L1716 31570
Total habilues 2006 2005

£m £m
By business segment
Securtty Services (598 9) {5967)
Cash Services (195 1) {1833)
Head office “454) (748)
Inter-segment trading balances 518 36
Total segment aperating labiies (787 6) {8512)
Non-operating habilties (14125) {1.3359)
Total habilities (2,200 1) (2,187 1)

Non-operating assets and habudities compnse financial assets and habilities, taxation assets and habilities and retirement benefit obligations.
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6 Business and geographical segments (continued)

Other information by geographical location

By business segment Impairment Impainment
losses Deprecaton losses Depreciation
recognised and Capiual recognised and Caprtal
in Income amortisation additions N Income amortisation additions
2006 2006 1006 2005 2005 2005
fm £m im £m m m
Secunty Services 25 582 1351 - 512 947
Cash Services - 677 739 - 624 854
Head office - 03 06 - 24 50
Total 25 1262 2096 - 1160 1851
By geographical segment Capital Capital
additions addrtions
1006 2005
fm £m
1 UK and Ireland 450 382
Continental Europe 64 5 586
Europe 109 5 368
| North Amenca 152 331
Middle East and Gulf States 310 129
| Latin Amenca and the Canbbean 191 102
Africa 151 63
Asia Pacific 191 208
New Markets 843 502
Head office 06 50
Total 2096 1851

7 Discontinued operations
Discontinued operations represent operations disposed of dunng 2005 and 2006

On 22 December 2006 the group agreed terms for the dvestment of GA4S Geld-und Wertdienste GmbH the German cash services business.
The business and assets of Cognisa Transportation, Inc were disposed of on 28 December 2006,

| In 2005, the group disposed of the securtty operations of Cognisa Security in the US, which were sold on 31 August 2005 Further disposals
meluded Group 4 Falck Cash Services UK, sold on 7 March 2005, and the manned secunty business of Falck Secunty Nederland and its subsidianes
(with the exception of avaton secunty activities) sold on 2 November 2005 The disposal of these businesses was required by the European
Comrmussion as a condition for their approval of the combination between the security businesses of the former Group 4 Falck A/S and Secuncor ple
on |9 July 2004 Dunng the disposal process the group did not have control over these operations and in consequence their results were not
consoldated from 20 july 2004
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7 Discontinued operations (continued)

The resutts of the discontinued operations which have been included in the consoldated income statement are presented below The trading

results are defined as the results before the impairment of goodwill and other assets and other exceptional tems,

2006 2005
£m £m
Revenue 76 4 1240
Expenses {93 6} (1267
Operating loss before interest and taxation (172} (27}
Net finance costs (09} ©9)
Attributable tax (expense)/credrt (13 14
Total operating loss for the year (19 4) 22
Exceptional tems - (40)
Total trading loss for the year (19 4} (62)
Loss on dispasal of discontinued operations {note 18) (192) (53)
Attnibutable tax expense - (16)
Total loss on current year disposal (192) (6%
Adjustment in respect of disposals in the pnor year 52 -
Net loss attnbutable to discontinued operations (314) (130

The adjustment in respect of disposals i the prior year comprises £3 2m relating to the finalisztion of proceeds from the sale of Cognisa Securtty

in 2005 and £2 0m relating to the fmalisation of the disposal of Falck Securtty Nederand 1n 2005
The effect of discontinued operations on segment resutts 15 disclosed n note 6,

Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the consolidated cash flow statement are as follows.

2006 2005
Em £m
Net cash flows from operating actvtes (19 5) &9
Net cash flows from investing activties 76 59
Net cash flows from financing actovities 02 05
({FA] (153)
Profit from operaticns before interest and taxation
The income statement can be analysed as follows:
2006 2005
im m
Conunuing operations
Revenue 4,353 6 40457
Cost of sales (3.423 1) (3,160 1)
Gross profit 9305 8856
Adrnistration expenses (692 3) (687 9)
Share of profit from assooates 28 53
Profit from operations before interest and taxation 2410 2030

Induded within admunsstration expenses 1s £36.0m (2005 £33 8m) of amertsation of acqusiion-related intangible assets and £nil (2005 £182m)

of exceptional tems.

Revenue and expensas relating to discontinued operations are disclosed in note 7
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9

10

Profit from operations
Profit from continung and disconbnued operations has been armved at after charging/(crediting)

2006 2005
im £m

Cost of sales
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 680 696
Wiite-down of ventones to net realisable value 05 10
Reversal of inventones previously wntten down to net realisable value because subsequertly sold 02) ©8)
Administrason expenses
Amorusation of acquisiron-related intangible assets 360 338
Amortsation of other intangible assets 74 68
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 828 754
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquistion-related 25 -
(Prafit)ioss on disposal of property; plant and equipment and imangible assets other than acquistion-related {16) 28
Imparment of trade recevables 46 47
Litsgation settlements ot 12
Research and development expenditure | 4 14
COperating lease rentals payable 850 &4 7
Qperating sub-lease rentals recewable {19 (9
Cost of equity-settled transactions 50 27
Government grants recerved as a cantnbution towards wage costs 23 -
Net foreign translation adjustments 10 02
Auditors’ remuneration

2006 2005

fm fm

Fees payable to the company s auditor for the audit of the company s annual repert and accounts (] 09
Fees payable to the companys auditor and its assocates for other services.
The audit of the company's subsidanes pursuant to legistation 22 18
Other services pursuant to legslation 01 0l
Taxation services 03 02
Corporate finance servces 02 -
Fees payable to other auditors for the audit of the company s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 06 07

The Corporate Governance Staternent on pages 36 to 38 outhnes the companys established policy for ensunng that audit independence 1s not

compromised through the provision by the company’s auditor of other serwvices,
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12

Staff costs and employees

The average manthly number of employees, in continuing and discontinued operations, including executive directors was

2006 2008
Number Number
By business segment
Secunty Services 403,127 359989
Cash Services 36,866 35645
Mot allocated wehuding shared admunistration and head office 135 137
Total average number of employees 440,128 395771
By geographical segment
Europe 114,216 112,647
North Amenca 51,919 53045
New Markets 273,858 229942
Not allocated, including shared administratron and head coffice 135 137
Total average number of employees 440,128 395,771
Thesr aggregate remuneration in continuing and discontinued operations compnsed:
2006 2005
Em £m
Wages and salanes 2,654 3 24930
Soaal secunty costs g7 8 3655
Employee benefits 662 619
Total staff costs 3,1083 29204
Information on directors’ remuneration, share options, long-term incentive plans, and pension contnbutions and entitlernents 15 set out i the
Directors Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 47
Finance mncome
1006 2005
£m £m
Interest recenvable 140 I8
Expected return on defined retrement benefit scheme assets 672 608
Total finance income 812 726
Finance costs
2006 2005
£m £m
Interest on bank everdrafts and loans 534 437
Interest on other loans 02 05
Interest on obigations under finance leases 24 18
Total group borrowing costs 560 460
Finance costs on defined retirerment benefit obligations 662 657
Decrease in far value of trading investments - 05
Total finance costs 1222 1122
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14 Taxation
Contiruing ~ Discontinued Cortirung Discortinued
operadons operations Total aperations operations Total
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
£m im £m £n £m m
Current taxation expense
Current taxation
UK corporation tax {01 - 10} bl - I
Overseas tax 498 13 ] S34 02 536
Adjustments in respect of pnor years:
UK corporauen tax 07 - 07 (36) - (36)
COwerseas tax (35) - (35) (56} - {(>6)
Total current taxation expense 571 13 58 4 553 02 555
Deferred taxation expense (see note 34)
Deferred taxation
Current year - - - (14) - (14
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 04) - 04 57 - 57
Total deferred taxation expense {04) - (04) 43 - 43
Total income tax expense for the year 567 13 580 596 02 598

UK corporation tax 1s czlculated at 30 0% (2005 30 0%) of the esumated assessable profits for the penod Taxation for other junsdictions s calculated

at the corporation tax rates prevailing in the relevant junsdichons.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income staterment as follows.

1006 2005
Em fm
Profit/(loss} before taxation
Continuing operztions 2000 1634
Duscontinued operations 321} {129)
Total profit before taxation 1679 1505
Tax at UK corporaticn tax rate of 30% (2005 30%) 504 451
Expenses that are not deductible in deterrining taxable profit 51 130
Tax Iosses not recogrised in the current year 137 31
Different tax rates of subsidianies operating in non-UK junsdictions 80) 20
Adjustments for previous years (32) 349
Total meome tax charge 580 598
Effective tax rate 34 5% 397%

In addihion to the income tax expense charged to the income statement, a current tax {charge)/credit of £{1 4)m (2005 £12.3m) has been recognised

n equity
Dividends
Pence DKK 2005 2005
per share per share m £m
Amounts recogrused as distributions to equity holders of the parent in the year
Final dradend for the year ended 31 December 2004 | 85 01981 - 235
Intenm dmdend for the six manths ended 30 June 2005 130 01430 - I64
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2005 224 012435 283 -
Intenm dvidend for the six months ended 30 June 2006 1 69 01863 2{4 -
497 399
Proposed final dwdend for the year ended 3| December 2006 252 02766 323

The proposed finat dwdend 15 subsect to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, If so approved it will be paid on 8 June 2007
to shareholders who are on the register on | | May 2007 The exchange rate used to translate it into Darush Kroner is that at 12 March 2007
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16 Earnings/(loss) per share attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of the parent

2006 2005
Em £m
from continuing and discontinued operauons
Earmings
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 965 808
Effect of dilutive potental ordinary shares (net of tax) 03 -
Profit for the purposes of diuted earnings per share 9%8 808
Number of shares (m}
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,2683 12650
Effect of diutive potential ordinary shares 54 &0
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpases of diluted earmings/(loss) per share 1,2737 12710
Earmings per share from continuing and discontinued operations (pence)
Basic 7 6p 64p
Diluted 76p 64p
From continuing cperaucns
Earnings
Profit for the year attnbrtable to equity holders of the parent 965 808
Adjustrent to exclude loss for the year from discontinued operations (et of tax) 334 131
Profit from continuing operations 1299 939
Effect of diutive potential ordinary shares (net of tax) 03 -
Profit from contnuing operations for the purpose of diluted eamings per share 1302 939
Earnings per share from continuing operanons (pence}
Basic 102p 74p
Dihuted 102p 74p
From discontnued eperations
Loss per share from disconunued operations (pence)
Basic (26}p (1 O)p
Diluted {26)p (I Op
From adjusted earnings
Earnings
Profit from continuing operations 1299 939
Adjustment to exdude net retirement benefit finance costs and farr value adjustments
to financial instruments {net of tax) 07) 38
Adjustment to excude amortisation of acquiston-related intangible assets (net of tax) 252 238
Adjustment to excude exceptional tems (net of tax) - 05
Adjusted profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 154 4 1420
Adjusted earmings per share (pence) 12.2p 1 2p

In the opimon of the directors the earmings per share figure of most use to sharehaolders 1s that which s adusted This figure better allows the
assessment of operational performarnce, the analysis of trends over time the companson of different businesses and the projection of future earmings.

The denommnators used in all earmings/(lass) per share calculations are those disdosed in respect of continuing and discontinued operations.
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17 Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions

The group undertcok a number of acquisitons i the year, none of which were indrmdually matenal Prncipal acquistions in subsidiary undertalings
nclude the purchase of controlling interests in the Chilean company Serviios Generzles Limitada, a manned securtty services provider and in

Al Majal Secunty Services a secunty services and cash services business in Saudh Arabia, In addiion the group increased its interests in United
Arab Emirates. A summary of the provisional fair value of net assets acquired by geographic location 1s presented below:

North New Total

Europe Amenca Markets Group

£m £m m £m

Prowisional fair value of net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 20 20 154 194
Acquistion of minonty interests 42 - 68 1o
Total provisional far value of net assets acquired 62 20 222 304
Goodwall 218 30 432 680
Total purchase consideration 280 50 654 98 4

The following table sets out the book values of the dentifiable assets and labiiies acquired and their prowisional fair value to the group in respect
of all acquisticns made in the year

Far value
Book value adjustments Fair value
£m £m £m
Acquisition-related intangible assets - 176 176
Other intangible assets 03 02 01
Property, plant and equipment 67 02 &5
Inventones 18 032) 16
Trade and other recevables 167 [k 158
Deferred tax assets 02 - 02
Cash and cash equivalents 35 - 35
Trade and other payables {108) [¢X)] (127)
Provisions and retirerment benefit obligations “4n (13 59
Borrowings (25) - (25)
Deferred tax habiries - 41 @n
Minorty interests {18) 06 (12)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 102 g2 194
Acquistion of minonty interests 64 46 1o
Goodwill 680
Total purchase consideration 98 4
Satisfied by
Cash 960
Transaction costs 07
Contingent consideration 17
Total purchase consideration 98 4

Adjustments made to 1dentifiable assets and abilities on acquistion are to reflect therr far value These include the recognibion of customerrelated
intangible assets amounting to £17 6m atinbutable to the acquistuon of subsidiary undertakings and £4 ém attnbutable to the acquisivon of
minonty interests. The far values of net assets acquired are provisional and represent estmates following a preiminary valuation exercse These
estimates may be adjusted to reflect any development in the 1ssues to which they relate Final far value adjustments wall if required, be reflected

in the comparative to the 2007 consolidated financial staternents.

The goodwill ansing on acquisibions can be ascnbed to the existence of a skiled active workforte and the opportunruies to obtan new contracts
and develop the business. Nesther of these meet the citena for recognrtion as intangible assets separable from goodwall

From the date of acquisiion in aggregate, the acquired busivesses contributed £57 Im to revenues, £7 8m to profit before interest, taxation,
amortisation of acquisition-related intangibles and exceptional tems and £1 8m to net profit for the part year they were under the groups
ownerstup. If all acquistions had occurred on | January 2006, group revenue would have been £4,409 Om profit before interest, taxation
amortisation of acquisiion-refated intangibles and exceptional tems would have been £282.Im and proft for the year would have been £1100m
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17 Acquisitions (continued)

Prior year acquisitions

The group undertook a number of acquisibons in 2005 none of which were indradually matenal Pancipal acquisivons in subsidiary undertakings
induded the purchase of 100% interests in OneService a valuables transportation business in the US, and in Universal ATM Services, a cash-in-
transt business in Canada In addiion a further 21% of the shares of Hashmira, the Israeli securty company were acquired

At 3| December 2005 the far value adustments made against net assets acquired were provisional The inrtal accounting in respect of acquistions
made dunng 2005 has since been finalised The net assets acquired and goodwall ansing in respect of all acquisitions made in the year are as follows

Fair value
Book value adjustments Falr value
£m fm £m
Acquistion-related intangble assets - 19 e
Praperty plant and equipment and other intangble assets 55 @3 32
Current assets 196 (12 184
Current habities (154 249 (18 8)
Non-current liabiltes 22) (54 76
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings &5 06 71
Acquistion of minonty interests 71 15 86
Goodwll 362
Totat purchase consideration 519
Satisfied by
Cash 49 |
Transaction costs 16
Contingent habilitres 12
Total purchase consideration 519

Included within current assets acquired 1s £3 0m of cash and cash equivalents

Adjustments made to identfiable assets and habiities on acquistion are to reflect therr far value These indude the recogniion of customer-related
wtangible assets amounting to £11 9m attnbutable to the acquisiion of subsidiary undertakings and £2.Im attnbutable to the acquisibon of
minorty interests net of the associated deferred tax hability of £0 6m On completion of the fair value exercise dunng 2006, adjustments made

to the provisional calculation amount to £3 6m with an equivalent increase in the reported value of goodwill The comparative balance sheet at

3| December 2005 has been restated accordingly

The goodwll ansing on acquisiions can be ascnbed to the exstence of a skilled actve worldorce and the opportunities to obtan new contracts
and develop the business. Nerther of these meet the crtena for recognition as intangible assets separable from goodwall

In the year of acquistuon, in aggregate, the acquired businesses contributed £71 Bm to revenues, £85m to profit before interest, taxation amortisat:on
of acquistion-related intangibles and exceptional items and £3.5m to net profit for the part year they were under the groups ownership. If all
acquishions had occurred on | January 2005, group revenue would have been £4 057 7m, profit before interest, taxation amortisation of acquistion-
related intangibles and exceptional tems would have been £2559m and profit for the year would have been £91 0m.

Post balance sheet acquisitions
A rumber of acquisiions were effected after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements were authonsed for issue none of which
were indvdually material In aggregate the acquisiuons, which were in several European and New Market counthes, were sausfied by total cash

consideration of £46 3m, of which £18 |m was attnbutable to the acquision in March 2007 of Fidelty Cash Management Services (PTY) Ltd
n South Afnca.

It 1s considered impractical to disclose any further information in relation to acquisitions effected after the balance sheet date because the
preliminary assessment of the far value of assets and llabities acquired 15 1n progress.
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9

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 22 December 2006 the group agreed terms for the dvestment of G45 Geld-und Wertdienste GmbH the German cash services business.

The business and assets of Cognisa Transportation, Inc were disposed of on 28 December 2006. In 2005, the group disposed of the secunty

operations of Cognisa Securtty In the US, which were sold on 31 August 2005 Further disposals included Group 4 Falck Cash Seraces UK and
Secuncor Luxembourg, sold on 7 March 2005 and the manned secunty business of Falck Secunty Nederland and its subsidianes {with the exception

of awation secunty actwvities) on 2 November 2005

The net assets of operations disposed of were as follows.

2006 2005
£m fm
Goodwll 77 -
Praperty plant and equipment and other intangible assets 69 03
Irvestments - 323
Current assets 1 76
Other labiities (145) -
Net assets of operations disposed 12 402
Finanaal habxives ansing on disposal 147 72
Loss on disposal (192} ()]
Total consideration &7 421
Satisfied by
Cash 67 421

In additron to the consideration recesved on current year disposals, a further £3 2m was recerved in the year relating to the finalisation of proceeds

from the sale of Cognisa Securtty in 2003

The impact of the disposals on the groups results and cash flows in the current and prior year 15 disclosed in note 7

Intangible assets
2006 Goodwill Acquisidon-rebted Inangible assets Other intangibla assets Total
Customer Development
Trademarks refated Technology expenditure Software

£m £m £m £m £m €m £m
Cost
At | Jarwary 2006 12290 169 2597 123 18 472 15679
Acquistion of businesses 680 - 212 - - 0l 903
Addrtions - - - - 22 49 71
Disposals - - - - - 07 07
Disposal of businesses 77N - - - - (23) {100
Translaton adjustments {760) (05) @n 4 02 zn (87 3)
At 31 December 2006 12133 164 2748 109 48 47 1567 3
Amorusaton and accumulated

impatrment losses

At | January 2006 {527} [GX}) (393) {35) on (226) (1229)
Amorusation charge - (33) (305) (22) (03} 7n (434)
Impairment losses for the year - - - - - (25) 25
Drisposals - - - - - 02 02
Disposal of businesses - - - - - 18 18
Translation adjustments 103 0l | 4 05 0l [oL:] 132
At 31 December 2006 (424) 79 84 (52) 03) 294 (1536)
Carrying amount
At | january 2006 L1763 122 1204 g8 27 246 14450
At 31 December 2006 1,170 9 85 206 4 57 45 177 14137
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19 Intangible assets {continued)

2005 Goodwill Acquisiton-related Intangible assets Other intangible assets Total
Customar Development
Tradermarks related Technology expenditre Software

m m &m £m im £m im
Cost
At | January 2005 11507 166 2389 (KN - 467 14640
Acquisition of businesses 362 - 140 - - 0l 503
Separately acquired assets - - 30 - - - 30
Additions - - - - 28 96 124
Disposals - - - - - 95 (#5)
Translation adustments 421 03 38 |2 - 03 477
At 31 December 2005 12290 169 2597 123 28 472 1,567 9

Amortsauon and accumulated
impairment losses

At | January 2005 (544 (14 (o) (@9) - (2t 4) (CERD]
Amortisation charge - (33 (280) {25) on (67 (4086)
Disposals - - - - - 54 54
Translabon adjustments 17 - (03) ©n - ol 14
At 3| December 2005 (527) 47 (393) (35) ©n (22 6) (1229)
Carrying amount

At | January 2005 F0963 152 2279 102 - 353 13749
At 31 December 2005 11763 122 2204 88 27 146 14450

Included within saftware s internally generated software with a gross carrying value of £35m (2005 £ Im), and accumulated amortisation of
£1 4m (2005 £0 Im), gmng a net book value of £2.1m (2005 £1 Om) Cunng the year addrions amounted to £2.4m (2005 £06m) and the
amortisation charge assocated to these assets was £1 3m (2005 £0 |m)

Customer-related intangibles compnse the contractual relationship with customers and the customer relationships which meet the critersa for
denyfication as intangble assets in accordance with IFRS

Customer contracts and relationships recognised upon the acquisition of Secuncor plc on 19 July 2004 are considered significant to the group
The carrying amount at 3| December 2006 was £172.6m (2005 £2000m), and the amortisaton period remaining in respect of these assets s
seven and a half years.

Goodwll acquired 1n a business combination is allocated to the cash generating units (CGLs) which are expected to benefit from that business
combination The following CGlUs have sigrficant carrying amounts of goodwall

2006 2005

£m £m

US manned securtty 204 28535
UX cash services 226 | 2261
UK justice sernices 940 926
Netherlands manned secunty 954 871
UK manned secunty 63 4 609
Other (all allocated) 4416 424 |
Total goodwill 1,1709 11763

The group tests tangible and intangible assets, including goodwall, for impairment an an annual bas:s or more frequently i there are Indications that
amounts may be impaired The annual impairment test 15 performed just prior to the year end when the budgeting process is finalised The groups
smparment test compares the carrying value of each CGU to ds recoverable amount. Under LAS 36 Imparment of Assets, an impairment 15
deemed to have occurred where the recoverable amount of a CGU 1s less than its carrying value
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19

20

Intangible assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU 15 determined by its value 1n use which 1s derved from discounted cash flow caleulations, These calculations
include forecast cash flows for a period of five years. The five year cash flow forecasts are based on the budget for the following year (year one)
and the business plans for years two and three, the results of which are reviewed by the board and projections for years four ang five all of which
reflect past experence as well as future expected market trends, Cash flows beyond the five year forecast perod are projected inte perpetuity

at the lower of the planned growth rate 1n year three and the forecast underfying ecanomuc growth rate for the economies in which the CGU
operates. Where the planned growth rate in year three exceeds the forecast undertying econoruc growth rate the excess 1s progressively reduced
in the projections for years four and five Growth rates across the group’s CGUSs range from 0% to | 7%, Future cash flows are discounted at a

pre-tax, weighted average cost of capital which for the group s 108% (2005 10 4%) This rate 15 adjusted where appropnate to reflect the different
fnancial nsks in each country in which the CGLJs aperate

In apphang the group s model no imparment has been entified and recognised in any of the group s CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2006
or for the year ended 31 December 2005

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow calculations relate to the discount rate and underiying economic growth rate With all ather
vanables being equal an mparment of approxamately £15m would anse if ether the group discount rate were to be increased by | 5% to | 2.3%,
with an equivalent increase In the discount rate for alf countnes, or the undertying growth rate in all countries were to be reduced by 2.0%. These
approamations indicate the sensievity of the impairment test to changes in the undertying assumptions Hawever it s highty unlkely that any
vanations Iin the assumptions would impact on all CGUs at the same tme

Property, plant and equipment

Land and Equipment

buildings and vehicles Total
2006 m £m im
Cost
At | January 2006 1424 489% 6323
Additons 123 934 1057
Acquistion of businesses Q7 58 65
Disposal of businesses (49 (128) (177
Disposals 82) (124) (20¢6)
Translation adjustments {45) {234) 279)
At 31 December 2006 1378 5405 6783
Depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2006 {182) (2495) 2777)
Depreciation charge {85) (743) {828)
Disposals 36 84 120
Disposal of businesses | 4 99 113
Translation adjustments 12 127 139
At 31 December 2006 (305) (2928) (3233)
Carrying amount
At | January 2006 1142 2404 3546

At 31 December 2006 107 3 2477 3550
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20 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land and Equipment

bulldings and vehlcles Toual
2005 £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2005 1475 407 | 5546
Addons 141 1022 1163
Acquisition of businesses Gé6 15 31
Disposal of businesses - ©3) 03)
Disposals (93) (234) (327
Transferred to amounts recervable on PFI contracts 9N - 97
Tranglation adjustments 08) 18 10
At 31 December 2005 1424 4899 6323
Depreciation and accumutated impairment losses
At | January 2005 (250) (1901 {215 1)
Depreciation charge g (675) 754
Drsposals 44 I 4 158
Translaton adjustments 03 (33) (30)
At 3| December 2005 (282) (2495) Q2777
Carrying amount
At | January 2005 1225 2170 3395
At 31 December 2005 1142 2404 3546

In 2005 land and buildings included assets i the course of construction which on completion in that year were transferred to amounts recenvable

under PH contracts. This relates to the groups proportion of assets held in respect of the Private Finance Insative (PFI) projects undertaken by the
group’s joint ventures, Further details are provided i note 25

The carrying amount, of equipment and vehucles includes the following in respect of assets held under finance leases

2006 2005

£m £m

Net book value 523 443
Accumutated depreciation 342 56
Provision for the year 2 105

The nghts over leased assets are effectively securtty for lease labilities These nghts revert to the lessor in the event of default

The category of equipment and vehicles incudes assets leased by the group to third parties under operabing leases with the following carrying
amounts:

2006 2005

im £m

Net book value 293 239

Accumulated depreciation 402 352

Provision for the year 56 45
The net book value of land and buldings comprises.

2006 2005

im fm

Freeholds 429 458

Long leaseholds (50 years and over) 14 | 146

Short leasehold builkdings {under 50 years) 503 538

At 31 December 2006 the group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisiion of property, plant and equipment amounting to
£43m (2005 £] 8m)
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21

22

Investment in joint ventures
The group has the followang significant interests in jomnt ventures.

a) The group owns 100% of the equity of Wackenhut Services Inc ("W5I") under US Foreign Ownership Controling Interest prowisions,
governed through a proxy agreement. WSI prowdes secuntty services to US Government agenaes including security services on sites deemed
to be strategwally sensitive In accordance wath the proxy agreement the group 1s excluded from access to operational information and 1s
represented by directors on the WSI board who are independent of the group but under fiduciary and contractual obligation to act in the
best interest of the shareholder The group, through the proxy agreement, retains the power to veto certain matenal operational and strategic
decisions. As day to day management of the business remains with an independent board WSl 15 accounted for as a joint venture This means
that the group proportionately consohdates the results of Wil at 100%, gvng nse to an accounting result identical to that which would be the
case if W5 were accounted for as a subsidiary

b) At the year end the group owned 34% of the equity of Bridgend Custodial Services Limited 50% of the equity in STC (Milton Keynes) Limited
and a 49% equity shareholding In Safeguards Secuncor 5dn Bhd, in Malaysia. In alt cases, the group jointly shares operavonal and financial

control over the operations and 1s therefore enttled to a proportionate share of the results of each which are conschdated on the basis of
the equity shares held

The results of each of the jointly controlled operations are prepared in accordance with group accounting policies. Amaunts proportionately
consolidated wnto the group's financial statements are as follows.

Results 2006 2005
fm £m
Income 344 4 3287
Expenses {326 4) (3127
Proft after tax 180 160
Balance sheet 1006 2005
£m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 497 496
Current assets 758 886
1255 1382
Liabxlities
Current liabilibies (41 6) (574
Mon-current liabiltes 432) {(449)
{848) (1023)
Net assets 407 359

Investment in associates
The group’s share of assocates' profit and net assets and the reconaliation to the net iwvestment are as follows:

2006 2005

im £m

Total assets 131 (1)
Total liabirues (58) (7 6}

Net investment n asscaates 73 39

Revenue B3é& 881

Profit for the year 28 53

The results presented above relate 10 Space Gateway Support LLC in the USA, in which the group holds an investment of 46%.
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23

24

25

Inventories
2006 2005
£m fm
Raw materals 90 70
Work n progress 95 |8
Finished goods including consumables 3l 4 265
Total wwentones 499 353
Trading iInvestments

Trading investments compnise pnmantly bsted secunties of £64 2m (2005 £58 3m) held by the groups wholly-owned captive insurance subsiciaries
stated at therr far values based on quoted market prices. Use of these investments 1s restncted to the settlement of daims against the groups
captive insurance subsidianes

Trade and other receivables

2006 2005

£m fm

Within current assets
Trade debtors 6846 7025
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 12 19
Chher debtors 582 545
Prepayrnents and accrued income 407 553
Amounts due from construction contract customers (see note 26) 70 139
Dernative financial instruments at fair value {see note 31) 72 17
Total trade and other recevables included within current assets 7989 8298
Within non-current assets
Derwative financal instruments at far value (see note 31) |14 -
Other debtors 73 Bé
Amounts recevable under PRI contracts 412 417
Total trade and other recewables included within non<urrent assets 499 503

The directors believe the far value of trade and other recewvables being the present value of future cash flows, approxmates to their book value
There 1s no concentratron nsk with respect to trade recewvables, as the group s customers are both large in number and dispersed geographically

Amounts receivable under Pl contracts comprise the group's proportion of amounts recevable in respect of the Private Finance Inmiatve (PFI)
projects undertaken by the group's joint ventures, Dunng the year the group ncreased its ownership nterest in Brdgend Custodial Services
Limited to 54%. There were ne further changes in these arrangements dunng the year The projects are the design, construction, financing and
management of HM Pnson and Young Offenders Institution Parc in Bridgend South Wales, for the Horne Office, and the Oakhill Secure Training
Centre for young people in Mitton Keynes for the Youth Justices Board The Brdgend contract commenced in January 1996 and expires in
December 2022.The Milton Keynes contract commenced (n June 2003 and expires in June 2028 Both contracts can be terminated by the
customer erther in the event of a severe falure to comply with the contract or valuntanly with six months notice and the payment of appropriate
compensation The specified assets reman the property of the customers. The group s joint ventures have the right te prowvide sernces using the
specified assets dunng the Iife of the contracts. There 18 currently no obligation to acquire or build further assets and any such obligation would be
agreed with the customers as variations to the contracts The pncing basis is inflation-indexed

Amounts recevable under PFl contracts are pledged as security against borrowings of the group
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26 Construction contracts

17

28

Contracts in place at the balance sheet date are as follows

2006 2005

£m £m

Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other recervables 70 139
Amourntts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables (15 {19
Net balances relating to construction contracts §S 120
Corttract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 26 264
Less. Progress billings (1710 (144)
Net balances relating to construction contracts 55 120

At 3| December 2006 advances received from customers for contract work amounted to £36m (2005 £40m) There were no retentions held by
custorners for contract work at esther balance sheet date All trade and other recewables amang from construction contracts are due for settlernent
within one year

The directors believe the far value of amounts due from and to contract customers, being the present value of future cash flows, apprexamates
to their book value

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts
A reconchation of cash and cash equivalents reported within the consolidated cash flow statement to amounts reported within the balance sheet
15 presented below

2006 2005

im fm

Cash and cash equivalents 3075 2638

Bank overdrafts (97 5) (587)
Total cash, cash equalents and bank overdrafts 2100 2051

Cash and cash equwvalents pnincipally compnse short-term money market deposits, current account balances and cash held in ATM machines and In
2006 bore interest at a weighted average rate of 3 2% (2005 22%) The credit nsk on cash and cash equivalents s imted because the counterparties
are banks with hugh credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The group aperates a multicurrency national pookng cash management system which included 65 group companies at 3|1 December 2006 Itis
antioipated that the number of partiipants in the group will continue to grow At 31 December 2006 £75 2m of the cash balances and the equrvalent
amount of the overdraft balances were effectvely offset for interest purposes within the cash pool

Cash and cash equivalents of £17 7m (2005 £15 9m) are held by the group’s wholly-owned captve insurance subsidianes. Thesr use 1s restncted to
the settlement of clarms against the group's captive insurance subsidianes

Bank overdrafts and loans
2006 2005
im £m
Bank overdrafts 975 587
Bank loans 900 4 8778
Total bank overdrafts and loans 9979 9365
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or wrthin one year 167 6 1464
In the second year 65 175
In the third to fifth years inclusve B055 7471
After five years 183 255
Total bank overdrafts and loans 9979 9365
Less Amount due for setilement within 12 months (shown under current liabilties)
~ Bank overdrafts (97 5) (587)
- Bank loans {70 1) {877
(167 6) (1464)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 8303 7901
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28 Bank overdrafts and loans {continued)
Analysis of bank overdrafts and loans by currency

Seerting Euros US Dollars Others Total

£m im £m £m £m

Bank overdrafts 6l 4 121 Il 229 975
Bank lpans 1261 2936 4478 329 900 4
At 31 December 2006 1875 3057 4489 558 997 9
Bank overdrafts 296 106 06 179 587
Bank loans 367 3201 4818 392 8778
At 31 December 2005 663 3307 4824 571 9365

The weighted average interest rates on bank overdrafts and loans were as follows,

2006 2005

% %

Bank overdrafts 43 48
Bark Ioans 51 39

The directors believe the far value of the group's bank borrowings approximates to their book value

The groups bark borrowings comprise a £1bn multcurrency revolving credit faciity with a matunty date of June 2011 other committed facilities
of £402m, compnsing a £30m 364 day revolving credit facility matunng June 2007 with a one year term out option and 2 $20m revohing credit facility
maturing July 2007, and uncommitted facilties of £353 3m At 3| December 2006 undrawn committed avalable faciliies amounted to £227 7m

{2005 £2688m) Interest on all committed borrowing facilities 1s at prevailing Libor or Eunbor rates, dependent upon the perod of drawdown plus
an agreed margin, and repriced within one year or less, The committed bank faciities are subject to ane financial covenant and any non-compliance
with the covenant may lead to an acceleration of matunty The group was fully n compliance with the financial covenant throughout the year to

31 December 2006 and the year to 31 December 2005

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the group to cash flow interest rate nsk. The management of this nsk is discussed in note 34

29 Obligations under finance leases

Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2006 2005 2006 2005
fm £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 156 147 136 121
In the second to fifth years inclusive 408 3z 50 78
After five years 84 68 75 61
648 536 561 460
Less. Future finance charges on finance leases (87) (786)
Presenit value of lease obligations 561 460
Less, Amount due for setilement wathin |2 months (shown under current liabilives) (13¢) (121
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 425 339

It is the group's policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases, The weighted average lease term 1s seven years. For the
year ended 3| December 2006, the weighted average effective borrowang rate was 5 5% (2005 54%) Interest rates are fixed at the contract date
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The directors believe the farr value of the groupss finance lease cbligatons, being the present value of future cash flows, approximates to their book value

The group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the fessors charges over the leased assets
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30 Trade and other payables

2006 2005
£m £m
Within current llabilities
Trade crediors 1140 1240
Amounts due to construction contract customers {see note 26) 15 19
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 07 |4
Other taxation and sogial security costs 1403 1293
Other creditors 3112 3467
Accruals and deferred income 1385 1475
Derwative financial instruments at far value (see note 31) 14 76
Total trade and other payables included within current habiities 707 6 7584
Within non-current labiibes
Denvative financial nstruments at far value (see note 31) 03 -
Other creditors 07 10
Total trade and other payables included within non-current labilies 10 10

Trade and other payables pnncipally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The awerage credit penod taken for
trade purchases 1s 42 days (2005 43 days)

The directors believe the far value of trade and other payables being the present value of future cash flows, approximates to their book value

31 Denvative financial instruments

The carrying values of dervative financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below
Assets Assets Luabilities Labilities
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m m £m £m
Forward foreign exchange contracts 63 10 09 72
Interest rate swaps 23 07 04 04
Commodity swaps - - 04 -
86 17 17 76
Less. Non-current porticn (14) - 03) -
Current portion 72 17 1 4 76

Dervative financial mstruments are stated at far vakie based upon market prices where available or atherwise on discounted cash flow valuations

The interest rate and commodity swaps qualify as cash flow hedges and have the following maturites

Assets Assets Liabilities Liabiitias

2006 2005 2006 2005

£m fm fm £m

Within one year 05 - 04 -
In the second year 03 - - 0l
In the third year I 02 - al
In the fourth year 02 Gl - 02
In the fifth year 02 04 04 -
Total carrying value of cash flow hedges 23 07 o8 04
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3t Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Curvrency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currences. Transaction nsk 15 kmited since wherever possible, each business operates and conducts its
finanang actvities In local cumency However, the group presents its consohidated financial statements in sterling and 1t 1s In consequence subject

to foresgn exchange nsk due to the translabion of the resufts and net assets of s foreign subsidianes. The group hedges a substantial proportion of
its exposure to fluctuations in the transtation into sterfing of its overseas net assets by holding loans in foreign currencies. Translation adjustments
ansing on the translation of foreign currency lcans are recognised in equrty to match translauon adjustments on foreign currency eguity Investments
as they quakify as net investment hedges.

The group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts so as to hedge translation nsk not hedged by way of loans Gans and fosses on such
forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised in equity The notional value of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 3| December
2006 was £342.4m. Ali these contracts had matured by 28 February 2007 at which point they were replaced with new forward foreign exchange
contracis. All the foreign exchange hedgng mstruments are desrgnated and fully effectve as net investment hedges and movements in therr far
value have been defermed in equity

At 3| December 2006, the groups US dollar {including dallarrelated) and euro (including eure-related) net assets before net borrowings were
approximately 90 6% and 94 7% respectively hedged by foreign currency loans and forward foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrowang at flcating rates as described in note 28 expases the group to cash flow interest rate nsk, which the group manages within policy imits
approved by the directars. Interest rate swaps and 10 a hiuted extent, forward rate agreements are utilsed to fix the interest rate on a proportion
of borrowings on a reducing scale over forward perods up to a masamum penod of five years. At 31 December 2006 the norminal value of such
contracts was £196 7m (in respect of US dollar) and ££41 5m (in respect of euro), ther weighted average witerest rate was 4 9% (US dollar) and
34% (euro), and ther weighted average period to maturtty was three years. Al the interest rate hedging instruments are designated and fully
effectve as cash flow hedges and movements in ther fair value have been deferred in equity

Commeedity risk and commodity swaps
The groups prncipal commodity nsk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices, particularly affecting its cash services businesses Commodity
swaps are used to synthetically fix part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatility The commodity swaps in place at 31 December

2006 have a weighted average penod to maturity of one year All the commodity hedging instruments are designated and fully effective as cash
flow hedges and movements in thewr far value have been deferred in equrty

Counterparty credit risk
The groups strategy for credit nsk management 15 to set minimum credit ratings for counterparties and monrtor these on a regular basis.

For treasury-related transactions, the pohcy hmits the aggregate credit nsk assigned 1o a counterparty The utilisation of a credit imit 1s calculated
by applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding wath each courterparty based on the type and duration of the
transaction. For short-term transactions (under one year) the financal counterparty must be investment grade rated by ether the Standard &
Poors or Moodys rating agency For long-term transactions, the financial counterparty must have a minimum rating of A+/Al from Standard &
Poars or Moodys.

At an operating level the minimum investment grade rating cntena applies. Exceptionally where required by local country arcumstances,
counterparties with no, or a non-investment grade rating can be approved as counterparties for a period of up to twelve months. Due to the
group's global geographical footprnt and exposure to multiple iIndustnes, there 15 mimimal concentration risk,
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312 Retirement benefit obligations
The group aperates a wide range of retirement benefit arrangements which are established in accordance wath local conditions and pracuces
within the ¢ountres concerned These include funded defined contnbution and funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes.

Defined contribution arrangements

The maonty of the retirement benefit arrangements operated by the group are of a defined centnbution structure, where the employer
contribution and resufting Income statement charge s fixed at a set level or 15 a set percentage of employees’ pay Contributions made
to defined contnbution schemes and charged to the income statement totalled £49 8m (2005 £46 3m)

In the UK, following the closure of the defined benefit schemes to new entrants the main scheme for new employees 15 a contracted-in defined
contribution scheme

Wackenhut Seraces, Inc ("WSI™) 1s the adrinistrator of several defined benefit schemes. W35 is responsible for makang penodic cost-reimbursable
deposits to the vanous defined benefit schemes as determined by independent actuanes. In each instance the US Department of Energy { DOE")
atknowledged within the contract entered between the DOE and WSI its responsibility for all unfunded pension and benefit labilves Therefore
these schemes are accounted for as defined contnbution schemes.

In the Metherlands, most employees are members of an industry-wide definred benefit scheme which 1s not valued on an IAS 19 basis as it 1s
not possible to identfy separately the group’s share of the scheme assets and labilibes. As a result the scheme 15 accounted for as a defined
contnbution scheme Contnbutions made to this scheme and charged to the income statement 1n 2006 totalled £4 2m (2005 £1 5m)

The estimated amounts of contnbutions expected to be paid to the scheme dunng the financial year commencing | January 2007 in respect
of the ongoing accrual of benefits 1s approximately £4 4m

Defined benefit arrangements
The group operates a number of defined benefit retirement arrangements where the benefits are based on employees’ length of servwce and final
pensionable pay Liabilies under these arrangements are stated at the discounted value of benefits accrued to date based upon actuanal advice

Under unfunded arrangements, the group does not hold the related assets separate from the group The amount charged to the income statement
in respect of these arrangements in 2006 totalled £1 6m (2005 £1 5m) Under funded arrangements, the assets of defined benefit schemes are
held 11 separate trustee-administered funds. The pension costs are assessed on the adwce of qualified independent actuanes using the projected
unrt credit method The group operates several funded defined retirement benefit schemes Whilst the group s primary schemes are i the UK it

also operates other matenal schemes in the Netherlands, Ireland and Canada. The carrying values of retirement benefit obligations at the balance
sheet date are presented below

2006 2005

£m m

UK 2107 1948
Netherlands, lreland and Canada 157 218
Net liabilty on matenal funded defined retirement benefit schemes 226 4 2166
Unfunded and other funded defined retirement benefit oblgatons 24 | 244
2505 2410

Less. Amourts induded within current labiliies {422) (300)
Included within non-current liabiliues 2083 ZIe

The defined benefit schemes in the UK account for 93% of the net balance sheet liability on funded defined retrement benefit schemes They
comprise two arrangements. the pension scheme demerged from the former Group 4 Falck A/S with membership of approxamately 8 000 and
the Secuncor scheme, responsibility for which the group assumed on 20 Juty 2004 with the acquistion of Secuncor plc with membership of
approamately 20000 Reguiar actuaral assessments of the schemes are carmed out, the latest being at 3¢ March 2004 in respect of the Group 4
scheme and at 5 Apnl 2006 in respect of the Secuncor scheme, which s currently being finahised. Pension obbgauons stated in the balance sheet
take account of future earrungs ncreases, have been updated to 3| December 2006 and use the valuaton methodologes specified in LAS 9
Employee Benefits.
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32 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Defined benefit arrangements (continued)
The principal assumptians used for the purposes of the actuaral valuations were as follows:

UK Netherfands Ireland Canada
Key assumpuons used 2006
Discount rate 52% 47% 47% 50%
Expected return on scheme assets 65% 50% 59% 62%
Expected rate of salary increases 49% 30% 40% 38%
Future pension increases 3% 20% 30% 15%
Inflation 3% 20% 23% 25%
Key assumpuons used 2005
Discount rate 53% 40% 43% S0%
Expected retumn on scheme assets 70% 48% 64% 60%
Expected rate of salary increases 38%-48% 30% 40%43% 35%
Future pension increases 28% 20% 23% 23%
Inflation 218% 20% 23% 23%

In additien te the above, the group uses appropnate mortality assurmptions when calcufating the schemes obligations The mortalty tables used for

the schemes in the UK are as follows

> Current pensioners 125% PFA92C20165C Male and Female
> Future pensioners 125% PFAS2C20265C Male and Female

The amounts recognised in the income statement n respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows.

UK Netherlands Ireland Canada Total
im £fm £m £m £m
Amounts recognised in iIncome 2006
Current service cast (102) (13) (4 (08) (137
Past service cost (04 ©7 - - (rn
Finance cost on defined retirement benefit obliganons (633 08) (12) {09 (662)
Expected return on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 648 05 Il 08 672
Total amounts recogrised in Income @n (23) (15} (09 (138)
Amounts recognised tn income 2005
Current service cost w9 {z1) (1o ©8) (158
Finance cost on defined retirement beneft obhigations 613) (24) (rn (9 (657)
Expected retumn on defined retirement benefit scheme assets 572 18 10 c8 808
Changes ansing on curtalments/settlement - 170 - 07 177
Total amounts recognised in income (160} 143 {n 02) 30
The amounts recogrised in income are included within the following categones in the Income statement
2006 2005
£m £m
Cost of sales (1 {4
Administration expenses 37 (&3]
Restructuring costs consequential upen acquisthons - 170
Finance ngome 672 608
Finance costs (662) (657)
Total (138) (30)

The curtalment gans ansing in 2005 are in respect of the transfer of members out of group defined benefit pension schemes into sthemes which
are accounted for as defined contribuhon In 2005 a charge from the recemng contnbution schemes of £11 Om in respect of these transfers was

also recognised In Income within restructuning costs consequential upon acquisions.
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32 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Defined benefit arrangements (continued)

Actuanal losses recognised cumulatively in the statement of recognised income and expense are as follows

2006 2005
€m £m
At | January (39 1) (165)
Recogrised in the year (334) (226)
At 3| December (72 5) (39 1)
The amounits incduded in the bafance sheet ansing from the group's obligations in respect of its defined benefit schemes are as follows.
UK Netherlands Ireland Capada Total
€m im £m £m £m
2006
Present value of defined benefit obbgations 13288 174 259 178 1,389 9
Far value of scheme assets (s (108) {208) (138) {11635}
Defictt in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 2107 66 51 40 2264
2005
Present value of defined benefit obligztions 11993 172 264 175 12604
Farr value of scheme assets (1,0045) (80) (180} {133 (10438)
Deficit in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 1948 92 B84 42 2166
2004
Present value of defined benefit abhgations 10386 506 227 137 11256
Far value of scherne assets (845 8) {343) (152) {101} {905 4)
Defictt in scheme recognised in the balance sheet 1928 163 75 36 2202
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations in the current penod and the far value of scheme assets dunng the year were
as follows
2006 UK Netherlands Ireland Cznada Total
£m £m £m £m £fm
Obligations
At | lanuary 2006 11993 172 264 \75 12604
Service cost 102 13 14 08 137
Past service cost 04 07 - - Il
interest cost 633 08 12 09 662
Contnbutions from scheme members 35 07 03 - 45
Actuanal gains and losses 854 (35 {22) 17 814
Benefits pad (367) - 08) (06) (379)
Acquistions/divestrments 04 05 - - 09
Other 30 - - - 30
Exchange rate adjustments - (03) 08) 25) (34}
At 3| December 2006 1,3288 17 4 259 178 1,3899
Assets
At | January 2006 1,004 5 80 180 133 1,0438
Expected retum on scheme assets 648 [t Hl ok} 672
Actuanal gains and losses 454 06 | 4 06 480
Actual return on scheme assets 1102 11l 25 14 1152
Contnbutions from the sponsenng companies 332 07 1 15 364
Contrbutions from scheme members 35 07 03 - 45
Benefits paid (367) - {08) (086) (379
Acquistions/divestments 04 05 - - 09
Other 30 - - - 30
Exchange rate adjustments - ©2) ©4) (18) (24)
At 31 December 2006 11gl 108 208 138 1,163 5




Notes to the consolidated financial statements (contnued)

32 Retirement benefit obligations (continued}

2005 UK Nethertands Ireland Canada Toral
£m £m £m £m £m
Obligations
At | January 2005 10386 506 227 137 11256
Service cost 119 21 10 08 158
Interest cost 613 24 11 09 657
Contrbutions from scheme members 41 Il 03 - 55
Actuanal gains and losses 1113 89 26 12 1240
Benefits pad 279 {04) (¢5) (05) (293)
Curtaiments - (460) - ©7) (467)
Exchange rate adjustments - {15) (08) 21 02)
At 3| December 2005 1,199 3 172 264 175 1 2604
Assets
At |_january 2005 8458 343 152 101 905 4
Expected retumn on scheme assets 572 18 10 08 608
Actuanal gains and losses 990 02 20 02 101 4
Actual return on scheme assets 1562 20 30 10 1622
Contnbutions fram the sponscring companies 263 13 6 10 292
Contributions from scheme members 41 ] 03 - 55
Benefits paid 279) {04 ©5) (©5) (293)
Curtalments - (290) - - {290)
Exchange rate adjustments - {13 &) |7 02
At 3| December 2005 1,004 5 80 18Q 133 10438

The cantnbution from sponsoring companies n 2006 included £24 2m (2005 £150m) of addional contrbutions 1n

schemes

The compostion of the scheme assets at the balance sheet date 1s as follows

respect of the deficrt in the

Analysis of scherme assets UK Matheriands Iretand Capada Totat
2006
Equity instruments 70% 41% 79% 61% 70%
Debt instruments 27% 47% 119 34% 27%
Property - 12% 6% - -
Orther assets 3% - 4% 5% 3%
1C0% 100% 100% 10C% 100%
2005
Equity instruments 70% 40% 78% 57% 70%
Debt instruments 8% 50% 12% 35% 28%
Property - 10% 6% - -
Other assets 2% - 4% 8% %
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Nane of the pension scheme assets are held in the entity’s own financial instruments or in any assets held or used by the entity
The expected weighted average rates of return on scheme assets for the following year at the balance sheet date are as follows
UK Netherlands Irefand Canada Toral
2006 {return expected in 2007} 67% 54% 64% 64% 67%
2005 {return expected in 2006) 65% 50% 59% 62% 64%
2004 (returm expected in 2005) 70% 48% 64% 60% 69%

The expected rates of return on indmdual categones of scheme assets are determined with respect to bonds by reference to relevant indices, and
with respect to other assets by reference to relevant indices of the histoncal return and ecancmic forecasts of future returns relative to inflation
In respect of assets of a smilar nature The averall expected rate cf retum 1s the weighted average of the rates on the indidual asset categones.
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32 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The hustory of expenence adjustments is as follows.

2006 UK Netheriands Ireland Canada Total

Expenence adjustments on scheme labiliies

Amount (£m) 290 (12 (04) 17 221

Percentage of scheme babiites (%) 2 144! ¥A) 10 2

Experience adjustments on scheme assets

Amount (£m) 454 06 |4 06 480

Percentage of scheme assets (%) 4 5 7 5 4

2005

Experience adjustments on scheme habiliues

Amount (£m) {175} 20 21) 12 (164)
Percentage of scheme lLabilies (%) (t 12 8 7 n

Expenence adjustments on scheme assets

Amount (£m) 990 02 20 02 1014
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 10 3 I 2 10
2004

Expertence adjustments on scheme labiiities

Amount (£m}) 70 - - - 2n
Percentage of scheme habiltes (%) ') - - - (1)

Experience adjusiments on scheme assets
Amount (£m) 302 29 0& 02 339
Percentage of scheme assets (%) 4 8 4 2 4

The esumated amounts of contnbutions expected to be pad to the schemes durng the financial year commenaing | January 2007 in respect of
the ongoing accrual of benefits s appresamately £15m and 1t 1s anbcipated that these wall remain at a similar leved in the medium term subject to
changes i financial condrtions. Addibonal contnbutions of around £24m wall also be made in 2007 in respect of the deficit in the schemes,

1AS 19 specifies that pension kabilities should be ciscounted at appropnate high quality corporate bond rates The directors consider that it 15
appropnate to apply the A& corporate bond rate which most closely approximates to the timescale of the hability profile of the schemes and have
therafore used such a rate, being 5 2%, in respect of the UK schemes at 31 December 2006 (5 3% at 31 December 2005) The eflect of 2 0 1%
movement in the discount rate apphcable n the UK 15 to alter reparted habiiues (before associated deferred tax) by approxmately £25m

Lability calculzvons are also heavly wnpacted by the moriaity projecuons induded in the actuanal assumptions. The weighted average Ife
expectancy cof a 65 year old retired male member of the UK schemes has been assumed as 19 4 years. The weighted average life expectancy at
65 of future male retiress has been assumed as 20 | years The directors consider on actuanal adwice these assumptions to be approprate to the
prefile of the membership of the schemes. The effect of 4 one year change in this UK Iife expectancy assumption (s to alter repcrted liabiliues
(before associated deferred tax) by approsamately £51m

Pension obi:gations in respect of deferred members increase in ine with inflation Increases in salanes and increases in pensions-in-payment generally
move 1n line with inflation Inflation 1s therefore an important assumption in the caleulation of defined retirement benefit labiltues. The effect of

a 0 1% movement in the rate of nflabon assumption apphicable in the UK s to alter reported habilibes (before assooated deferred tax) by
approxamately £16m
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33 Provisions
Employee Chims Onerous

benefits  Restructuring reserves contracts Other Toual

m £m Em im im £m

At | January 2006 99 78 487 94 160 218
Additonal pramsion in the year 6l 02 106 23 146 338
On acquistion of subsidiary pa 10 - 0l 19 51
Utihsabion of provsion 61 {63) {100) 22 Q0 {26 6)
Unused amounts reversed (06) {7 59 03 (3¢ (ten
Reversals on disposal of a subsidiary - - - - (79} (Oh)]
Trarslabion adjustments 0l on (55) 02) o4 (&1
At 31 December 2006 15 19 379 21 186 790
Included in current habilities 403
Included n non-current Yabiives 387
790

Empleoyee benefits
The prowsion for employee benefits 1s in respect of any employee benefits which accrue over the working lives of the employees, typically including
items such as long service awards and termination indemnity schemes.

Restructuring
Restructunng provisions iclude amounts for redundancy payments, and the costs of closure of actvibies In acquired businesses and discontinued
operations. Settlement of restructuring provisions 15 highly probable The timing 1s uncertain but s generally ikely to be short term

Claims reserves

The claims reserves are held by the wholly-owned captive insurance subsidianes in Guernsey Luxembourg and the US which underwnte part

of the group's cash semces general labiity warkers’ compensation and auto liabiity policies. The provisions are subject to regular actuanal review
and are adjusted as appropriate Settlement of these prowvisions 15 highly probable but both the value of the final setilements and their timing 1s
uncertain, dependent upon the outcome of ongoing processes to determine both habilty and quantum in respect of 2 wide range of daims or
possible claims,

Onercus contracts

The onerous contract provision mainly comprses the provision aganst future labiliues for all properties sub-let at a shortfall and for tong-term idle,
leased properties. The provision i1s based on the value of future net cash autflows relating to rent. rates, service charges and casts of marketing the
properties Whilst the hikehood of settlement of these cbligations 1s considered probable, there 15 uncertanty over their value and duration

Other provisions

Other prowisions include amounts anising in respect of disposals where their final calculation 15 dependent on future events. The company and
vanous of its subsidianes are from trme to time, parbes to legal proceedings and daims which anse in the ordinary course of business. Prowision 1
made for the esumated value of settlements likely to be made, but both this value and the timing of any paymenis are uncertain The directors do
not anticipate, taking account of legal and other professional advice as appropriate that the outtome of these proceedings and clams will have a
matenal adverse effect on the group s financial position or on the results of its operations.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34 Deferred tax

The foliowing are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting penods

Reurement Crther
benefic Intangible TAmparary
oblipations assets Tax lotses differences Toul
im £m fm im £m
At | January 2005 66 | 760) 150 167 218
Credit/(charge) 10 the income statement |2 100 (68) (87) {43)
Acquistion of subsidares - 46) - - (46)
Credtt to equity 68 - - - 68
Reallocation of current tax - - - 76 76
Translavon adjustments - 03) - It 08
At 31 December 2005 74 | (709) 82 167 281
At | January 2006 741 {709 82 167 281
Credit/(charge) to the micome statement (10é) 108 ()] i6 04
Acquistion of subsidianes - (39) - - (39)
Credit/(charge) to equity 97 - - 21 76
Reallocation of current tax - - - - -
Translation adjustments - 28 - (10 18
At 31 December 2006 732 (61 2) 68 152 340

Certain deferred tax assets and labilties have been offset where permitted The followang s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for financial reporiing purposes.

2006 2005

im £m
Deferred tax labiles 817 {848)
Deferred tax assets 1157 1129
Total deferred tax position 340 281

At the balance sheet date, the group has unutilised tax losses of approxamately £1 18 4m (2005 £1450m) potentially avalable for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset of £6 8m (2005 £8 2m) has been recogrused in respect of approxamately £32.Im (2005 £220m) of gross
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining £86 3m (2005 £1230m) of gross losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams in the relevant junsdictions and the fact that a significant proportion of such losses remans unaudited by the relevant tax
authorities Included n unrecognised tax losses are gross losses of £04m, £02m, £07m £1 3m and £0 6m which will expire in 2007, 2008, 2009,
2010 and 201 | respectively Other losses may be carned forward indefinitely

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnbuted earmings of non-UK subsidianes for
which deferred tax habilibies have not been recogrised 15 £1,056.2m (2005 £1,0430m) Mo habiity has been recognised in respext of these gross
differences on the basis that the group 15 In a position te control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 15 probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Temporary differences ansing in connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are insignificant
At the balance sheet date the group has total unprowided contingent tax habities of approximately £31 8m (2005 £57 Om) relating to unresohved

tax issues in vanous junsdickons No prowision has been made for these amounts on the basis that the group considers that the likelihood of the
kabilitres crystallising s wmprobable It s not possible to estimate the ttming or autcome of these issues.
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35 Share capital

At 31 December 1006

At 31 December 2005

tssued and Issued and

fully paid flly paid

Group 4 Secuncor plc Authorised 'S Authonsed £
Qrdinary shares of 25p each (2005 25p each) 500,000,000 319,954,230 500000000 317178870

Nominal value

Number £m
Qrdinary shares in 1ssue
At | january 2005 1264 328241 3161
Shares 1ssued on exercise of options
Executve Scheme 3,182470 08
Sharesave Scheme 1,204,769 03
At | January 2006 1,268,715,480 3172
Shares issued on exercise of options.
Executve Scheme 3556271 0%
Sharesave Scheme 7545167 19
At 3| December 2006 1,279.816,918 3200

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to recerve dividends as declared from time to time and are entrtled to one vote per share at meetings

of the company

Options over Group 4 Securicor plc shares outstanding at 31 December 2006, rolled over at 19 July 2004 from options previously held aver

Secuncor plc shares, were as follows

a) Executive share option scheme

MNumber of eptions cutstanding

Number of ardinary shares under option Exerase price per share (pence)} Exercise data
| 72901 107 98p 2007-2008
13 565000 1 64p 2007-2009
1 312,500 13375p 2007-2010
13 270000 153p 2007-2010
7 2030000 108p 2007-201 1
2 150,006 130p 2007-2012
2 50,000 85p 2007-2013
| 25000 79 75p 2007-2013
4 150,000 91p 2007-2013
The proceeds from shares allotted under this scherne during the year amounted to £4266 774 (2005 £3711,505)
b) Sharesave scheme
Number of options outstanding Mumber of ordinary shares under aption Exercise price per share (pence) Exercise date
&9 287589 64p 2007

The proceeds from shares allotted under this scheme during the year amounted to £4 860 469 (2005 £1,121,509)

All of the above options are inclusive of those held by directors as set out in the Directors Remunerauon Report on page 45

6,022,967 shares are held by an employee benefit trust as detaled in note 36
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36 Share premium and reserves

Reserve
Share Retained Hadging Transtadon Merger for own Tota
premium earnings reserve reserve reserve shares reserves
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
At | January 2005 02 1293 - 77 4263 (02) 5633
Total recognised income/(expense) attnbutable
to equity shareholders of the parent - 649 {58) 421 - - 1012
Shares 1ssued 38 - - - - - 38
Dwidends declared - (399) - - - - (399
QOwn shares purchased - - - - - (61} (61
Equity-settled transactons:
- Performance share plan - 12 - - - - 12
~ Share options - 15 - - - - {5
At 3! December 2005 40 1570 (58) 498 4263 (63) 6250
At | January 2006 40 1570 {58) 498 4263 (63) 6250
Total recognised income/{expense) attnbutable
to equity shareholders of the parent - 738 106 (526) - - 318
Shares 1ssued 63 - - - - - 63
Dnndends declared - (498) - - - - 98
Own shares purchased - - - - - (31} (30
Equity-settled transactions.
— Performance share plan - 23 - - - - 23
— Deferred shares - 13 - - - - i3
- Share options - 14 - - - - 14
At 31 December 2006 103 1860 48 (28) 4263 (94) 6152

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the far value of cash flow instruments related to the hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations,
as well as from the translation of lizbilities that hedge the companys net investment in faresgn operations

Merger reserve

The merger reserve compnises reserves ansing upon the merger between the former Group 4 Falck A/S and the former Group 4 Securitas BY
1n 2000 and the acquisbon of Secunicor plic by the group n 2004

Reserve for own shares
An employee benefit trust established by the group holds 6 022,967 shares, to satsfy the vesting of awards under the performance share plan and
performance-related and synergy bonus schemes, which cost £9,435828 At 31 Decerber 2006 the market value of these shares was £11 323 |78

Shares held by the trust are treated as treasury shares, are deducted from equity do not bear dvdends and are excluded from the calculations of
earnings per share




Notes to the consolidated financial statements (contnued)

37 Analysis of net debt

38

A reconaliation of net debt at 31 Decernber 2006 to armounts in the balance sheet 1s presented below

2006 2005
m £m
Cash and cash equwalents 3075 2638
Trading irvestments 737 6t 4
Current liabilrues
Bank overdrafts (97 5) (587
Bank Ipans (70 1} (877)
Cbligatians under finance leases (136) (2n
Nan-current habities
Bank loans (8303) @300
Obhgations under finance leases (42.5) (339)
Total net debt (6728) (657 3)
An analysis of movements in net debt in the year 15 presented below
2006 2005
im £m
Increass in cash, cash equrvalents and bank overdrafts per consoltdated cash flow statement 161 231
Purchase/{disposal) of trading investments 218 (48)
Increase in debt and lease financing (867) (3%97)
Change 1n net debt resutung from cash flows (488) (214
Borrowings acquired with subsidianes 25) (13)
Net addiuons to finance leases (196) (207)
Mavement in net debt in the year (709) (434)
Translation adjustments 554 (275)
Net debt at the beginning of the year (657 3) (5864)
Net debt at the end of the year (672 8) (657 3)

Contingent liabilities

Conungent liabiliies exst in respect of agreements entered into in the normal course of business, none of which are indnadually

or collectrvely significant.

Details of unprovided contingent tax habiiues are presented in note 34




Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3¢ Operating lease arrangements
The group as lessee
At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows.

2006 2005

£m £m

Within one year 724 606
In the second to fifth years ndusve 1402 975
After five years 130 4 1265
Total operating lease commitments 3430 2846

The group leases a number of s office properties, vehicles and other operating equipment under operating leases. Leased properties are
negotiated over an average term of eight and a half years, at rates reflective of market rentals. Penodic rent reviews take place to bring lease rentals
in hine wath prevaiing market condmions Seme but not all jease agreements have an opticn to renew the lease at the end of the lease term Leased
vehicles and other operating equipment are negotiated over an average lease term of three and a half years.

Certain leased properties have been sub-let by the group. Sub-leases are negotiated on terms consistent with those of the associated property
The total future minmum sub-lease payments expected to be recerved by the group from sub-let properties amount to £183m (2005 £152m)

40 Share-based payments
The group has two types of equity-settled share-based payment scheme in place (1) share options previcusly held by employees over Secuncor
plc shares and rolled over to Group 4 Secuncor plc shares wath the acquistion of that business on 19 juty 2004, and {2) conditional allocations
of Group 4 Secuncor plc shares,

Share options

Share options rolled over from Secuncor plc fall under ether the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) or the Sharesave Scheme Options
under the ESOS were granted at market value vest three or four years following the date of grant (provided that certain non-market performance
condrtions are met and that the recipients continue to be employed by the group duning the vesting penod) and are exercisable up to ten years
follomng the date of grant. Options under the Infang Revenue-approved Sharesave schemne were pranted at 2 discount of 20% to market value,
vest after three years following the date of grant and remain exerasable for a penod of sx months following vesting,

Details of the share aptrons outstanding aunng the year are as follows

Weightad Weighted

Number of average Number of average

shares under exercise shares under EXErcise

option price {pence) oplon pnce (pence)

2006 2006 2005 2005

Qutstanding at | january 15,377,443 9123 237005%6 101 33
Forfeted dunng year (249.061) 7050  (1054.873) 6978
Bxerased dunng year {11,101,438) 8222 (4387239 1ig 16
Expired durng year (113,954) 10400 (2,881,041 15336
Outstanding at 31 December 3912,990 11773 15377443 9123
Exercisable at 31 December 3,912,990 11773 6474532 12530

The weighted average share pnce at the date of exertise for share options exerased dunng the year was §74.56p (2005 148 19p) All options
outstanding at 3| December 2006 were vested

Total expenses of £1 4m were recognised in the ncome statement in the year (2005 £1.5m) in respect of share options, the calculation of which

indluded an estmate of the number which would vest based upon the probable achievement against the performance conditions and the histonc
expenence of forfertures within Securicor
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40 Share-based payments {continued)

4

Shares allocated conditionally

Shares allocated condiionally fall under enther the groups performance-related bonus scheme or the group’s Performance Share Plan {PSP) Shares
allocated conditionally under the performance-related bonus scheme vest three years following the date of grant provided certan non-market
performance condiions are met. Those allocated under the PSP vest after three years, to the extent that (a) certan non-market performance
condibons are met as to 50% of the allocation and (b) certain market performance conditions are met as to the remaining 50% of the allocation

The number of shares allocated conditionally 15 as follows.

Performance- Performance-

related bonus related bonus
scheme PSP Total scherne PSP Total
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Number Number Mumber Number Number Number
Qutstanding at | January - 7763419 7763419 - 3521866 3521 866
Allocated dunng the year 1915270 3,716,815 5,632,085 - 4686950 4,686950
Forferted dunng the year - (325831)  (325831) - (445.397) (445,397)
Outstanding at 31 December 1915270  11,154403 13,069,673 - 7763419 7763419

The weighted average remaning contractual ife of condrtional share allocations outstanding at 31 December 2006 was |7 months (2005 23 months)
The weighted average share pnce at the date of allocation of shares conditionally allocated duning the year was 185 14p (2005 132.75p) and the
contractual fe of all condiiona! allocations was three years,

Under the PSR the vesting of 50% of the shares allocated conditionally depends upon Total Shareholder Return (a market performance condiion)
aver the vesting year measured aganst a comparator group 25% of the allocation vests upon the group’s Total Shareholder Return equalling
medan performance amongst the comparator group. The farr value of the shares allocated subject to this market performance condrtion has
therefore been reduced by 75%.

Total expenses of £3 6m were recogrised in the income statement in the year (2005 £1 2m) in respect of condrional share allocations, the
calculation of which included an estmate of the number of those shares allocated subject to non-market performance conditions that would vest
based upon the probable ach:evement against the performance condrtions.

Related party transactions

Transactions and balances with joint ventures and associated undertakings

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disciosed in this note Detals of
transactions between the group and cther related parties are disclosed below All transactions with related partes are entered into in the normal
course of business.

Jolnt

Jont

ventures ventures Associates Associates
2006 2005 2006 2005
tm £m im £m
Transactions
Revenue 145 136 - -
Balances
Amounts due to related parties
Creditors - - 54 55
Amounts due from related parties
Debtors | 4 15 - —
Loans 35 36 - -

Revenue relates to fees of £9 6m (2005 £9 3m) charged ta Bndgend Custodial Services Limited and fees of £49m (2005 £4 3m) charged to STC
(Milton Keynes) Limited Amounts owed by the group are to s associated undertaking Space Gateway Support LLC The amounts outstanding are
unsecured and will be settled in cash. No expense has been recognised in the year for bad and doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by
related parties, Detals of prncpal jomnt ventures and associated undertzkings are shown in notes 21 and 22 respectively

Transactions with Mr Jargen Philip-Sarensen whilst a director (retired 30 June 2004)
The group purchased ar transport sernces of £19.300 (2005 £44 600} and leased office facilities for £34 707 (2005 £91 997) from Mr Jargen

Phitip-Serensen at cost price
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4]

12

Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with post-employment benefit schemes

Details of transacuons with the group s post-employment benefit schemes are provided in note 32. Unpaid contnbutions owed to schemes
amounted to £15m at 31 December 2006 (2005 £1 5m)

Remuneration of key management personnel

The group's key management personnel are deemed to be the non-executive directors and those indrvduals, including the executve directors,
whose rermuneration 1s determined by the Remuneration Committee Their remuneration 1s set out below Further information about the
remuneration of indivdual directors included within key management personnel 1s provided in the audrted part of the Directors Remuneration
Report on pages 44 to 47

2006 2005

[ £

Short-term employee benefits 4,337,944 6946490
Post-employment benefits 826,777 500902
Other long-term benefits 22,138 22162
Termination benefits - 2451470
Share-based payment 2,022,518 1,697,589
Total 7,209,377 11518413

Events after the balance sheet date
A rnumber of acquisthons were effacted after the balance sheet date, but before the finantial staterments were authorised for issue, details of which
are provided within note |7

On | March 2007 to further drversify its sources of funding and to lengthen the matunty of sts debt, the group completed a $550m prvate
placement of unsecured senior loan notes. The proceeds of the issue were used to reduce drawings against the revohang credit bank facility
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43 Significant investments

The companies hsted below are those which were part of the group at 31 December 2006 which in the opinion of the directors sigruficantly
affected the groups results and net assets dunng the year The directors consider that those companies not histed are not significant in relation

to the group as a whole

The pnnaipat activities of the companies listed below are indicated according to the following key

Securtty services S
Cash seraces

These businesses operate prinapally in the country in which they are incorporated

Product Counury of Uhumate
segment  incorporation owtership

Subsidiary undertakings
Group 4 Secunty Services AG 5 Austna 100%
G45 Security Services SAINY S Belgum 100%
G4S5 Cash Services {Belgium) SA/NV C Belgium 100%
G45 Cash Serwices {Canada) Limited C Canada 100%
(45 Security Seraices (Canada) Limited S Canada 100%
Wackenhut de Colombxa SA S+C Colombia 100%
(45 Secunty Servces AVS S Denmark 100%
G4S Vagt A/S S Denemark 100%
G4S Aviation Securty (UK) Limned S England 10036
G45 Cash Centres (UK) Limited C England 100%
G45 Cash Services (UK) Limited C England 100%
G45 Internauonal UK Limited C England 100%
G45 justice Services Limited S England 100%
G45 Secunty Serwvices (LK) Limited S England 100%
Group 4 Technology Limited 5 england 100%
Group 4 Total Secunty Limited S England 100%
Falck Eests AS S Estonia 65%
G45 Cash Services (Finland) Oy C Finland 10054
G4S Secunty Services Oy S Finland 100%
GA4S Cash Services {France) sarl C France H00%%
Group 4 Secuncor SAS S Frarce 100%
G45 Geld-und Wertdienste GmbH C Germany 100%
G4S Sicherhestsdienste Gmbh S Germany 100%
G4S Sicherheitssysteme GmbH S Germany 100%
GA4S Keszpenzogiszikar Kit S+C Hungary 100%
G45 Securtty Services {India) Pvt. Limited! S India 40%
(45 Cash Services (Ireland) Limited C Ireland 100%
GA45 Securtty Services (Ireland) Limited S Ireland 100%
Hashmira Company Lirnted S Israel 71%
GA45 Secunty Services (Kenya) Limited S+C Kenya 100%
G45 Securtty Services S A S+C  Luxembourg 100%
Group 4 Secuncor Cash Seraces BY C  Netherlands 100%
Group 4 Secuncor Beheer BY $  Netherlands 100%
G45 Security Systems AS 5 Narway 100%
G45 Securtty Services (SA) (Pty) Limited S South Afnca 74%
G45S Securtty Services {Svenge) AB 5 Sweden 100%.
G45S Securtty Systems (Svenige) AB S Sweden 100%
G45Youth Services LLC 5 usa 100%
The Wackenhut Corporation S UsA 100%
Joint ventures (see note 2()
Brdgend Custodial Services Lirmited? 5 England 54%
STC (Mittan Keynes) Uimited S England 50%
Safeguards Secuncor Sdn Bhd3 S+C Malaysia 49%
Wackenhut Serwces, inc S USA 100%
Associated undertakings (see note 22)
Space Gateway Support LLC s UsA 46%

I G45 Securtty Services (India) Pvt. Limited has a year end of 31 Mareh By wirtue of a shareholder agreement, the group has the power to
govern the firancal and operaung polices of G4 Securtty Services (India) Pvt. limited so as to obtan the benefits from its actavities. It 1s

therefore consoldated as a full subsidiary
2 Bndgend Custodial Servces Lirnted has a year end of 30 September
3 Safeguards Secuncor Sdn Bhd has 2 year end of 30 June
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Parent company balance sheet

At 31 December 2006

006 2005
Notes im £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets b 39 38
Investments d 5875 4375
591 4 44| 3
Current assets
Debtors ) 1,176 3 1,497 0
Cash at bank and i« hand 77 140
1,184 0 15180
Creditors ~ amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdraft {(unsecured) (61 1} (3C0)
Borrowangs (unsecured) ¢ (250} -
Orher i (504 5} (757 2)
(5906) (7872)
Net current assets 5934 7238
Total assets less current labiliues 1,184 8 1,1651
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowangs {unsecured) e) (786 2} (7312}
Cther il 03) -

(786 5) @312

Provisions for liabiltties and charges h) (38) Gn

MNet assets 3945 4288

Caprtal and reserves

Called up share caprtal 35 3200 3172
Share premium and reserves ] 745 I1é
Equity shareholders’ funds I 3945 4288

The parent company financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 30 March 2007
They were signed on 1ts behalf by

Nick Buckles Trevor Dighton
Director Director

(.




Notes to the parent company financial statements

a) Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the comparny are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985 They have been prepared under the
histoncal cost convention except for the revaluation of certain financial iInstruments and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (UK GAAP)

Exemptions
As permitted by secuon 230(3) of the Companies Act 1985, the company has not presented 1ts own profit and loss account.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from prepanng a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS | Cash flow statements
The cash flows of the company are included within its consolidated finanoal statements

The company s also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 Related party disclosures from disclosing refated party transactions with other members
of the group.

The consolidated financial statements of the group contain financal smstrument disclosures and comply with FRS 25 Financal instruments:
disclosures and presentation Consequently the company has taken advantage of certain exemptions in FRS 25 from the requirement to present
separate financial instrurnent disclosures for the comparny

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of depreciation and any prowsion for imparment, Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a straight ine

basis over their expected economic life Short leaseholds property (under 50 years) s depreciated over the life of the lease Equipment and
vehicles are depreciated over penods up to a maximum of ten years.

Fixed asset mnvestments
Fixed asset imvesiments, which comprise investments 1n subsidiary undertalangs, are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment. of there are
indrcators that the carrying value may not be recoverabie

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habilties are recogrised when the group becomnes a party to the contractual provisions of the nstruments.

> External debtors
Debtors do not carry interest and are stated at their fair value

> Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recogmised at the value of proceeds receved net of direct 1ssue costs. Finance charges, ndluding

premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are recognised in the income statement on an accrual bass using the
effecuve: interest methad

> External creditors
Creditors are not interest-beanng and are stated at their fair value

>  Amounts owed to/from subsldiary undertakings
Amounts owed to/from subsidiary undertakings bear interest at prevading market rates

>  Equity Instruments
Equity instrurnents 1ssued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwvalents compnise cash balances and call deposits.

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obbgation as a result of past events and a reliable estmate of the
amount can be made

9%
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Notes to the parent company financial statements (continued)

a) Significant accounting policles (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance wath 1ts treasury pohicy, the company only holds or issues dervative finantial instruments to manage the group s exposure to finanaal
nisk, not for trading purposes. Such financal nsk ncludes the interest risk on the group's vanable-rate borrowings and foreign exchange nsk on
transactions on the translation of the group s resuits and on the translation of the group's net assets measured m foreign currencies to the extent
that these are not matched by foreign currency borrowings. The company manages these nisks through a range of denvative financial instruments,
including interest rate swaps, fixed rate agreements, forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps.

Dervatrve financial instruments are recogrused in the balarce sheet as financial assets or habilkties at far value The gain or loss on remeasurement
to far value is recogmsed immediately in the income statement. However, where denvatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as descrbed below

> Fair value hedge

The change in the farr value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged item 15 recognised immediately in the
ncome statement.

> Cash flow hedge
The change in the far value of the portron of the hedging instrument that 15 determuned to be an effective hedge 15 recognised in equity and

subsequently recycled to the iIncome statement when the hedged cash flow impacts the iIncome statement. The inefiective portion of the far
value of the hedging instrument 1s recognised smmediately in the income statement,

Leases
Assets held under finance leases are included as tangible fixed assets at their capital value and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and

their useful economic Iife The capital element of fisture rentals 1s included within creditors and finance charges are allocated to accounting penods
over the pencd of the lease

Annual rentals payable or receivable under operating leases are charged or credited to the profit and loss account as incurred

Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the company are presented in sterling its functional currency Transactions in currencies other than steriing are
transiated at the -ates of exchange prevaling on the dates of the transacuions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and lablities which are
denominated n gther currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaiing on that date Non-monetary assets and liabities carned at farr value which
are denominated in other currences are translated at the rates prevalling at the date when the far value was determined Non-monetary tems

measured at histoncal cost denominated in other currencies are not retranslated Gains and fosses anging on retranglaton are included in the profit
and loss account.

Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be pad (or recovered} using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recogrused in respect of all matenal tming differences that have onginated, but not reversed by the balance sheet date Deferred
tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the trming differences reverse based
on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted al the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised where their recovery 1s
considered moare likely than not in that there will be sutable taxable profits fram which the future reversal of underlying tming differences can
be deducted

Pensions

The comparry partiipates in mutt-employer pension schemes in the LUK, which prowde benefits based on final pensionable pay The company 1s
unable to dentfy its share of the schemes’ assets and liabilites on a consistent and reasonable basis In accordance with FRS 17 the company treats
the schemes as if they were defined contnbution schemes and recogrises charges as and when contnbutions are due to the scheme Details of the
schemes are included In note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
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Notes to the parent company financial statements (continued)

a)

b)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payments
The company has apphed the optional transitionat exemptions in FRS 20 Share-based payment and implernented s requirernents for grants of
equity mstruments made after 7 November 2002 which had not vested by | January 2005

The company 1ssues equrty-settled share-based payments to certan employees The farr value of share-based payments s determined at the date
of grant and expensed, with a cormesponding increase in equity on a straight-ine basis over the vesting penod based on the companys estimate
of the shares that will eventually vest. The amount expensed 15 adjusted over the vesting penod for changes in the estimate of the number of
shares that will eventually vest, save for changes resufing from any market-related performance condions

The fair value of share-based payments granted in the form of options 1s measured by the use of the Black-Scholes valuation technique, adjusted
for future dmdend receipts and for any market-related performance condiions

The company grants share options over its own shares to the employees of subsidiary comparues. The company does not receve goods or
services in exchange for these options. These are accounted for as a wntten call option on the entity s own shares under FRS 25 and do not result
N an accounting entry upon grant, When the share options are subsequently exertised the resufting entnes are either to increase share caprtal and
share prermium for new shares issued or to record a reduction in the treasury shares awned by the employee benefit trust.

Dividends

Dnndends are recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the penod i which they are declared Dividends proposed but not declared are not
recogrused but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial guarantees
The company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the group The company treats

such contracts as a contingent hability untess and until such ume as it becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment
under the guarantee

Own shares held by employee benefit trusts
Transactions of the group-sponsored employee benefit trusts are included in the parent company financial statements. In particular the trusts'
purchases of shares i the company are debrted directly to equity

Tangible fixed assets

Land and Equipment

buildings and vehicles Total

£m £m €m

Cost
At | lanuary 2006 30 22 52
Additions at cost - 05 05
Drsposals - ©3 ©3
At 31 Decernber 2006 30 24 54
Depreciavon
At | |anuary 2006 ©6) {€8) (14
Charge for the year 02) {€2) (04}
Dispasals - 03 03
At 31 December 2006 8 07) (15)
Net baok value
At 31 December 2006 22 1 7 39
At 31 December 2005 24 14 38

The net back value of land and buildings compnses short leasehold buildings {under 50 years)
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Notes to the parent company financial statements (continued)

<)

d)

e}

Fixed asset investments
The following are included i the net book value of fixed asset investments.

Subsidlary undertaldngs Total
im

Shares at cost:

At | [anuary 2006 4375
Addrions 1500
At 31 December 2006 5875

Full details of significant irvestments held by the parent company and the group are detaled in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debtors
2006 2005
£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 1.1507 14722
Prepayments and acerued income 09 74
Derwvative financal instruments at fair value 86 17
Other debtors 161 157
Total debtors 1,176 3 14970

Included within dervatve financial instrurnents at far value 1s £1 4m due after more than one year (2005 £nil) See note g) for further details

Included in other debtors s £6 5m (2005 £1 3m) with regard to deferred tax comprised as follows

2006 2005
im £m
Accelerated capital allowances (03} 08
Other uming differences 68 05
Total deferred tax 65 13
The reconcihation of deferred tax balances 15 as follows
Toual
£m
At | January 2006 I3
Credited to profit and loss 74
Charged to equity in relation to cash flow hedges {22)
Az 31 December 2006 65
Unsecured borrowings
The unsecured borrowings are at floating rates and in the following currencies
2006 2005
im £m
Sterling 899 -
Euro 2913 3147
US dollar 4300 4165
Tatal unsecured borrowings 8112 7312
The paymen profile of the unsecured borrowangs 15 as follows.
2006 2005
£m fm
Repayable within one year 250 -
Repayable within two to five years 7862 7312
Total unsecured borrowings 8li2 7312

There were no fixed rate financal babities and no financal habdites upon which no interest 1s pad




Notes to the parent company financial statements (contnued)

e) Unsecured borrowings {continued)
Undrawn committed faclites mature as follows.

2006 2005

£m fim

Within one year 50 -
Within two to five years 2125 2688
Total undrawn committed facilibies 21758 2688

The fair value of the company s bank borrowings equates to their bock values Fair values are determined by reference to market values where
avallable, or calculated by discounting cash flows at prevaling interest rates. Borrowing at floating rates exposes the company to cash flow interest

rate nsk. The management of this nsk is detaled m note g)

f) Creditors
2006 2005
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade credtors 05 I
Amounts owed to group undertakings 4936 7364
Cther taxation and socal securty costs 12 05
Other creditors 42 29
Accruals and deferred income 40 87
Dervative financial instruments at far value 10 76
Total creditors — amounts faling due within one year 5045 7572
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Denwvative financial instruments at far value 03 -
g) Derivative financial instruments
The carrying values of dervative financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below
Assets Assets Llabllides Lizhirtes
2006 2005 2006 2005
im £m im Lm
Forward foreign exchange contracts 63 10 09 72
interest rate swaps 23 o7 04 04
86 17 13 76
Less: Nan-current portion (14) - {03) -
Current portion 72 17 10 76

Dervatve finanaal instruments are stated at far value, based upon market pnces where available or otherwise on discounted cash flow valuations.

The interest rate swaps qualify as cash flow hedges and have the fallowing maturtiies:

Assets Assets Liabilides Liabilkbes

2006 2005 2006 2005

£fm £m £m £m

Within one year 05 - - -
In the second year 63 - - ot
In the third year 11 02 - 0l
In the fourth year 02 ol - 02
I the £fth year 02 04 04 -
Total carrying value of cash fiow hedges 23 o7 04 04
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Notes to the parent company financial statements (continued)

8)

k)

Derivative financia! instruments {continued)

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business i many currenaes. The group presents its consokdated financial statements in sterfing and #t 15 In consequence
subject to foreign exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of its foreign subsidanes The company therefore hedges a
substantial proportion of the group s exposure to fluctuations in the tranglation into steriing of its overseas net assets by holding foans n foreign
currencies. Translation adjustments ansing on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised in the profit and loss account

The comparny enters into forward foreign exchange contracts so as to hedge group translation nsk not hedged by way of loans. Gains and losses
an such forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised in the profit and loss account The notional value of outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts at 31 December 2006 was £3424m All these contracts had matured by 28 February 2007, at which point they were replaced
with new forward foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrawing at floating rates as descnbed in note e) exposes the company to cash flow interest rate nsk, which the company manages within pahcy
imits approved by the directors. Interest rate swaps and, to a imited extent, forwand rate agreements are utilised to fix the interest rate on a
proportion of borrowings on a reducng scale over forward periods up to a maximum pencd of five years. At 31 December 2006 the nominal
value of such contracts was £196 7m (in respect of US dollar) and £i41 5m (in respect of euro) their weighted average interest rate was 49%
(US dollar} and 3 4% (euro), and their weighted average penod te matunty was three years. All the interest rate hedging instruments are
designated and fully effactive as cash flow hedges and movements in their far value have been deferred in equity

Counterparty credit risk
The company’s strategy for credit nsk management 1s to set minimum credit ratings for counterparties and monitor these on a regular basis.

For treasury-related transactions, the policy limits the aggregate credit nsk assigned to a counterparty The wutihsaton of a credit himit 1s calculated by
apphnng a weighting to the noticnal value of each transaction cutstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duration of the transaction
For short-term transactions (under one year), the finanaial counterparty must be investment grade rated by erther the Standard & Poors or Moodys
rating agency For long-term transactions, the financial counterparty must have a minmun: rating of A+A| from Standard & Poars or Moodys.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Onerous
contracts
£m
At ¢ January 2006 51
Addional provsions in the year ol
Utihsation of prowvisions (4
At 31 Decernber 2006 38

The onerous contracts Provision COMpSses a provision against future Labiitbes for 2t propertes sub-let at a shortfall and for long-term dle properties.
The prowsion is based on the value of future net cash outflows relating te rent, rates service charges and costs of marketing the properties.

Share premium and reserves

Empioyee
Share Profit and Benefit Trust
premium loss account Own shares reserve Toual
£m £m im &m fm
At | lanuary 2006 40 e (63) 20 116
Retained loss - (64) - - (64)
Changes in far value of hedgng dervaives - 131 - - 131
Shares issued 63 - - - 63
Dwidends declared - (49 8) - - (498)
Own shares purchased - - 3n - Gn
Equity-settled transactions.
— Performance share plans - - - 23 23
— Deferred shares - - - 13 13
— Share optons - 14 - - 14
Tax on equity movements - (e 3] - - 22
At 31 December 2006 103 680 (9 4} 56 745

The (loss)/profit for the year to 31 December 2006 attnbutable to shareholders was £(64)m (31 December 2005 £151 4m)




Notes to the parent company financial statements (continved)

)

k)

Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds for the year ended 31 December 2006

1006 2005
£m £m
Retained (loss)/profit for the year 64 151 4
Changes in far value of hedging dervatives 131 (58)
Shares issued 91 49
Dradends declared (49 8) (398)
Own shares purchased (3n e
Equity-settfed transactions.
— Performance share plans 23 12
— Deferred shares 13 -
— Share options 14 |5
Tax on equity movements 22 -
Net (decrease)fincrease in shareholders’ funds {34 3) 1073
Opening equity sharehclders funds 4288 3215
Closing equity sharehalders funds 3945 1288

Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which expire as follows.

2006 2005

£m £m

Within one year 0l 02
In the second to fifth years inclusive o7 02
After more than five years 08 12
Total operating lease commitments 16 )

Auditor’s remuneration
Fees pad to KPMG Audit Ple and s assooiates for non-audit services to the comparny rtself are not disdosed in its individual accounts because the
companys consohdated financial statements are required to disclose such fees an a consolidated basis

m) Staff costs and employees

°)

2006 2005

Number Number

The average monthly number of employees of the company dunng the year was. 123 122
Total staff costs, ncluding directors’ emoluments, were as follows.

2006 2005

im £m

Wages and stlanes 22.0 206

Socal secunty costs 19 I 6

Pension costs 13 0%

Total stafl costs 252 231

Share-based payments

The group has two types of equity-settled, share-based payment scheme in place (1) share options previously held by employees over Securicor
plc shares and rolled over to Group 4 Secuncor ple shares wath the acquisition of that business on 19 July 2004, and (2) conditional allocations of
Group 4 Secuncor ple shares. The majonty of the shares under option are attnbutable to employees of the company, hawever the company bears
the full cost of share-based payment charges applicable to subsidiary undertakungs. Therefore all disclosures relevant to the company are presented
within note 40 to the consoldated financial statements.

Contingent liabilities
To help secure cost effective finance faclities for its subsidianes, the company 1ssues guarantees to some of its finance providers. At 31 December
2006 guarantees totalling £315 4m were in place in support of such facilities.

The company 1s included n a group registratian for UKVAT purposes and s therefore jointly and severally hable for all other UK group companies
unpard debts in this connection. The liability of the UK group registration at 31 Decemnber 2006 totalled £18 8m
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Group financial record

Presented under the

Prasented under IFRS then UK GAAP

£m 1006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Turnover 43536 40457 30936 25695 21526
Profit before interest, taxation amortsation of acquistion-related

intangible assets and exceptional items 2770 2550 1655 1184 937
Profit/(loss) after taxation 1099 907 (654) 32) 125
Profit/{loss) atinbutable ta shareholders 965 808 (723) ©G¢Nn 76
Non-current assets 1941 6 | 9667 18760 6936 6585
Net assets 9715 9699 9099 3236 2908
Net debt 6728 6573 5864 3824 4870
Net debt/equity (%) 69 &8 64 118 167
Return on net assets (%) (profit/(loss) after taxation/net assets) I 9 @ 4] 4
Adjusted earnings per ordinary share (pence) 122p [12p 95p 80p 61p
Dradends for the year per ordinary share (pence) 42p 354p 1 85p C46p 043p
Average headcount (number) 440,128 395,771 306313 230472 218278

The five year record compnses only the results of the securtty businesses of the former Group 4 Falck A/S up to the acquisition of Secuncor ple on
19 July 2004 After that date, the record reflects the results of the combined businesses

The figures presented for 2002 to 2003 are in accardance with the then UK GAAP The main adjustments that would be required to make them
consistent with the 2006 financial statements which have been prepared under IFRS relate to

a} the non-amortisation of goodwll

b} the recognition of separable or contractual intangible assets on a business combination
c) the recogniton of the funding balances for each retirement benefit scheme

dy the recognition of a charge to income i respect of share options granted

¢) the accounting treatment of joint ventures under the proporticnate consalidation method rather than the gross equity method of accounting

f) the recognition of all dervative financial instruments at fair value

g) the recognition of all taxable temporary tming differences between the accounting base and tax base of assets and labilites

h) dvdends being provided for in the year in which they are declared

1) the redassification of certain contracts as finance leases rather than operating leases
N the reclassfication of securthes held by the group’s captive insurance companies as a component of net debt
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice &5 hereby gven that the Annual General Meeting of Group 4 Secuncor plc sl be held at Ironmongers' Hall, Barbican, London EC2Y 8AA on
Thursday 31 May 2007 at 2 00pm.

Resolutions | to 8 will be proposed as ordinary resclutions. Resclutions 9 to || will be proposed as specal resolutions.
I To receive the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2006 and the reporis of the directors and auditor thereon
2 To receve and approve the Directors' Remuneration Report contained in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006
3 To confirm and dedare dmdends.
4 To elect Mark Ellott {member of the Remuneration Committee} as a director
5 To re-elect the directors who retire by rotation
(a) MNick Buckles
(b) Lord Conden (member of the Remuneration and Normination Committees)
(c) Alf Duch-Pedersen (member of the Nomination Committee)

6. To re-appont KPMG Audit Pic as audrtor of the Companty from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are lad before the shareholders, and to authonse the directors to fix their remuneration

7 That the directors be and are hereby authorised to make the amendments to the Group 4 Secuncor Performance Share Plan as detaded in the
Directors’ Remuneraton Report on page 42 of the Company's 2006 Annual Report and Accounts.

8  That the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditicnally authonsed in accordance with section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 ( the Act™)
to exercise afl the powers of the Comparry to allot relevant secuntties (as defined in section 80{2) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £105 500,000 provided that the authonty hereby given shall expire on | May 2012, save that the Campany shall be entritled to make offers or
agreements before the expiry of such authonty which would or might require relevant secunties to be allotted after such expiry and the directors
shall be entrtled to allot relevant secunties pursuant to any such offer or agreement as If this authonty had not expired and all unexpired
authorities previously granted to the directers to allot relevant securtties be and are hereby revoked

9  That the directors be and are hereby granted pursuant to section 55 of the Act, power to allot equity securtbies (as defined in section 94(2) of the
Act) for cash as if section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to such aliotment, prowided that this power shall be kmited to

(1} the allotment of equity securities in connection with a nghts 1ssue open offer or other offer of secunties in favour of the holders of ordinary
shares on the register of members at such record dates as the directors may determine where the equity securthes respectively atinbutable
to the interests of the ordinary shareholders are proporbonate (as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held or
deermed to be held by them on any such record date subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary
or expedient to deal with treasury shares fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems ansing under the laws of any overseas terntary
or the requrements of any regulatory body or stock exchange or by wrtue of shares being represented by deposiary receipts or any other
matter whatever and

() the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (1) above) to any persan or persons of equity securties up to an aggregate nomnal
value of £15,995 000

and shall expire on | May 2012 save that the Comparry shall be entitled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such power which
would or rught require equity secunties to be allotted after such expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot equity secunties pursuant to
any such offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

10

That the Cornpany be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authansed to make market purchases (wathin the meaning of section 163(3)
of the Act) of ordinary shares of 25p each in the caprtal of the Company previded that.

{1) the maximum number of shares which may be purchased is 128 000 000
() the ruimum pnce which may be paid for each share 1s 25p

(i5) the maxamum price which may be pad for each share 1s an amount equal to 105% of the average of the nuddle market quotatons for an
ordinary share in the Company as derved from The London Stock Exchange Daly Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
the day on which such share is contracted to be purchased, and

() this authortty shall expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meetng of the Company 1o be held in 2008 (except in relation to the
purchase of shares the contract for which was entered into before the expiry of this authenty and which might be executed wholly or partly
after such expiry)

That the name of the Company be changed to G4S pl¢

By order of the board
Peter David The Manor

Secretary Manor Royal
30 March 2007 Crawley

West Sussex RH10 9UN

Notes

(@

(&)

Every member entitied to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another person as his proxy to attend and on a poll, to vote thereat
instead of him and such proxy need not be a member Forms appointing proxies must be depasited at the office of the Company's registrar by
200pm on 29 May 2007 The appointment of a proxy will not prevent a member from atiending and voting at the Annual General Meeting should
he decide to do so.

To have the nght to attend and vote at the meeting (and also for the purposes of calculatng how many votes a person may cast) a persen must
have his name entered on the register of ordinary shares by no later than 5 30pm on 29 May 2007 Changes to entries on the register after this
time shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend or vate at the meetng

By attending the meeting, a mermber expressly agrees that he 1s requesting and willing to recerve any communications made at the meeting.

If the addressee of this notice has sold or transferred all of his shares in the Company thts notice should be passed to the person through whom
the sale or transfer was effected so that it can be passed on to the purchaser or transferee

The marked-up rules of the Group 4 Secunicor Performance Share Plan to show the proposed changes are available for inspection at the offices
of Herbert Smith LLF, Exchange House Pnmrose Street, London EC2A 2HS, during usual business hours on any business day from the date of this
notce until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting and at Ironmangers Hall Barbican, London EC2Y 8AA for at least |5 minutes before
and dunng the Annual General Meeting
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